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CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . . We shall bring this meeting to order. Today is Friday,
April 29, 2016. This is the Council's Committee on Budget and Finance. We are in our
review of the proposed Fiscal Year 2017 Budget as submitted by the Mayor. At this time
present is the Vice-Chairman, Mr. White.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning, good afternoon. And Members, Ms. Baisa -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Ms. Cochran -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Mr. Couch -2
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aloha and good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Aloha.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We excuse Mr. Carroll. Mr. Guzman is, has joined us and Mr. Victorino is
excused. Members, we shall take public testimony before we continue the review. So
for everyone that would like to share testimony with this Committee when your name is
called please come forward. You have three minutes to share your thoughts with the
Committee. If you represent an organization, please share that with us. With 30
seconds left, the 2-minute 30-second mark the yellow light at the podium will go on to
assist you with managing your time. At the 3-minute mark the red light goes on which
means you shall stop speaking. Members may ask you questions for clarification on
testimony presented. And besides the Chamber, members, we shall also check with the
District Offices for if anyone is interested to testify from those locations. If your name
is called and you're not present we are going to continue. By rule we do not recall you
back. Okay. So please be present when your name is called. We welcome Mr. Carroll.
Thank you for joining us, sir. At this time, we'd like to ask Cheryl Tipton if she would
please come forward and share her testimony with us and following her will be Penny
Davis.

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
MS. TIPTON: Chair Hokama, Councilmembers, good afternoon.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good afternoon.
MS. TIPTON: My name is Cheryl Tipton and I've reviewed the Committee's Budget issued
yesterday and as President of the Board of the Hui Noeau Visual Arts Center I am here
to respectfully request that the line item for the Hui be returned to the Budget. As you
will recall from previous testimony on behalf of the Hui, the money would be used for
Inspiration STEAM, a program that would incorporate art into the STEM programs for
Maui's youth. The original proposal was for just over a 173,000 but the amount in the
Mayor's Proposed Budget was reduced to $50,000. This is the first year since 2006 that
the Hui Noeau has appeared as a line item in the Mayor's Proposed Budget. In 2006,
the Hui received money from the County after the purchase of the property where the
Hui is located and we truly really appreciate that support. For years we had been leasing
the property for no more than $100 a year but in 2005 the owner, Maui Land and Pine,
suddenly announced that the property was going to be sold to a couple in Texas. We
were able to raise the funds quickly within the community to purchase this historic
estate. Next year in 2017, the main buildings which were designed by renowned Hawaii
architect C.W. Dickey will be 100 years old. In addition to the arts programs we offer,
the Hui is a cultural treasure and has become a destination for tourists. The Hawaii
Visitors Bureau has designated the Hui as a place of special interest and we are marked

-3-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 29, 2016

with one of the warrior signs. The Hawaii Visitors and Convention Bureau on its official
website for tourism recognizes the Hui along with the Maui Arts and Cultural Center as
a main part of Maui's thriving art scene. Indeed, at the end of last fiscal year we had
over 39,000 visits to the Hui. Funding for the Hui will promote the visitor industry
which has such an important role in the County's economy. On behalf of the Hui, I
humbly ask for your support for the Hui's Inspiration STEAM.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done, Ms. Tipton?
MS. TIPTON: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony. Members, questions for the lady on
testimony presented? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Good morning, Ms. Tipton. Nice to see you.
MS. TIPTON: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And so in your testimony you mentioned that you folks were
able to rally together in short notice enough money to purchase, do land acquisition.
How much was that?
MS. TIPTON: It was a total of 5 million.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Are there other questions for the lady? Having none, Ms. Tipton, thank you
for your testimony.
MS. TIPTON: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Penny Davis please. Penny, are you here? Okay. Yeah, I see Penny in the
back. Yeah, can you assist Ms. Davis please? And following Ms. Davis will be Debra
Greene.
MS. DAVIS: It was almost a roller coaster ride.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah. Take your time, Penny. Take your time.
MS. DAVIS: Should have asked Mr. Carroll, huh? Is that, is that okay? Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We can't see her. She needs to come on the side.
MS. DAVIS: Oh, I need to come on the side? Okay. Hang on.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Take your time, Penny. We can wait.
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MS. DAVIS: Okay. Thank you. You want to see my happy smiley face?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Come on the side where we can see you over there.
MS. DAVIS: Oh, okay, like over here?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, perfect.
MS. DAVIS: It's okay I can talk loud.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Perfect.
MS. DAVIS: Aloha awakea. Mahalo for giving us the opportunity and to be here today in front
of the Councilmembers and Council Chair, and aloha from my brother and former
Councilman Mike Davis. And I wanted to share with you my trek on coming to the
Council today, this is the first time I ever did this. So a couple months ago I was thinking
`cause it was early enough I said to my sister, Aunty June, I said I'm going to call the
Transportation Committee 'cause, you know, primary election day is coming up and it's
on August 13 and I said and so it's early enough to ask right? And she said I would
think so let's call. So I called and of course Donald Medeiros wasn't in so I got to talk
to Darren. He's a nice young man, and I asked Darren I said I wanted to see if I'm
calling you early can I please, 'cause I come here to the counting center and I work
volunteer work here and I love what I do and I said but they told me that the earliest or
the latest time I can be picked up by the bus would be at 9 o'clock. And so I said,
Darren, but I'm calling you really early, can we make a thing? He said hmm, Aunty
Penny, no. And so I asked him some other questions about doing something 'cause I
had let him know early enough for the bus and he went no. And I said okay, Darren,
you're being exquisitely honest with me and you're not trying to sugar coat it and I said
why is that? And he said because there's no money. And I said okay. So everything
that I want to change in the transportation like the hours of operation which I would
like to have it changed and, you know, like how the nurses work 11:00 to 7:00, 3:00,
7:00 to 3:00, 3:00 to 11:00, and it will all work. Even midnight from Wailuku to any
place and expanding our geographic locations of where we would like to go. There was
at least five times last year that I wanted to go to Keawalai Church and I was not able
to go because the bus doesn't go and it's out of their range; and St. John's Church in
Kula, and Sun Yat-Sen Park in Keokea, and all these different places. So and he was
very honest with me and I said you're the first person to be really that honest to tell me
we can't do these things 'cause there's no funds. So I'm asking for the Councilmembers
please to give money to the transportation, para-transportation so we can go and go
longer and go wider and be happy. Thank you. Mahalo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Good to see you. Good to see you, Penny.
MS. DAVIS: Good to see you. Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Members, any questions for the lady on her testimony? Penny, we want to
thank you for making the effort to come this afternoon. Mahalo.
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MS. DAVIS: Mahalo. I gonna do a U-ie, yeah, 'cause it's easier.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, that's fine. No burn rubber. At least you guys understood that
comment. Debra Greene, please. And following Ms. Greene, will be Daniel Kanahele.
MS. GREENE: Aloha, Chair Hokama and Members of the Budget and Finance Committee,
Council Staff, members of the community. My name is Debra Greene. I'm a member of
the Maui Meadows Neighborhood Association. I am testifying in support of the 3-Can
Plan Curbside Recycling program which is proposed to be removed from your Budget
proposal and I'm at a loss to understand why you would want to do this and without
even consulting with the people who'll be most affected by cutting that service. Funding
for this service was included in the Fiscal Year 2017 Budget by then Department of
Environmental Management Director Kyle Ginoza and it's included in the Mayor's
proposal and yet we're wondering why you would want to cut it and without really any
notice. The 3-Can Plan is wildly popular and successful as was evident when Mayor
Arakawa's Administration defunded the program in 2014 and the people demanded to
have it back. In early 2015, we presented the Mayor with petitions totaling over 2,000
signatures. The service was reinstated because it makes sense to continue it. The
County has already invested in the recycle bins to the tune of almost $300,000. And if
the program is cut, those bins and that huge investment will go to waste. Is that really
what you want? We learned last year that it will cost upwards of $80,000 to repurpose
the bins if the program is stopped. Wondering if the 80,000 is in the Budget and if it's
not, what happens to the bins? And that huge investment again would be totally wasted
or if the 80,000 is in the Budget then why not use that money to fund the program
instead of cutting it? Over the past year, we met with Maui Disposal Facilities Manager
Wendell Parker to ask about participation and compliance in the program and he
consistently tells us that the program is popular and compliance is good. It appears as
though the Anaergia waste-to-energy plant isn't going to happen and that's all the more
reason to continue the 3-Can Plan curbside recycling program and to even consider
expanding it island-wide. We need to be moving in the direction of saving the aina by
recycling and keeping recyclables out of the landfill. Now is not the time to cut the
service. So please reconsider and fund the 3-Can Plan Curbside Recycling program with
no increase in fees. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for your testimony, Ms. Greene. Members, any questions
for the lady? Okay. Having none, Ms. Greene, we thank you for your presence this
afternoon. Daniel Kanahele, please. Following Mr. Kanahele is Chris Strickland.
MR. KANAHELE: Aloha kakou, Chair Hokama and Committee Members, Budget and Finance
Committee. My name is Daniel Kanahele and I'm speaking on behalf of the Maui
Meadows Neighborhood Association of which I am the current president. I'm here also
to speak in support of the 3-Can Curbside Recycling Program and that if you're
considering cutting it out of the proposed Mayor's Budget I would ask that you not do
that because the program is popular and is supported by our association members and
our neighbors as a whole. In fact, when I drove out of Maui Meadows this morning,
today is the recycling pickup day for the blue cans, just on my street alone, Kupulau
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Drive, there were 80 cans put out on the curb. So I've heard that our setout rate is
about 61 percent as a whole in Maui. I'm not sure where those statistics come from. I
always worry about statistics when people throw it out. What are the basis of these
statistics, where do they come from, or if, or numbers, costs? But, you know, just as
an observation you come any Friday or any Tuesday morning on pickup and you'll see
a lot of cans out, put out, whether it's the green waste recycling can or the blue can.
And when the Administration wanted to pull the 3-Can Plan last year, actually cancelled
it in February, 25 of us went to meet with the Mayor in his office, sat down and he was
very agreeable to talking to us and trying to work out a solution. And we eventually did,
you know, it resulted in a slight increase in fees to $6 per month and we accepted that
because we think recycling is a pono way of taking care of our aina. Removing the 3Can Recycle Plan Curbside Recycling in my opinion is antithesis of aloha aina of Maui
no ka oi. You know other places in the country do this and have done it for decades.
Why can't we make it work here in our County? It works in Maui Meadows. And if
you've heard anything else to say that it's not so, then I would say maybe the facts are
not accurate from whoever you're hearing that from. Setout rate is good, participation
is good, and I have also talked to Wendell Parker and in fact I just came from Maui
Disposal before I came here to meet with Mr. Parker who was unfortunately out and he's
the recycling facilities manager for Maui Disposal. That's where all our 3-Can stuff goes.
He wasn't there. I spoke to one of his workmen. I asked about contamination. Is
contamination a problem from the 3-Can Plan? He said, one of his workers said no
there's not that much. It's not that big of a problem. So if someone is saying our
contamination rates are excessively high, I would like to know on what that is based,
where they're getting their information from, and I would hope that this Council or
Committee would try to get in contact with Mr. Wendell Parker. That's the guy who's in
charge of the recycling from the County pickup. Let's get our facts straight. Let's get
our numbers straight. If someone is saying it's too much and we need to increase it,
upon what basis? Thank you so much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you -MR. KANAHELE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: -- for your testimony, Mr. Kanahele. Any questions for Mr. Kanahele? Thank
you very much for your testimony this afternoon. Chris Strickland and he'll be followed
by Dave Taylor.
MR. STRICKLAND: Do I press anything or just start?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No just besides speaking.
MR. STRICKLAND: Okay. Aloha Councilmembers. Aloha, Council Chair. My name is Chris
Strickland. I work at a place in East Kuiaha, it's an agroforestry development and I also
work for a produce distribution company in Kahului which specializes in local produce
made on the island to support restaurants and hotels and all the other people who want
to order from us. I'm actually here for the Hamakualoa coastline appropriations. I'm
not actually sure if it got cut or what happened to it but I was told to come support and
7
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I've been living in that area for about three years now and it's actually really important
to the community to have something of an open space place to go and continue the
community development that I've seen. I'm also a permaculture studying agroforestry
technician so I have done some research on some of the atmospheric changes that have
happened over the island and because of all the change down on the north side of Maui
it has caused a lower rainfall rate and also affecting neighboring islands such as
Kahoolawe. So as far as that I'm here to support the appropriations for Hamakualoa
coastline in order to help the overall island. That's it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Strickland. Any questions for the gentleman? Thank you
for your presence. Dave Taylor? Following Mr. Taylor will be Matthew Clement.
MR. TAYLOR: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair, Members. My name is Dave Taylor. I'm the Director
of the Department of Water Supply and I'm here to testify on the Budget regarding the
issue of moving a couple of the engineers from the Management group to the Department
of Water Supply. First, I want to thank the Council for your support of our budget this
year and I have no comments on that and just to say thank you. Second, I appreciate
your support of trying to get two more positions to my Department. Third, I would very
much like to have those two people. I think any department would like to have those
two people. No comment on what they're doing now, that's for other people to talk about.
But I like the idea of having those two people. Unfortunately, I think there's some
mechanics of how the civil service system works that may not be apparent and I think
the idea that you're trying to do may not come out the way you're thinking. I believe
that what would happen if you get rid of the two positions in Management and create
two positions in my Department will not be a transfer of those people. It will be a simple
construction of two E/Ps minus two E/Ps in Management. Those people won't transfer.
What will happen is they will have to, they'll be have to be given 90-days' notice that
they're losing their jobs, the union will be contacted. Then there's the effort to find jobs
at their level which is EM V and Engineer VI for those two, somewhere in the County.
If that fails and there are no positions, then something called reduction in force or RIF
happens. That's a seniority-based bumping. So across all the departments, jobs would
be identified based on seniority of where these people go which could cause the next
person to bump and so on and so forth. Because they're both licensed engineers, and
there are plenty of open engineering positions in the County, everyone's going to end up
with a job. But what could happen, and I don't know who's senior to whom, one of them
may end up being bumped to Solid Waste, somebody from Solid Waste could go to DSA,
somebody from DSA could come to Water, and then somebody from Water could be
downgraded one level in what they call red circled and fill one of our empty positions. I
don't know how it's all going to land, people could move. Again, at the end of the day
everyone will have a job, we may end up instead of with five empty positions, we may
have seven. And we may end up with supervisors who came from a different
department, et cetera, et cetera. I've talked to this with the Department of Personnel
Services head about this. You may want to talk to him about the details of the laws
that guide this. But I'm pretty sure we're in agreement this is what's going to happen.
And thank you for the time.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony, Mr. Taylor. Members, any questions for the
gentleman? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. And thank you very much,
Mr. Taylor, for being here. Of course I was, like I told them I have these mixed feelings
about this thing 'cause I would be so happy to see you get two qualified water people
`cause, you know, that'll really help us with our water meter list and all the other things
that you need to do. But it's kind of sobering to hear what you're telling us because I
think most of us envisioned that they would pack up upstairs and move to the 5th floor
and everything will be hunky dory. But that doesn't sound like what's likely to happen.
Is this something that could happen but isn't likely to happen or I mean how bad is this
situation, how real is it?
MR. TAYLOR: I think it's very real. If you look at our organizational structure we have an EM,
some Engineer VIs, and then working engineers, Vs, IVs, Ills. Okay. Our open positions
are at that working level, Vs, IVs, Ills. These two people are both way above that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
MR. TAYLOR: So unless they want a voluntary demotion to a V or IV or III engineer position,
they would be more likely to want to do the bumping route. 'Cause why would they
want to take such a huge pay cut? And that's their right by collective bargaining. So I
find it very hard to believe that an Engineer V and an EM V, or an Engineer VI, and an
EM V are going to voluntarily take a demotion down to engineer level, or I'm sorry an
Engineer VI and EM V are going to voluntarily come to our Department when they're
going to have to be an Engineer Vs or IVs.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So they've...
MR. TAYLOR: So I think it's very unlikely.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So obviously there's an engineer problem all over the place. Are
there engineering positions of a higher caliber than yours? Are you, do you know that?
MR. TAYLOR: I'm not sure what jobs are open, I'm, not in my Department. There may be in
other departments. Some people have just moved. Brian Hashiro, the Highways Chief
left and somebody who got that job was an engineer in DSA. I'm not sure what level she
was. People are always moving. I don't know what's happening between now and July.
So it really, this is another thing to check with the Department of Personnel Services
Director. I'm not sure whether this whole thing starts now based on what you're going
to do or whether it doesn't start till July 1st based on what's empty then. The exact
details of the mechanics are a little opaque to me. But I'm square on the overall
methodology.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, thank you for telling us 'cause like I said it appeared like
such a cute idea. I mean a wonderful idea right? But it's not as simple. Thank you
very much.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Other questions for Mr. Taylor? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you, Mr. Taylor, for that
information. So and forgive me, we've been, we're on a lack of sleep, all of us. So you're
saying that...I mean in your experience being in the two positions you've been in in the
last number of years, what is the likelihood that you would get the people you want in
your... `cause you have what five positions open now?
MR. TAYLOR: I have five openings right now.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right. But they're all down at the lower level, right?
MR. TAYLOR: One is going to be at a higher level and the rest will be at lower levels.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So what is the, do you have a percentage chance of you
actually getting the person that we want you to get?
MR. TAYLOR: As far as those two individuals?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
MR. TAYLOR: I think it's very unlikely. I mean the opening we're going to have is one level
above them so they would have to apply for that job and be chosen. That job actually
hasn't even been advertised yet. The rest of the jobs are quite a ways below them.
Unless they had seniority and they bumped one of my existing people who might end
up somewhere else. The number of variables is too large and I don't understand exactly
how the seniority quantification works. Director of Personnel Services was explaining it
to me but it's based on a number of factors. So I don't know that anyone, including him
knows right now who would end up where. I think it would just be at the time it
happened, depending on what happens, and who has what seniority it's going to domino
effect as per its legal aspects.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Director, for being here. The
intent for these two bodies, I've been hearing a lot about Upcountry water meter list, is
that the intent for these two people?
MR. TAYLOR: Well, that is clearly the intent in what Council wrote. It sounds like Council's
idea is to put two E/Ps in the Department of Water Supply budget. I noticed they were
in Operations and I assume those would be moved to Administration where the
engineers are with a proviso that says they're for Upcountry engineering. Right now,
Upcountry engineering is led by, it's a section, there's somebody who's an Engineer VI
who we can put more positions under them. So E/Ps that had a proviso saying they
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must be used for Upcountry could be added there as Engineer Vs and IVs or below and
that's where they'd be filled. So that's not a problem. If the Council wants to address
E/Ps with a proviso that they can only go in that section that's certainly not a problem.
Again those will be lower levels and I don't see how these people would end up in those
particular positions.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Well, thank you for your comments. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, one more thing came to mind.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Taylor, you know, I think what we're trying to do here and
what started all this was trying to help you find help to, you know, work on more of
these engineering things to help move the list and any other projects that, you know,
we need engineers on. We don't, we can't do them without bodies and we understand
that and it's frustrating. These people that are upstairs in the CIP division now, how
much work do they do for you without being in the Water Department or do they not
work for you at all?
MR. TAYLOR: They don't do any work for us. They were created because there are a number
of departments that do capital improvement that don't have project manager engineers.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Correct.
MR. TAYLOR: Environmental Management, Public Works, Water, Parks, we do so much we
have our own people. But Fire, Police, Finance, these other groups, they don't have
anybody who's project manager trained. So they support those groups that don't have
permanent capital improvement professionals.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So if we were to move them away then it would leave holes with
these positions that you say people don't have to do this work. It would cause problems
in other departments.
MR. TAYLOR: And I think some of the other departments have said so and I think more may
testify to that today. So that's, in the departments I've been in, they have never assisted
me. But I know them and they've, I've certainly watched them assist those other
departments.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you very much. I think we have a much better
understanding of the impact of this idea. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thanks for being here, Director. So it sounds to me like the only surefire
way would be for us to proviso that the monies provided for those two positions could
only be used to support work done on behalf of the Water Department CIP projects and
we could even focus that energy on the Upcountry water meter waiting list if we so
chose.
MR. TAYLOR: You're getting beyond my knowledge of what legal provisos are and, et cetera.
But the E/Ps you're adding to our Department, I mean if you're adding E/Ps with a
proviso that those go in to the Upcountry section, there is a possibility that besides just
engineers, the engineers are doing other work that isn't necessarily engineering. That
perhaps a building plans examiner could do, if you give us E/Ps with a proviso that they
be used to forward the Upcountry meter list, even if it's not engineers we can probably
come up with some way in that group to help. Whether or not these two individuals are
the right ones for that, that's a different story. But as far as your support of us giving
us E/Ps for that, I am a 100 percent supportive and thankful for and we will do our best
to use those to find some way to use E/Ps if we can't find engineers, find some other
support mechanism to take load off the engineers doing some of the Upcountry meter
list actions so we can keep moving it forward. So I think there's other ways we can do
it if we have E/Ps.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other questions for Mr. Taylor? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. White had a good question. I think
it wasn't answered quite in the way I think. I think Mr. White was asking if the positions
stay up there can they be proviso'd to work only on your projects, not the other way
around.
MR. TAYLOR: Yeah, I heard him.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I heard the answer...
MR. TAYLOR: I have no idea what the answer to that is.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Gotcha, okay.
MR. TAYLOR: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other questions for Director? Mr. Taylor, thank you for being
here.
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Matthew Clement, please. Following Mr. Clement will be Antonio Greco.
MR. CLEMENT: Thank you, Speaker Hokama, and thank you, Councilmembers.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Can you speak into the mic?
MR. CLEMENT: Yes, sorry, excuse me. My name is Matthew Clement. I am a teacher at the
Haleakala Waldorf High School just below Makawao. I have been a resident of the Haiku
area for the past 13 years and I'm here in support of open space funding to maintain
access to the Peahi Jaws break and the Hamakualoa coastline. I've witnessed people
using that on a daily basis, whether it's walking their dogs, access to fishing, all types
of recreation that go on in that area. Many of them may have been trespassing, but it
has certainly been allowed to go on and the people use that space. I believe there was
a proposal put forth by Councilmember Guzman for $3.2 million. I encourage the
Council to put whatever funds possible to secure this property. I feel like it would be
used by the community and it would further a sense of community in that area where
people can use open space and not be trespassing. So I support this and I've also,
several students have joined us. They'll be speaking and there were about 20 who
wanted to come today and they have other commitments but they also feel strongly
about this that that's what they want in their home and they also support that. So
thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Any questions for the gentleman?
MR. CLEMENT: Thank you for your time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Clement, thank you very much for being here.
MR. CLEMENT: Yeah. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Antonio Greco. Following him will be Owen Durkan.
MR. GRECO: Aloha. My name is Antonio Greco and I'm a sophomore at Haleakala Waldorf.
I'm here today on behalf of myself and the Malama Hamakualoa nonprofit organization
to support open space funding for Maui's Hamakualoa coastline. I believe that funding
for this land is essential in keeping Maui how it has been for so many years; lush and
beautiful. I would like to one day see my kids and the kids of my peers enjoy the same
magical land that we all enjoy today without any restrictions that can be put into place
with the land being privately owned. For this to become a reality, I'm asking the County
to support open space funding for the Hamakualoa coastline even further so we can
secure the safety of the land we've loved for years. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Greco. Any questions for the gentleman? Thank you very
much for being here.
MR. GRECO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We appreciate your presence. Owen Durkan, please? Following Mr. Durkan
it'll be Michael Lisowski.
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MR. 0. DURKAN: Good afternoon. My name is Owen Durkan. I support the County's
purchase of as many acres of amazing North Shore coastline as they can. I being a
youth of Maui in the 1 1 th grade will not stand for anything but the preservation of this
beautiful and historic land. I've grown up near this land living in Haiku for my whole
childhood and cannot see this land turned into anything other than the lush scenic site
it is unless positively affecting my generation. Mahalo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your thoughts. Any questions for Mr. Durkan? Again, thank
you for sharing your testimony this afternoon. Michael Lisowski, followed by Michael
Gagne.
MR. LISOWSKI: Good afternoon. My name is Michael Lisowski. I'm a junior at Haleakala
Waldorf High School. I'm here to support the $6.5 million purchase from existing open
space funds to purchase the 83 acres of North Shore coast. This land is loved by surfers
and hikers and the purchase would enable management and preservation of this
culturally significant land. Being born and growing up here, I think it is essential to
protect and preserve this land for Maui's youth and future generations. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Any questions for Michael this afternoon? Thank you so much
for your testimony. Michael Gagne, to be followed by Gary Passon.
MR. GAGNE: Good afternoon, Chair Hokama and Councilmembers. My name is Mike Gagne.
I live in Huelo 38 years and I came to speak about the Peahi lands. These are significant
lands that have relatively undisturbed areas. For preservation, they have wide vistas,
pre-contact sites, and stunning natural views. They also represent a long-term angst of
North Shore families pertaining to their acquisition for farming and I believe they should
be turned into public use areas highlighting their history and cultural significance and
biodiversity because it is through these areas that we recreate ourselves. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony. Any questions for the gentleman? Thank
you very much, Mr. Gagne. Gary Passon, please? And he'll be followed by David Goode.
MR. PASSON: Good afternoon. My name is Gary Passon and I've provided a copy of my notes
to each of you so you can kind of follow on -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, we have received it.
MR. PASSON: --if you would like.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We've received it. Thank you.
MR. PASSON: I'm a small businessman. We live in Kihei. My wife and I run the Aloha Aku
Inn which is a B&B and I'd like to talk today a little bit about B&Bs because I think
there's some confusion about how it fits in to the business environment and the fabric
of commercial opportunities and options in Maui. B&Bs are a home-based business
and we use only a small portion of the property and we really, and I really believe and I
think many of the B&B owners believe that the B&Bs should be exempt from the
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Commercialized Residential rates. B&Bs are not hotels. B&Bs are not short-term rental
homes. Typically, short-term rental homes are owned by nonresidents and the fact is
that there are only about 100 or so B&Bs in all of Maui. The B&Bs offer a unique
experience not... to Maui visitors not available at hotels and in short-term rental homes.
They personalize the Maui experience by direct contact with the visitors by the families
that run the B&Bs. Each B&B is generally owned by a husband and a wife and they
operate their small business out of their home. They have to be Hawaii residents. They
must live on Maui full time. They maintain their license. They contribute to the
economic wellbeing of the community in every single day. Their kids go to Maui schools.
They volunteer in the nonprofits and they help in community services. They pay TAT,
local taxes. They hire local people, and they shop on Maui. Only a small portion of our
businesses are actually operated, in, of our home are actually operated toward the B&B,
not 100 percent of the property which is typical in a hotel or a short-term rental home.
The Council recognized in the ag case that part of the property not used by ag could or
should be considered for a higher assessment rate than the lower Ag rates for the whole
entire property. Here we have the opposite case. Well rather than take, and take a
portion of the property and raise the rate for the part that's being used as residential,
we're talking about taking the entire property, even though we only use a portion of it,
and take it at the highest possible commercial rates. So what if only one bedroom of an
entire property is being used as a B&B? We can see the obvious unfairness and lack of
justice in that. So because I'm very short of time I'd ask you to please take a rest to
look at the notes. But bottom line is we believe that the long-term rental issues are
more a problem associated with the illegal operations of short-term rental homes and
with the illegal and the grandfathered condos and we'd ask that, if you're going to look
to that problem you look to the source of the issue, not to the small 100 families that
are trying to make their business operate here on Maui. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony this afternoon. Any questions for the
gentleman?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Good afternoon. Thank you for being here. I don't know what
time of day it is anymore. So, sir, thank you for your comments. And what, how much
are you willing to pay? You like the current rates, is that satisfactory to you, and not
the proposed?
MR. PASSON: If every home-based business paid, we'd be happy to pay the rate that every
other home-based business pays. What they pay today is the Residential rate if they
use less than 40 percent of their property for their home based business. So I think we
would like equity. We'd like to be treated the same. That's what we'd like to have.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, very good.

- 15 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 29, 2016

MR. PASSON: You know but we certainly, it certainly isn't fair to take a one bedroom and
charge the entire property at the highest possible commercial rate. That seems very
unfair to all of us.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And thank you for your time and comments.
MR. PASSON: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other questions for the gentleman? Mr. Passon, thank you very much
for your presence.
MR. PASSON: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: David Goode, please? Followed by Mary Pirtle.
MR. GOODE: Good afternoon, Chair and Members of the Committee. I thought I'd provide all
the extra testimony I did the other day and something dawned on me last night and this
has to do with the transfer of the two positions out of the Office of Management. As I
mentioned last time I was at the podium, Molokai Baseyard, we're glad to have in there.
The reason we got to where we are with Molokai Baseyard was because we did transfer
that project to the Managing Director's Office where they have expertise in buildings,
above ground structures. Our expertise in our Department is road, bridge, and
drainage. And to ask one of those engineers to cut their teeth on a project, a 5-$6 million
project and learn how to do vertical construction is a risk we were not comfortable with
taking. If we don't have those positions this coming fiscal year, I'm going to need some
construction management money for that project. So I did about two years ago,
contacted one of the local construction management firms and got a, you know, a rough
ballpark number of about a half million dollars at that time to do the construction
management. So that's what I'm concerned about. I just thought about it last night.
So I apologize for the late notice. But that's what I have for today. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Goode. Any questions? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. The only thing I was confused with is that you've put into
most of your projects construction management amounts and I don't recall seeing, well,
so why do we need to have construction management in those and not if they're in
Management?
MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair and Mr. White, we manage ourselves on a number of road projects
and that, those projects where we don't have the additional capacity based on work
volume we do hire construction management firms. Typically, that'd be for a large Fed
aid project where the reporting is voluminous and so we do our own construction
management for road, bridge, and drainage and we hire out based on capacity.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other questions for Mr. Goode? Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. So the assigned engineer to this particular
Molokai Baseyard project has participated already and have worked on cost and designs
and what have you?
MR. GOODE: Yes, Ms. Crivello, Alan Murata has been handling the project for us. He
basically. you know. took the old design when we got direction from Council to reduce
the scope. He met with our staff. He visited other existing baseyards. We hired, we
had to get the architect involved again so we redid a contract with the architect, you
know, worked out, you know, every little detail. I mean you get down to doors, door
knobs, windows. We just don't do that in Public Works right? So again, you know, his
level of detail in getting in there on the design then has to translate into getting it built
and 'cause issues do come up as you're building buildings. I used to be in the business
of building condos and homes and all that. There's not an issue that doesn't come up
every day that needs a decision, it needs it right now or else we get delays.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So this particular specialist also has oversight over the cost
as they're, as he's looking at all the details too?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, and when you're managing a project under construction those decisions
come up daily, sometimes hourly, and depending on the level of the decision it can be
done in the field, it can be done by voice if you will, or a quick note, or it's got to be you
know what, we've got to go back to the architect. He's got to go back to the mechanical
engineer and the electrical engineer to figure out what's practical. Present it to the
contractor, they're going to tell you it's not practical, and then you've got to do something
else. And that all needs to be closely managed.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. Thank you, Director.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Anyone else? Thank you, Mr. Goode.
MR. GOODE: Thank, you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mary Pirtle, followed by Margit Tolman.
MS. PIRTLE: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman, Councilmembers. My name is Mary Pirtle and I
am a volunteer with the American Red Cross here in Maui County and I am here to ask
for your support on behalf of the funding that we have requested for this fiscal year.
The mission of the Red Cross is to prevent and alleviate human suffering in the face of
emergencies by mobilizing the power of volunteers and the generosity of donors. Red
Cross is the only nonprofit organization that responds to disasters 24/7 365 days a
year. We respond to disasters in Hawaii every 4 days. Our services are essential and
irreplaceable. Last fiscal year on Maui alone we responded to 11 everyday disasters and
assisted 61 individuals with their immediate emergency needs. We taught over 1,500
people how to prepare for emergencies and maintained a base of 166 trained and active
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volunteers. In the first 9 months of Fiscal Year '16, 2016, the Maui Red Cross responded
to 10 incidents and assisted 39 individuals in Lahaina, Kahului, Waiehu, Kaunakakai,
Wailuku, Kihei, Wailua, Kaupo, and Wailea. We are asking you to make a wise
investment here because for every $1 invested in pre-disaster preparedness and risk
reduction, you save $4 in post-disaster response and recovery expenses. Red Cross
preparedness initiatives include home fire campaign to reduce deaths and injuries by
installing free smoke alarms in the homes of vulnerable populations. We have our
pillowcase project which teaches children grades three through five how to prepare for
disasters, the science behind disasters, and coping techniques. And they also get a
pillowcase to take home to make their own disaster kits and share that with their
families and hopefully their friends and further that disaster preparedness. We have
our ready rating which is a free online website for businesses, schools, and
organizations to assess their readiness. Ninety-seven percent of our workforce is
volunteer. Hundreds of volunteers work more than 12 hours to respond within 2 hours
of a disaster occurring to provide immediate assistance. Volunteers don't recruit or
train or mobilize themselves. We need staff and infrastructure for this. We leverage
volunteers to do the work and so we are a highly efficient and cost-effective organization.
For everyone's sake, we need a strong Red Cross and we humbly ask for your support.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony. Any questions for the lady?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Real quickly. When you talk disasters, you're not only
talking major disasters, you're talking like house fires, flooding, anything that someone
would be displaced or unable to use the facility they have been occupying, is that
correct?
MS. PIRTLE: Yes, sir. Yes, sir, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you very much. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other questions for the lady? Having none, thank you so much
for your testimony.
MS. PIRTLE: Thank you, everyone.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Margit Tolman? Following her will be William Knowlton.
MS. TOLMAN: Good afternoon, Chair Riki Hokama, County Council. My name is Margit
Tolman and I operate a two-bedroom bed and breakfast in Haiku. It was brought to my
attention that the proposed property tax for a commercial residence will increase my
taxes 40 percent. Since no other category shows a proposed increase I feel singled out.
Other homeowners allowed to use part of their home for business are not getting taxed
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at all nor do they lose their homeowner exemption. My small bed and breakfast is not
generating an income which can support a property tax increase of this size. In 2010 I
lost my homeowner exemption and was classified Commercial Residential. With my
B&B license my property tax increase 170 percent or 2.7 times what it was previously.
I'm living on my property and yet have to pay higher taxes on both homes and land.
Even without a significant tax rate change, the last past five years my property tax
increased almost 18 percent due to higher assessments. In 2015, I generated about
$3,000 in transient accommodation taxes and I provided jobs for 4 residents and Maui
visitors are spending thousands of dollars in our Upcountry areas and shops and
restaurants. I do not understand the purpose of this proposal. More tax income could
be generated with a higher compliance rate. Small unlicensed B&B owners are
concerned about property tax increase and don't get properly licensed. For one or twobedroom operations it is just not affordable. Our small B&Bs on Maui are mom and
pop operations. They support families to meet ends needs paying mortgages, colleges,
or supporting retirement. I suggest to consider lowering the rate to 4.26 percent to
become consistent with all other categories. Thank you for listening and considering
my concerns.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Tolman, for being here this afternoon. Any questions for the
lady? Having none, Members, Ms. Tolman, thank you. William Knowlton. Following
Mr. Knowlton will be Maile Davis.
MR. KNOWLTON: Good morning...good afternoon, Chair and Budget and Finance Committee
Members. I have three transmittals. Two from myself and one I'm the messenger for
the mailman from Malama Hamakua Maui. A couple of weeks ago I read in the
newspaper that there, the Chair wanted a ruling and not an opinion or an interpretation
on the status of the community plans. So I, one of my first transmittal is a publication
in West's® Hawaii Reports and Pacific Reporter. It's talking about the GATRI case in
Kihei and which is a Maui case as you know and states, accordingly the Supreme Court
has determined that the community plan before us is a legislative enactment with the
full force and effect of law. The second transmittal I'd like to give to the Council is
portions of the Paia-Haiku Community Plan from 1995 which is still in effect, Pages 11,
20, and 21. On Page 11, second paragraph, it states that inadequate implementation
and enforcement of the Paia-Haiku Community Plan was identified as another issue in
this region. Moreover, current regulations contain loopholes and ways to circumvent
the public review process for major projects. The use of variance procedures has been
cited as a problem in several instances. Where I live on Holokai Road there is an ag
subdivision right next door to me and nobody is doing ag except for 1 out of 22 people.
The house next door to me is up for sale. The last time I looked on the web it was up at
$1.8 million. The person bought it for $1.3 million and what I get out of it is my property
rates go up even though my house is 25 years old and is decreasing in value. A couple
other things in the Haiku-Paia Community Plan, this goes to the heart of Hamakualoa;
identify, protect, preserve, and where appropriate restore significant archaeological and
cultural sites and resources unique to the State of Hawaii and island of Maui and require
development projects to identify all archaeological and cultural sites and resources.
That's not being done. And the last thing I'd like to read is that it states, implement a
historic or cultural district overlay ordinance to provide protection for areas of
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significant archaeological, historical, and cultural resources including Kuiaha Bay and
Kaupakalua Gulch. Just very briefly, I have an online petition here which has Malama
Hamakua on it, people's names, their location, and the date that they signed this
petition. If this is acceptable, I would like to present it. And if it's not acceptable, are
there any suggestions on how to do online petitions? There's 8 Pages, 250 people have
signed this online. So may I please give it to one of your Staff?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. Yeah, give it to our Staff. Thank you.
MR. KNOWLTON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any questions for Mr. Knowlton on testimony given? Thank you very much
for your comments this afternoon. Maile Davis? And following her will be Lilia Davis.
MS. M. DAVIS: Hi, my name is Maile Davis. It takes a lot for me to do this so I'm here today
because it's really important to me. I haven't done this since I was eight years old and
today I brought my daughter and she's going to speak as well. But it's really nice to see
the community. My Aunty Penny is here, my father-in-law used to sit with you guys.
So I'm here on behalf with for my family, my husband Jonathan, and four daughters for
the Peahi land acquisition. I grew up right next door. I can hear the ocean from my
house. Speaking to Mr. Knowlton who was actually my teacher at Haiku School, I also
want to say that we are one, the only house in our subdivision that has a farm plan and
actively farms the land in our subdivision. So I am all in support for open farm spaces,
open land, just keeping it open. My great-grandfather and mother are buried down on
the bottom and I'd like to believe that they would want it open for everybody as well and
just open. Leave it open, leave it for the public. I don't know what else to say, that I
just support it and I believe in it and thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Davis. Any questions for the lady? Thank you very much
for being here. Lilia Davis, please? Following her will be Teya Penniman.
MS. L. DAVIS: Hi everybody. My name is Lilia Davis. I am in eighth grade at St. Anthony and
I will be attending Kamehameha Schools Maui next year. I would like to testify in
support of the North Shore purchase because I am currently growing up in Haiku and
have been my whole life and I would like to see Haiku the same as it is now in the future.
I think it is important to keep the land public for future generations because once the
My great-grandparent,
land is bought you can never take it back again.
great-great-grandparents are buried nearby and I believe that they would like the land
to be open to the public. It is somewhere I enjoy riding horses with my grandpa and
watching surfers surf in the winter. I feel that Hamakua should be something for
everybody in the future. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Lilia. Any questions for the lady on her testimony, Members?
Thank you for being here. Teya Penniman, followed by Araelia Livingston.
MS. PENNIMAN: Aloha, Chair Hokama, Councilmembers. Teya Penniman, with the Maui
Invasive Species Committee. It's been a long session I know. These are the things that
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I know at this point. So I know that you support work on invasive species. I know that
you want to be sure you're allocating funds that are actually needed and will, get used.
And you hope that you're not inundated with calls or testimony from residents in the
Maliko Gulch area next year. I'm concerned however there is some misunderstandings
about our funding. I know you will make the best decision that you can on behalf of
Maui County taxpayers and my objective is just to be sure you're doing so with the best
and most accurate information available. That said, there are five issues I want to cover
real quickly. There's a perception that MISC and MoMISC currently have• 200,000
available to use from Fiscal Year '15. The reality is those funds have been fully
expended. We have about, we left about 56 cents left in that account. That account
closed at the end of last month and I provided a spreadsheet covering, detailing those,
that funding. There's a perception that we don't need full funding for Fiscal Year '17
because Fiscal Year '16 funds will last for 12 months. The reality is that OED funds
don't last us for 12 months. They cover only a portion of our costs and our grant
revenues are lumpy, they come in at different times. We project that the funding from
this year will last only about seven months or until about December of 2016. There is
a perception we've been delinquent in applying for funds. The reality is that we have
fully complied with all OED guidelines in terms of applying for and expending funds
within established grant timelines. Applying by a certain date has never been a
precondition for future funding for us before. If this issue is ensuring a better match to
the County fiscal year, I can assure you that we're not only willing to do so, we have to
do that this year in order to not run out of funds and that we will be applying for funds
in July or August, as soon as possible. There is also I think a perception that the
$300,000 for coqui work will help recover a potential loss of 400,000. That's simply not
correct. Those funds will help us cover the gap in funding for coqui frogs. Last year we
spent nearly 5...last Fiscal Year we spent about $500,000 on coqui frogs before we had
any additional funding. A reduction in FY '17 funding will mean a reduction in coqui
work. The 300K is needed over and above other State and County funding. I think
there is also a perception that a loss of $400,000 will not have a negative impact in
MISC or MoMISC. That's simply not true. We already need to raise about 300,000 or
$400,000. This will push us to needing to raise about $800,000 and at that point the
battle against coqui frogs and the little fire ants is becoming questionable. I know I'm
close to running out of time. I have one proposed win-win solution that would address
the concerns that I hear you raising and that would be that you allocate the full $1.4
million to the Environmental Fund, you include a proviso that 895 of that go to the
MISC and MoMISC projects with an additional provision that 300,000 of that is held
until we come back to you to demonstrate that we need that funding. That will achieve
the objective of you're being fiscally prudent and the onus is clearly on us to show you
that we need that funding. Thank you for your consideration.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony, Ms. Penniman. Questions for the lady on
her testimony, Members? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, thank you. And thank you, Ms. Penniman, for being
here and even at the wee hours that we are. Can you repeat that very last ending that
you had to quickly spit out there in regards to the win-win solution you have? The
dollar amounts and how they're allocated?
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MS. PENNIMAN: Yes. Basically, you restore the funding to the $1.4 million for the
Environmental Fund Protection ensuring that you have adequate funding for all the
other projects as well. And then you include a proviso that $895,000 is available for the
MISC and MoMISC project with an additional, I guess it's a proviso with a proviso, that
300,000 of that is held back unless and until we come and demonstrate the need for it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MS. PENNIMAN: So you're still being, from my perspective you're still being fiscally prudent
and we don't have to come back to you with a Budget amendment request if we find that
you know what, we really do need that funding. And hopefully you don't get the calls
from, as many calls from Maliko residents.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And, Chair, one follow-up? And I see your last sentence
too and this was, been my question, you also mention the fire ants, so because the
wording currently in the proposed budget is for coqui in itself, does that prevent you
from utilizing it for fire ants? So is that how it works?
MS. PENNIMAN: No. I think that there would be, my understanding is that what's currently
proposed is 300,000 that's specifically for coqui frogs, and then whatever we would get
from the normal grant process under OED. So there would still be funding for, available
for little fire ants.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Very good.
MS. PENNIMAN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Penniman. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Real quickly. Thank you, Teya. And thank you for the
clarification, now it's, you know, in black and white as I'd ask Chair, I think everyone
needs to see that. So you're saying restore the 1,400,000 and then take out the 300,000
that was put in specifically for coqui frogs, but wait now, that's not the way I got it okay.
So now you got to explain.
MS. PENNIMAN: Thanks for clarifying.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, because you just said put it, additional $300,000 out
of that same fund. That was your words. So I'm looking at the 1.4. So...
MS. PENNIMAN: Oh, oh. Okay. No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes. You see what you just said?
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MS. PENNIMAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Can you clarify what you're trying to get across to us?
MS. PENNIMAN: Yes, thank you for asking for that. What I'm suggesting is that if we came
back and demonstrated to you yes we actually need the full funding that we've had in
previous years for kind of our general operations. That would be $895,000, let's round
to 900, plus the 300,000 for the coqui.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But the 300,000 would stay in that separate fund -MS. PENNIMAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --until proven you'll be able to utilize it.
MS. PENNIMAN: So basically what you would be committing to would be -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: One point seven..
MS. PENNIMAN: --600...900,000 with a proviso for an additional 300. Of that 900, 300 would
be already committed to coqui frogs.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: See what I'm trying to get from you, Teya, is out of the 1.4,
the 1,400,000 or the 1,400,000, 800, 900, and 300,000 which has been a separate item
which Mr. Hokama put in.
MS. PENNIMAN: Right. So you're talking 1.7 million total.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Yeah, because you got to get it straight because
the way you explained it, at least I'm picking it up like okay out of the 1.4. I don't think
that's what you meant.
MS. PENNIMAN: No. No that's not what I'm proposing. And just for perspective -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
MS. PENNIMAN: --last year it was 1.4 plus 1.2. So it was 2.6 million.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I know it was something special and Mr. White worked very
hard to get that. So thank you very much, Teya. I appreciate it.
MS. PENNIMAN: Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, if it's alright, I mean we're getting more into stuff we
could do in the Committee. Is it alright if we, 'cause I have a few questions too if we can
bring her back when it, when the item comes back up?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, thanks.
MS. PENNIMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Ms. Penniman. Araelia Livingston, come on
down. Do we have the other, mic for the young lady please?
MS. LIVINGSTON: My name is Araelia, and I'm here to testify 'cause I really want North Shore
open space and I really want space to play. It's really important for me.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you -MS. LIVINGSTON: You're welcome.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --for sharing your thoughts. And your last name, Araelia?
MS. LIVINGSTON: Livingston.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you so much for being here this afternoon.
MS. LIVINGSTON: You're welcome.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Anything else you wanted to share with us?
MS. LIVINGSTON: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. That's fine. You did a good job. Thank you. Stan Franco, please?
And following Mr. Franco will be Daniel Grantham.
MR. FRANCO: Good afternoon, Chair and Members of the Budget and Finance Committee. I
don't know how I follow that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Tough act, tough act.
MR. FRANCO: You know we've been talking and hearing about we want land to be set aside
for open space and I come from Haiku. I lived all my life in Haiku so I agree with that.
But I'm not speaking about that today. I'm talking about the land that Don Guzman
put aside for land acquisition, the old Hale Mua site. And I remember that project well
because we supported it, FACE Maui supported that project way back when. And we
continue to try to make sure that the Council and everybody on this island understands
that we need land to build affordable housing on for our people. I have three kids.
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They're all on the mainland. You know it breaks my heart when I see children that are
born and raised here that have the values here that have to live on the mainland because
they cannot live out their life here. We, and I'm 72 and some of you are a little bit
younger than I am, we have a responsibility for our next generation and the generations
to come. So what we are proposing at FACE Maui is that we really look at getting land
so that we can build affordable housing. So we support the idea of the land acquisition
for affordable housing. One of the other things that we're talking about is a housing
czar. This came up over ten years ago. I saw Tom Blackburn here for a while and
Gladys was there with the Maui Nui Housing Task Force and their, they made, I think
the title was Affordable Housing Administrator. We're looking at calling it a Housing
Czar. We don't want that position to be in the County. We want it to be with a nonprofit
who has experience in housing development. That a community organization that will
follow these needs that we have, maybe help acquire more land and follow the lands
that, the affordable housing that's been entitled or we have talked about and we have
agreements for and make sure those agreements are followed. Our people need for us
as a community to build affordable housing, something that's not 500,000 and 600,000
because our people can't afford it. If we're going to be aligned with the tourist industry
for the foreseeable future then we need to make homes for those people and its
incumbent upon us, the seniors, the kupuna, to make that happen. So I call on you to
support the land acquisition of Hale Mua for affordable housing. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Franco. Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you, Mr. Franco, for your
testimony. Which, where is Hale Mua?
MR. FRANCO: Waiehu. I think it's Kahekili and Lower Waiehu Beach Road intersection across
the macadamia nut farm.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Hale Mua is the old original Sterling Kim Project.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, the old da kine project.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sterling Kim Project.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sterling Kim Project. Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And that's in the Budget? I didn't see that anywhere in the
Budget.
MR. FRANCO: I understand it is and that's why I'm here.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Alright, thanks.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: It's a proposal that I put forward.

-25-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 29, 2016

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other questions? Hold on, Members. Any other questions please
for Mr. Franco?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Franco, thank you for that testimony.
MR. FRANCO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Appreciated. Daniel Grantham, please? Following Mr. Grantham will be
Phyllis Robinson.
MR. GRANTHAM: Good afternoon, Councilmembers and Chair Hokama. This is always nice
to hear people coming and telling all the great things they're doing with the money the
County gives. Thank you for coming out to Haiku the other day. I don't want to repeat
what I said at that time. But I do want to say I've never seen so much public energy
behind a question except this request to purchase the land on the North Shore and in
that light I want to read you a letter from formerly the head teacher, now the Principal
at ROOTS School in Haiku, it does preschool to grade eight. They have about 60
students. She says aloha, I am requesting that you approve Don Guzman's Budget
proposal for the North Shore open space acquisition. I've spent the last ten years in
Haiku working with students and their families to establish a small progressive school.
Within this time, it's become clear that the people of the North Shore have a shared
vision. We want to see historic lands preserved for cultural practices and we want to
continue to enjoy this land for the purpose of our mental and physical health. ROOTS
School would love to incorporate the rich cultural histories from these areas in to our
local history curriculum bringing it to life. This could be an incredible experience for
children and could further help motivate the youth of Haiku to give back. We do not
want to continue to see lands important to the community sold off to developers. We
need to preserve our special lands for future generations. When teaching classes on
democracy and government, students often have many examples of how our current
systems and officials do not actually support the environment or our communities.
Please let this be one example of democracy in action. Please help to renew hope in our
democratic government system by listening to the people and approving $6.5 million
from existing open space funds to purchase 85.3 acres of amazing North Shore coast.
Thank you for your time. Melita Charan, ROOTS School. I have some more petition
signatures to share here. I also want to support the funding for MISC and I mean we
can learn to adapt to coqui frogs but we certainly can't to fire ants and there's plenty of
other things out there too. So please support Maui Invasive Species. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Grantham. Any questions for the gentleman?
Mr. Grantham, thank you again. Phyllis Robinson, please? And following her will be
Gerald Durkan.
MS. ROBINSON: Chair Hokama, esteemed Councilmembers, my name is Phyllis Robinson. I
am the Vice President of the Haleakala Chapter of the Hawaii Farmers Union United.
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And I just want to thank all of you for your ongoing support of our farm apprentice
mentoring program. We're very excited about bringing on ten new farmers into the
program starting in September. I'm here today to also talk about another part of my
role with the Farmers Union which is grant writing. And I've left my computer to come
and explain to you about the $12,000 that we are requesting to help match a Federal
grant that I am writing and this is a USDA grant, it's the Local Food Promotion Program
which is going to help us create a feasibility study and a business plan for a food hub
that will service the school lunch program. And we are looking at, in the grant we are
looking for three possible sites for a food hub and those food hubs are essential for us
to be able to provide processing, aggregation, training on food safety, and also the ability
to attract ag tourism dollars to help our farmers. So it's a wonderful program. We have
excellent people. David Fisher who you all know will be writing the business plan for
this grant we're proposing. And Jenny Pell will be helping us to do the feasibility study
she has created, from soup to nuts, a food hub, a successful one in Oregon which I
believe that Councilmember Guzman has actually visited. So we're very excited about
that. The $12,000 we're asking for is a part of the match. It's a $100,000 grant, it's a
$33,000 overall match that's required. The rest of the matching funds will be coming
from the Hawaii Department of Agriculture. So we hope that you will see your way clear
to giving us this $12,000 as a letter match and knowing that if we don't get the grant
that you will not be requested to give us the money. So that's all I have to say and I also
support the Hamakua coast proposal and MISC. I hope you see a way clear to keeping
your support of the Maui Invasive Species Committee in their fight for fire ants because
as you know it has a profound effect and will have a profound effect on our agriculture.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Robinson. Any questions for the lady? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Just for clarification. Is the total grant with the Federal,
State, and potential County funding, is that 100,000 or are we getting 100,000 from the
Federal government and then the other 2 are added on top of that?
MS. ROBINSON: That's right, it's a total of a 133,333.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Great. Thank you.
MS. ROBINSON: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other questions for Ms. Robinson?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Ms. Robinson?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you for being here and the work you do. You mentioned
something about three different sites, potential sites. Can you just briefly...
MS. ROBINSON: Say what those would be?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
MS. ROBINSON: Well, we looked at a site in Haiku which has potential. It's on East Kuiaha
and Hana Highway and that has tremendous potential. I believe there's 22 acres, 7 of
which would be for the Fire Department. And then the other potential site would be on
or near the Tropical Plantation which would mean it would be centrally located. And
the third site would be on the West Side and we have not determined what that site
would be. We did hear from James Simpliciano who's the president of our Mauna
Kahalawai chapter and he indicated that he had a storage facility that could be
expanded upon, that's part of the Kamehameha Schools program that he is currently
farming and he's also a mentor for our FAM program.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Well, thank you. Thank you for being here.
MS. ROBINSON: Sure.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you, Ms. Robinson, for your
testimony. So when you said there's three sites, is that three alternatives or is it a food
hub at each site?
MS. ROBINSON: It's three alternatives because this grant is really to look at the feasibility of
a pilot and we want to build capacity to be able to carry that out. And so we will do a
comparative analysis of these three different sites and by the end of our process we hope
to be able to determine which is the best site for the pilot.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Other questions, Members? Ms. Robinson, thank you so much for
your presence.
MS. ROBINSON: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Before we bring up Mr. Durkan, we'll check with our District Offices. They've
been waiting for a while. So Hana Office, Ms. Lono, anyone wishing to provide
testimony, please?
MS. LONO: Good afternoon, Chair. This is Dawn Lono at the Hana Office and there is no one
waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Lono. Ms. Fernandez, anyone on Lanai?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good afternoon, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez on Lanai and there is no
one waiting to testify.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Alcon, anyone on Molokai wishing to provide testimony?
MS. ALCON: Good afternoon, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai and there is no one here
waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much, ladies. We would ask for Gerald Durkan, if
you would come forward and share your testimony please? Following Mr. Durkan will
be Stacia Ash.
MR. G. DURKAN: Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen. I'm here to speak in support of the
Jaws properties. I live on Kauhikoa Road in Haiku. I have eight children. I'm a
neurologist in active retirement. I'm an avid bicyclist. I do a lot of road biking and
mountain biking. One of my sons who's going to testify today is a big wave surfer. He
has surfed Jaws on numerous occasions. I've had several people come and visit and
stay with me who are also big wave surfers. This area is fantastic. I hope some of you
have had a chance to see it. You've probably seen it in some of the movies, the most
recent was Point Break 2. There were quite a few scenes of Jaws. I'm just going to read
a little thing here. This area is rich in native Hawaiian cultural sites and landscapes.
It hosts endangered species. It possesses an expanse of breathtaking scenic beauty of
both the coastal shoreline and Maui's Haleakala. It offers shoreline access at several
points along the coast and is the backdrop of the iconic Peahi surf break also known as
Jaws. I'd ask your support in purchasing this area. Once it's gone, it's gone as the
young lady said before. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Durkan. Any questions for the gentleman? Thank you very
much for attending the meeting.
MR. G. DURKAN: And thank you for your attention.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Stacia Ash? Following her will be Michael Kehano.
MS. ASH: Aloha. Good afternoon, Council Chair and Councilmembers. Thank you for giving
me the opportunity to testify and for your consideration. I'm here on behalf of the
Department of Environmental Management, Environmental Protection and
Sustainability Division. My name is Stacia Ash and I'm the TA Recycling Coordinator.
My request today is that you reconsider and opt to fund the entire EP&S expansion
budget as requested at $5,060,000. EP86S recently put out the CMO organics diversion
RFP and unfortunately it came in at approximately a million dollars more than we
expected. DOH does require the County of Maui to divert the green waste from that
landfill and as a result we must fund this project. However, we're in a conundrum
because we've found looking closer at our numbers that if we do, EP&S will need to
significantly reduce a number of other contracts in our contractual services subject
object code to accommodate the million-dollar shortfall. This includes services to most
communities and all islands including, we may have to close the County recycling
centers in Haiku, Makawao, Kihei, Hana, and Kahului, and thereby cancel the
processing contract for the materials received at those centers. We may have to close
the Molokai recycling center, otherwise known as Recycle Molokai. We may have to
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significantly limit metals collections in both Lanai and Hana. So one solution that we've
come up with looking at our numbers is that if Council were to agree to increase the
rates and fees on bio solids from $90 to $103 and commercial green waste from $25 to
$36 and simultaneously lower the grease trap and the used oil fee from $67 down to
$40. That would significantly help us by both reducing the amount of money that we
need to come up with and by creating the revenue needed to fund the CMO organic
diversion project and also enable us to continue with our other existing contractual
services and programs in contracts under that. Therefore, EP&S humbly requests that
Council consider granting the full expansion funding to EP&S of at least $696,000 in
addition. Thank you very much for your consideration.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Ash. Members, any questions for the lady? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you, Ms. Ash, for being here.
Do you have those proposed rate changes in writing that you could send to us please?
MS. ASH: I do.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other questions for Ms. Ash? Having none, thank you very much
for sharing your thoughts with us.
MS. ASH: Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Michael Kehano? And following Mr. Kehano will be Tamara Farnsworth.
MR. KEHANO: Good afternoon, Chair, Councilmembers. My name is Michael Kehano. I'm
the Assistant Solid Waste Division Chief. I'm testifying on behalf of the EP&S Division.
In light of the shortfall in the Highway Beautification Fund, I want to stress the
importance of continuing to fund the Abandoned Vehicle Program and its two positions.
As you know, abandoned vehicles have been a big problem in the past before I got here.
But I know it was a huge problem. Funding this program will continue to prevent that
from becoming a problem again. The two full-time positions are dedicated positions
necessary to keep this program running and run it in compliance with State laws
because there's certain things that have to be done a certain way. I humbly request
that you reconsider funding the shortfall in the Highway Beautification Fund. Thank
you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Kehano. Questions for the gentleman? Having none, thank
you for the testimony. Tamara Farnsworth, please? And following Ms. Farnsworth will
be Torsten Durkan.
MS. FARNSWORTH: Good afternoon, Chair, Councilmembers. Thank you so much for hearing
my testimony. I just saw you a couple days ago so thank you for considering. I'm
respectfully urging this Committee to restore monies to both the EP&S which Stacia was
talking about and the Highway Beautification Fund Budget requests. I am one of the
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people he was just talking about and we saw that there's potential, the proviso was
removed. And so I'm concerned about personally of course, but also for the County. As
far as the EP&S budget she mentioned that we are possibly going to have to cut the
Hana and Lanai metals collection events if our budget is cut or not restored. And so we
do have some real concerns about that. In addition, we may not be able to fund a full
year of white goods processing for the residents of Maui island. And so we have some
real concerns about that. I know it's all mixed up with the, that, the CMO green waste
contract issue. However, we do you know we are able to separate some of those monies
out for you to take a look at if you want to kind of break it down a little bit more. I think
we've submitted some of that to you but we'd be happy to give you more information
about that. And as far as Highway Beautification Fund, our favorite subject, this funds
partially both the Metals program, some of the metals programs as well as all of the
Abandoned Vehicles programs and Malama Maui Nui, part of their grant. I am very
concerned that we're not going to be able to fund all of our towing contracts this year
and that means that we won't be able to pick up abandoned vehicles on the side of the
road if we don't get all of our funding. I've submitted the, my contract amounts for that
as well in writing, testimony a couple of days ago and I'd be happy to provide those
numbers for you. Those are pretty basic amounts that we are looking to use over the
span of the year. So I'm really hoping that we can fund those all the way through.
Additionally, Malama Maui Nui, they're funded out of our operations in the Abandoned
Vehicles and Metals section for the hot spot illegal dumping portion of their grant. And
so basically we're kind of looking at potentially all kind junks piling up on the, in our
public spaces and it's, you know, we really are hoping that you can see the value of
funding our programs in full as requested. I do understand we're facing a major shortfall
in that fund. And so I would urge the Council to, if it's in your power to enact an
increase in the $5 Highway Beautification Fee that is charged with registration of
vehicles to $10. I think that can help the shortfall greatly. And I'm urging you to
consider the impacts of a reduced budget. I just, I really respect what you guys are
doing and I see the arduous task before you and everybody fighting for money. And so
thank you very much for your hard work. I really mean that. I see what you're doing,
and thank you for your consideration. Mahalo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Farnsworth. Members, any questions for the lady on
testimony presented?
MS. FARNSWORTH: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Farnsworth, we thank you again for sharing your thoughts. Torsten
Durkan, please? And following Mr. Durkan will be Roy Katsuda.
MR. T. DURKAN: She's pretty tall. Howzit guys. My name is Torsten. I also want to thank
you guys for doing everything that you do. You guys have a really, really hard job; one
that I wouldn't really want to have, you guys have a lot of responsibility. But yeah I am
a big wave surfer. I surf out at Jaws; I have for the last, about four years now paddling
in and out there. And I think I speak on behalf of all the surfers that surf around the
world out there that seeing the land around Jaws developed would be a catastrophe.
You know the idea of me having to walk through a millionaire's backyard to go surf is
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appalling. It wouldn't be a good thing and the environmental impacts as well with all
the runoff from development would affect the reef which I also spearfish out there on
occasion and a lot of my friends do as well. And the economic benefits that we get from
Jaws I think is a gem because I think people choose to come to Maui because, over the
other islands because we have Jaws. You know there's thousands of people come here
to Maui County. I work on a tourist boat at Pacific Whale Foundation and everybody
asks me about Jaws. You know even when I don't even tell them. And they, even in
summer time they come here and they go, oh, is Jaws breaking? It's like, no, it's flat.
But yeah, so I really, I hope that you guys set aside the money, the $6.5 million to buy
the land around Jaws. I think it would be a treasure for our future generations and all
the surfers that will continue to surf out there and on the big wave stage. I recently did
a project called Surfing Because where I had businesses and individuals and pledge
money per foot of the biggest wave that I surfed and then I donated that money towards
coral conservation research and the biggest wave that I surfed this year out of all the
places that I surfed around the world was at Jaws and it was 50 feet. And I donated
$2,500 towards coral conservation research at University of Hawaii. So it's another way
and I'm considering, I'm going to do different projects every year and so that's another
reason why I think this place is very special. I also am conducting a beach cleanup at
Jaws on May 14. I partnered up with Surf Rider Foundation and Rodney Kilborn,
Handsome Bugga Productions, if you guys know of him. So we're conducting a beach
cleanup on May 14 and I ask you guys if you guys want to come out I invite you guys
and see the community support that we have. There's going to be a lot of people coming
out and you'll see firsthand all the people that are supporting this and the land around
there. It's very special to all of us. And then you also give back so it's awesome. So I
hope to see you guys out there and aloha and thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Durkan. Any questions for the gentleman? Having none.
Thank you again for sharing your thoughts.
MR. T. DURKAN: Thank you, guys.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Roy Katsuda, please? Followed by Jennifer Cox.
MR. KATSUDA: Thank you, Chair Hokama, good afternoon. My name is Roy Katsuda. I'm
the Executive Director at Hale Mahaolu. I don't mean to be a pest and see you two days
in a row. But I want to say that first of all, I always marvel at all the things you've got
to go through to do these Budget hearings. So congratulations and you have my
condolences as well. But I was surprised to learn just a couple days ago of the removal
of the $2.5 million from the Affordable Housing Fund for the Hale Mahaolu Ewalu Senior
Housing project. So please bear with me while I reiterate some of my testimony. A few
years ago the County of Maui provided $3.5 million to purchase the land. Hale Mahaolu
added a half a million to secure water and sewer services. In the meantime, we've also
contributed about $2 million to do the archaeological surveys, architecture plans, 201H
applications and so forth. The Council approved the 201H application for this project.
I kind of forgot maybe a year, it might be longer than that. We sought input from the
community agencies and we did not receive any negative comments. This project is
shovel ready. Per our architect, the plans, engineering, all of that, we're 99 percent
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complete, DCAB permits 99 percent complete. It's my understanding that when the
Department of Housing and Human Concerns requested applications for the Affordable
Housing Fund that the funds were indeed available. I ask the Budget Committee to
confirm that these funds are still available and I'm hoping they are and I ask you to
approve our $21/2 million for the Hale Mahaolu Ewalu Senior Housing Project. Thank
you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony, Mr. Katsuda. Questions, Members, for
Mr. Katsuda? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. And thank you, Mr. Katsuda, for
being here. And don't feel bad about being here two days in a row. A lot of us have
been here longer.
MR. KATSUDA: That I know.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Some of the testifiers are becoming like family members. But this
money that we took out, my understanding is this project is multi-funded and
dependent upon lots of pieces coming together. If we don't get this piece, what happens
to the other pieces?
MR. KATSUDA: Well, we do applications everywhere. But this piece is critical. The State
Legislature has approved $4 million. If this doesn't come through, it's likely that the
$4 million will lapse. I just got word this morning that the Legislature approved another
million and a half and we're hoping that we can use this to complete either more
residential units 'cause we're doing this in phases, more residential units or even apply
it towards the adult daycare center. This will also affect our low-income housing tax
credit application. That and the rental housing trust fund is about another
$11.5 million. It affects our Federal Home Loan Bank application. Jeanette, I mean the
Weinberg Foundation has pledged their support. If this project doesn't go through of
course the support doesn't come in. That wouldn't make sense if it came in. So it
wouldn't come in and in all likelihood well the adult daycare center won't get built. So
it does affect a lot. I would say this $21/2 million probably has implications or impact to
another $21-$22 million if you count the almost $2 million that Hale Mahaolu has
provided. So it does have quite a bit of impact.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you for that information. You know that's really important
because then we're not just losing a little bit, we're losing everything, a lot.
MR. KATSUDA: It would be very difficult for us to move forward on this project without this
$21/2 million.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. Thank you very much. And thank you for all your
hard work.
MR. KATSUDA: Thank you.
- 33 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 29, 2016

CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other questions for Mr. Katsuda? Mr. Katsuda, I think in your
testimony you raise a good point and that is what we are going to be working with. We're
trying to verify what is -MR. KATSUDA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --the actual balance that this Committee can recommend for funding for
projects.
MR. KATSUDA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Once we get a number that we can confidently say we can appropriate I'm
sure I'll bring back for the Committee Members to consider any projects that they
consider worthy from this fund.
MR. KATSUDA: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's our concern at this time. What is the balance that we can -MR. KATSUDA: Sure.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --appropriate out.
MR. KATSUDA: And I can appreciate that and I'll be crossing my fingers. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. So are we, Mr. Katsuda.
MR. KATSUDA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much for your testimony. Jennifer Cox? And following
Ms. Cox will be Tom Croly.
MS. COX: Aloha, Council. Thank you for having me here. I did not know I was testifying until
about five minutes ago so I apologize if my voice is shaky. Talking about the potential
cuts to the Abandoned Vehicles and the EP&S funding will directly and significantly
affect Malama Maui Nui and our ability to provide the programs that we do.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, can we get her name please?
MS. COX: I'm so sorry. I'm Jennifer Cox. I am the Community Relations Specialist at Malama
Maui Nui. Again first timer.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Relax, relax. Take a breath. Take your time. Take your time.
MS. COX: Okay. So as you know we do the quick response and as well as the assist the
County with their remote recycling programs. We go right along and do the
reconnaissance and clean up all the illegal dumpsites that are inevitably found
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unfortunately across our beautiful island. And so without, with potential cuts to
Abandoned Vehicles that will most likely be us that gets cut and then who will be left to
clean up those sites? Maui Police Department regularly gives us a call to help, for us to
go and assist them when there is an abandoned site to clean up. And again who will be
there to do that if we are not there? With the remote recycling events, we discussed
about that, we are working off of, we're already losing funding for programs for next year
FY 2017. We're already working at a deficit, a sub rate and more loss of funding will
only weaken our underlying, the belly that runs this program and then who will also be
left to vitalize the volunteers that do go out and clean up on a regular basis around the
island. So let me see, my ridiculous notes, as we know litter begets litter. So the more
that litter is left untouched, the more it will accrue. And not only is that an eye sore
that could, that decreases the quality of life for our residents as well as hurts our
tourism, it is also a health issue. Oftentimes these cars that are left on the side of the
road are stuffed with trash and household hazardous waste. That is a danger to our
flora and fauna and water and all sorts of things. So again our guys, our system is there
to quickly be able to respond to these sites and it would be a significant loss to the
community I believe if we were to be put in that position of being cut significantly. Thank
you so much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for being here, Ms. Cox. Members, any questions for the lady?
Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And thank you for being here. You did a very
good job. These sites you're saying that you go and do cleanup and also help assist our
Maui's finest, Police Department, can you give a guesstimate, the private lands, are
these actually County lands, are these State lands, is there a...
MS. COX: Yeah, we are only allowed to go on public lands. So which is why whenever
community members as well report illegal dumpsites we ask them to clarify and make
sure this is a public site. Otherwise we're not allowed to come on. Now whether it's
State or County I do not have that information but I am sure we can get that to you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. But there was a cleanup in West Maui. Kaanapali
Land Management's land, that's private. I was there.
MS. COX: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Anyways, before your time, I believe it's okay. Thank you.
MS. COX: No, but thank you, I mean but I'm happy to follow-up with that and -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MS. COX: --get that proper data to you.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Alright. Yeah. No, but thank you for the work you do.
MS. COX: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other questions for the lady? Having none, Ms. Cox, thank you
so much. Tom, come on down. Following Mr. Croly is Kathy Kaohu.
MR. CROLY: Aloha, Committee. I know it'll be another late night. I'm Tom Croly, and today
I'm testifying on my own behalf. Rest assured, I'm with you all the way until 1:30 in the
morning -CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MR. CROLY: --and I was with you, Chair, last night when you presented the justification for
the tax increase you suggested for the Commercialized Residential rate. And while I
don't agree with you obviously -CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MR. CROLY: --I do, I am committed to affordable housing on Maui and I work in many ways
to try to facilitate that. I do want to point out that the Commercialized Residential class
of property homeowners are Maui island residents who are already paying $383,000 on
top of their homeowner taxes because of their permits. And so we already are being
dinged for the ability to rent rooms out in our homes. I know that late, late tonight
when you guys are, have kind of had it, you're going to try to balance this Budget and
make it work. I urge you to go across the board with any increases and apply them
evenly and that at midnight or 1:00 in the morning or whenever it is, is not the time to
start discussing policy changes that you might make in shifting who's burden it is. I
think that Mr. Couch made a good presentation last night. Although I would say Mr.
Couch's presentation was taking about 1 percent off of everyone yet he suggested
keeping the Commercialized Residential at the same. So I'm not going to push that hard
for the 1 percent but let's treat everyone the same please. And again I wish you well.
I'll be rooting for you on Akaku and do the people's work. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Croly. We appreciate your testimony. Questions for the
gentleman? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I'd just like a clarification that to be truly with us you have to be in the
room.
MR. CROLY: There was one guy. I saw one guy last night on...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: There was more than one.
MR. CROLY: Okay.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Any questions for Mr. Croly? Having none, Mr. Croly, thank you. Kathy
Kaohu?
make it quick. I don't want to extend your meeting longer. Aloha.
MS. KAOHU: Aloha.
My name is Kathy Kaohu and I'm here before you today as an individual and full-time
resident of Maui County. Mahalo for having the foresight to include funding for the
acquisition of certain coastal lands located within the Kuiaha ahupuaa, within the moku
of Hamakualoa on Maui's North Shore last year. I support the reinstatement of the
proviso to the Open Space Fund that focuses in on the specific acquisition of lots 4, 5,
and 3 for a total of approximately 85 acres and including $6.5 million to support the
intention. The dollar amount is fair in light of having a solid comparable sale of a 41acre parcel within the subdivision purchased on December 22, 2014 for 2.2 million.
This parcel is currently under the ownership of an LLC and over the last year exploratory
drilling occurred resulting in the establishment of a water source for this lot. It is my
understanding that there are agents who have buyers that they represent with a primary
focus on lots three, four, and five, and now that there's a water source, now that a water
source has been established, three, four, and five become potentially more attractive to
perspective buyers. These three lots have been prioritized for initial acquisition over the
larger lots one and Oili Road for the following reasons; first and foremost, lot four serves
as the piko or center for this area and is the location of the three terrace heiau at
Waikekena located at Hanapopolo recorded as walker site 60. Lots three, four, and five
are contiguous, contiguously connected cultural landscapes of agriculture terraces and
alaloa remnants. The topography of the collective lots lends itself to easy line of sight
and earshot hearing from almost any point within this area adding to the ease of
management of that area. Management, maintenance, and the potential for farming,
education, restoration of cultural sites, and continued and restored use of the trails and
shoreline has already been proven by one dedicated and driven individual, Alex Bode
with the assistance of many helping hands cycling in and out over the years. And the
simplistic help from some secondhand riding lawnmowers and weed eaters. So it can
be done very simply, i.e. the sweat equity put into that place by Bode as summarized
yesterday by Councilmember Victorino. For the record, I join with others in supporting
now and over time the efforts of Councilmember Victorino to initiate and secure
partnerships and sponsorships for acquisition of the entire coastal stretch, makai to the
Hana Highway from Kuiaha Bay to the Oili Road parcel and recognize this to be a multiyear, multi-phase acquisition goal. With lots three, four, and five acquired with the
County of Maui, the County of Maui's Open Space Fund serving as the initial
commitment to the preservation of this last stretch of open lands. And mahalo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Kaohu, for your testimony this afternoon. Members, any
questions on testimony presented? Okay. Having none, Ms. Kaohu, thank you so much
for your -MS. KAOHU: Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: --testimony. Members, we're going to go back to the District Offices and ask
if anyone is interested there to give testimony. Ms. Lono, Hana Office, anyone wishing
to provide testimony? Hana Office, Ms. Lono, are you still with us?
MS. LONO: Yeah, there is no one waiting to testify at the Hana Office, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you so much for your help. Ms. Fernandez, Lanai, anyone wishing
to provide testimony?
MS. FERNANDEZ: There is no one waiting to testify at the Lanai Office.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Alcon, anyone on Molokai would like to give testimony?
MS. ALCON: There is no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much, ladies, for your assistance to the Committee.
Members, we have no further requests for testimony.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. With no objections...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We was ready for close that one already.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That was called advanced channeling. So okay with no objections, we shall
close testimony for today's meeting.
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so ordered. Members, Staff and I need a break as you do. So we'll
be in recess til 3:15. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

ITEM 1:

2:57 p.m.
3:21 p.m.

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2017 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY
OF MAUI (CC 16-29)
EXHIBIT "1" (MATRIX)
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CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . . Okay, we shall return to order. We shall go through capital
improvement revisits. My first, direct you to Page 43 line 1327. North Kihei Mauka
Transmission System. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: One three two seven? I'm sorry, Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, Page 43, 1327.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's why I went to that page.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Line 1327.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes, Mr. Chair, as I mentioned before and now, is this in the
Sewer Fund yeah?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. As I mentioned before, this is the, you know, we keep,
there are comments being made that we put development before infrastructure and this
is a chance to start the infrastructure where we know development is going already. So
this is, I believe this is design money so I request that it be put back in.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other comments, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I guess what my question to Mr. Couch is how long before
these developments come along?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, we passed out of Committee but it hasn't quite got through
Council yet a large Change in Zoning in this exact area. So as soon as they get their
unilateral agreement handled and they're going to start in the next year or so.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: With the permit, they have all the permitting already? I'm
just asking 'cause we try not to put money in something that's going to be a long term
off. I agree, I'd like to get ahead of the curve, but that's all I'm asking.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right. This is just the design. This isn't the actual development
of it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Cochran?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Just wondering how Mr. Couch proposes, what's he going to
do in the Sewer Fund or is this, you're going to pay cash?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: This is in the Sewer Fund already.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. But how, but it's been deleted so you're going to raise
something in order to make it up?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, it's my understanding that the rates weren't, the Mayor's
rates were...
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would say from the adjustments you made last night at this point in time
if Mr. Couch and the Members are okay I'll make the adjustments. I don't think we need
to make adjustments to rates but I'll just adjust with your decisions made last night
and then let you know what is the fund balance.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But yeah, if, well again, depends how much -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --but this point in time the Staff and I will be able to make the adjustments
if the Committee wants to move this forward.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And thank you for that comment, Chair. So are you
suggesting this is also with other funds?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Not only just only Sewer?
CHAIR HOKAMA: This I know within the Sewer Fund from your decisions made last night.
There is a little play with the Sewer Fund at this -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay. Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --point in time. There's not a lot of play. But there is some play and that's
why I was saying dependent upon the total, at this point in time the Chair feels that we
can just, there's enough adjustments that we don't need to look at any changes in rates
and fees for this sewer project.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Within the cuts and whatnot I think we can make the balances work.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So I would say you don't have to go rake your brains on how you would
change Sewer rates or water collection fees or other things that enter into this pot.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Well, that's very helpful and good to know 'cause I have
been racking my brain for other sections; Water Fund, Solid Waste Fund, and on and
on funds, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we definitely are paying attention to the accounts. Because yeah, we
want to be able to tell you yes or no, there is this money, you can appropriate and you
can throw it in these following areas. You know again I don't think it's fair for us to look
at money and not be able to give them the check if they've already budgeting a check on
our actions. But I want to make sure you're, our actions is based on what we can truly
appropriate and not well this is a number, we forgot to tell you how much we
encumbered, we didn't count this expense so actually you only have half of what you
thought you had. If we, you know, I want to make sure we're basing our decisions on
monies you can spend. So that's why I'm, you know, on the revolving funds we are
reconfirming everything, everything.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: All right. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We're on 1327. Mr. Couch has asked to restore. Any other questions,
comments? Is there consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I guess my consensus is determined on my 200 I want to add
for Napili 4. So that's... and my one...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Understood.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I've got to stand up for my area.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Understood.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I think, so at this point because his is a future to roll out, the
project I'm looking at is existing. It's at its last living stages and potential sewer spills
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and who knows what can occur if we do not address this one and we had Mr. Nakagawa
here. Sorry, Chair, Page 45.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know what, we're going to get when we get there, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We're not at that project area yet.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So once we get there, happy to recognize you and you can make your request
then. Okay. Wait until we get to your district.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We're finishing up this one for North Kihei. So we're coming out of
this district. Okay. The next one is 1332 Kulanihakoi. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, especially in light of what Ms. Cochran said, I do support
her project. We are trying to get more use of R-1 water and putting this line in will help
us, I believe we heard the Division Chief say that this will help us be 100 percent use of
recycled water, this and the next project. I'd like to come back to this to see where we
are, Mr. Chair. I'm going to see what the other districts have and how much we have
left. Of course I would love both of these projects. But I'm willing to come back when
we find out where we are if we still have any money left.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. The Chair will give you one last chance and then after that it's -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --up or down.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. There's no time left. Okay. We'll return, Mr. Couch. Thirteen
sixty-five.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, this is my district and -CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --because it's just design and so I'm going to yield this year
because I know others need it much more. So long as Mr. Couch starts thinking along
those lines also. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Let's see, the next line I have is 1395, Ms. Cochran?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, Chair, and this is the Napili 4 Force Main Replacement.
It has been deleted, the $200,000 price tag and that was the comment in regards to
Mr. Couch's ask for the South Maui expansion. And would like to put this back and I
just had issues in trying to figure out where the money was going to come from.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So you're okay with deferred agreements and all that other concerns
you listed earlier?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I don't think 100 percent, Chair. But I know this is a legal
thing occurring currently in that reference. This project I know needs to happen and I
don't know if there's a way after the fact to recoup funds to address this or I, so I know
that's a separate, you know, ongoing issue and has been. But I think this particular
project cannot wait and it's in, they've gone through the design phase, they're ready for
construction. I'm just hoping they are going to connect with other departments to
coordinate of sorts and get that straightened out, whether it's through Public Works,
Water Department jobs all at the same time and which we've been, you know, harping
on them to do, and the Auditor. So there's yeah, you know, you're correct. There are
issues occurring. I wouldn't call them issues but there's some glitches, I'd put it that
way. But I think they can be worked out even with appropriating this money now to get
the job going.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, you know, this one and I watched the replay of the
meeting and I saw the importance of this one. So I can support. This one is a need, not
so much a want. Some of the other ones fall under wants right now. This is a definite
need. So I can support Ms. Cochran on this one.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You've heard Mr. Nakagawa give his comments why he felt this, he,
would ask for this reconsideration. Any other questions? Is there consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The next one I have is 1399. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, I guess this is in here correct?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, there's no revision.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, so I, there's no revision. But I think it was...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Somebody asked me 'cause I cannot...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah no it's me, oh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I have an RV on it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, no, it was me.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, the question she had, you had asked her if she wanted the
other one or this one. You gave her the option at the time and then after everything's
gone through I believe -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Four, five, and six.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --we have enough.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. And I believe that's correct. It was
upon waiting for Mr. Nakagawa's return to further elaborate on these three different
items and if he could forego one and maybe carry one or two on and, you know, go. And
it, we all I think heard him out that all are really slated to go, design and all that has
happened already. And just the sheer urgency, they all connect to one another and it
just, they need to happen concurrently. So yeah. And I know it's a big price tag,
Members and Chair, but I would like to continue to have it reinstated here or keep it in
the budget as written.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Other Members?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I would say Mr. Nakagawa performs what he says to Council. So
that's the other difference right, Members? He is one who gets things done, what, once
he tells Council he's going to do something. So I have no problem with Mr. Nakagawa.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. Very good. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We'll reinstate 3.2 and I believe this is borrowed money. So that'll
go
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: This is not Sewer Fund; this is Bond then? I mean I leave it
up to you folks to determine that but...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. I mean, you know, when I say borrowed, eventually the specific fund
will pay the -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --interest and principal back.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Yeah, right, right. Very good. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, could you restate what the reinstatement is?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Three point two million dollars.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: For?
CHAIR HOKAMA: For the construction funds for 5 and 6 Force Main Replacements. That's
on line -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Napili.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --1399.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Page 46.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Page 46.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah I thought we had consensus on that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah I thought so too but.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: She wanted, she had...
CHAIR HOKAMA: We had consensus on Force Main 3. Then the Department said they would
like 4 'cause they see 3 and 4 as one, basically one although they broke it up in two.
And they mention 5 and 6 is a joint out on their specs in bidding.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: But you hadn't taken it out.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: He had asked her to choose between the other...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Oh, I see. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, yeah.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Okay. The next project 1423. Next line. I have adjusted the
equipment bond from 3.37 million to 2.88 million. You've already seen some of the
adjustments. I moved one of the tractor trucks from borrowing back to the Department
with cash, made a decrease so they still get the truck without full blings. I think I shifted
or took out two street cleaners. But I think one of you might be interested in
reconsideration and that's fine. Let's see what else I cut out. Oh, the ladder truck for
South Maui, the 1.5. I cut that out. I left the pumper in or the engine at 1.2 I think
million. And that went to cash. So, Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I found Mr. Goode's rationale for the sweepers fairly
compelling. I'd like to restore one.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You have a specific district you, 'cause I think one was for Wailuku
and the other one was West Maui.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: My recollection, well, I don't recall which one was the one that was in
the worst shape but I would leave it up to him.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I thought he said Wailuku was the worst but -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: That's my recollection too but -CHAIR HOKAMA: --we can reverify it.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --I didn't want Ms. Cochran feeling like she needed to grab it for West
Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But I just gave her 200,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You guys do that amongst yourselves. I know nothing. I hear
nothing.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, whichever Mr. Goode feels is important, whether it's
Wailuku or Lahaina, I have no qualms. But I will ask for one back also, you know. I
don't care where it goes, but.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, yeah, no I love the street sweepers. Would love to and
I'd love to see two technically. I know that's like $620,000 ask. But so what I'm hearing
and if there's, and I believe, I gotta find it, it's in here. I found some money out of Bond
in order to purchase the one I'm looking for, for West Maui. So that's how I was going
to propose my equipment. That's how I was going to propose my equipment is delete,
dropping down a section and then utilizing that money that's offset to purchase.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Why don't you propose it because right now we are on equipment and this
is by Bond, the 2.8. So if you have a proposal why don't you share it with us at this
time please?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So it was discussed with Director Buenconsejo of Parks about
those ten toilet trailers.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And if all 10 were slated and he said no not all and they can
live with...he told my office 5. So I'm deducting 5 so that leaves a surplus of $375,000
and 1 sweeper is 310. So that is where I was going to offset that Bond Fund to
accommodate a $310,000 sweeper for West Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know I'm not, I do not like, and I'm going to say this very
honest, if you take something that's Countywide that these trailers were going to be
used all over the County, just not in West Maui, I'm not too happy with that kind of an
idea because then you hurt another district that may need it. Okay. So that's the only
thing. If you can find me someplace where it's from your area I got no problem to
support it and I will even back off from even asking for mine. But I, you know, I don't
think you should, and that's my take on it, and you can go from there, but just taking
it out of something like the trailers, if the trailers are not available then we can use the
money in other Countywide issues because we're going to have many more as we go
along. So that's my take on that, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for your comments.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And so as you laid the rules out at the beginning of this Budget
if we are to look for something please find the source of funding. So I took it upon
myself, my office did to reach out to Parks to ask this question because I heard in a
certain roundabout way that I was hearing that maybe perhaps not all is slated per se
for a certain area. And so it's been told to us verbally directly five are definitely slated.
The other five are just going to be housed and sort of sitting. So they could live with
just getting half of the ten. So it wasn't going to take away from any district. It wasn't
going to take away from any needed use and I did my due diligence in this asking. It
was never to take away from someone else.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. No, the Chair will, appreciates your proposal. I understand Mr. V's
comments and it's something we gotta work as a group. Again you're facing what I went
through weeks and weeks ago trying to see how to fund -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sure.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --all the requests knowing we only have X amount of dollars. So now you're
going through my, what I went through during my exercise to come up with your, my
proposal for you. So it is going to be a Committee decision. You have my proposal and
then you did your due diligence. We heard from Mr. Victorino. Anyone else wishes to
share a comment? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I recall that the Director said that eight were
assigned. But if Ms. Cochran has more recent information then I would support her
request. But I don't know if I heard that she said that that would save, or that she was
looking at the 3...I -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Seventy-five.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --think it would be 375.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: There's 75,000
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I would, I would only reduce the trailer amount by the amount she needs
for the sweeper.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That's fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other comments, Members? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I agree with Chair White's comments
because they did say that some are three stalls and others are five-stall units. So taking
the exact amount she needs for that is fine. Even more preferred would be just put that
amount out of the equipment and if we need to find the source then we can go into that
and I would support that. But if we can do it without taking it away from the trailers
that's even better.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, Chair, let's see where we come at the end. I would
rather see it that way. Because I remember Mr. Buenconsejo saying that eight were
already assigned, too.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We going make decisions, Members. We're going to start making calls.
Okay. The Chair will say, present this to you, reduce the 750 by 310, add that 1 street
sweeper to the Bond Fund. So under 1505 the adjusted number is 440.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Four four zero?
CHAIR HOKAMA: We're reducing 310 from 750.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right, on line 1505 right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So under 1506 it says no revision but you should put a minus through
there.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Minus 310? Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Your net is 440. That's the proposal before you, Members. Okay?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you very much, Members.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Done.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I also asked on this one. I'm just going to make a comment. We
are trying to pare this down and I totally understand and concur. I think this is the
third year they're asking for the ladder truck, I can't remember.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Which one?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Same.
CHAIR HOKAMA: At least two years.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Fourteen twenty-eight. Is this the second year or third year
they're asking?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura, you...I know it's at least two years.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I no say nothing.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What page are we on?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We're back on Page 46, 1423. So I'm just asking for, I have a
little concern because that price keeps going up every year and we heard about the
ladders. Having looked up online for prices of ladders and whatnot found a lot of
comments that, yeah, they do breakdown. The ladders themselves, the ladder
mechanisms have issues and the Chief said that. So I'm in a quandary here. I believe,
I think Chair White was going to look into some insurance issues. If it is truly needed
it's probably sooner rather than later that we need to get working on that. At this point
I just ask for a consideration if we have money at the end to think about that. It's getting
to the point where if we don't do it this year we're probably, I mean we're definitely going
to have to do it next year.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So what was the ladder, it was 1.5?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: One point four.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: One point four.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One point four?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Do you want to restore 1.4 to the Equipment Bond? That is the
question before you. Up or down, yes, no? Consensus, 1.5 million?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. How many noes?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One, two, three...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, I am in support. I did have a chance to talk to Chief and
the downtime on this vehicle is I think nine months lately.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Right.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Also, the mechanic work on it has, I don't know, I forget how
many thousands, hundreds of whatever, a lot of money. So in the end, it's like putting
a hole in the ground, what is the boat analogy? Anyways.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Black hole.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And so that's why I believe as Mr. Couch, I know it's a huge
ticket item. And we didn't have a good message about Fire this morning. But
considering this is something as I was told is something needed and has been needed.
But that's my take on it. Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I support Mr. Couch for his district at Wailea as well as it not,
it's not only in that district, wherever we have your high rises.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Excuse me, Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: I looked back at last year's Exhibit "1" and I did not find a deletion of the
ladder. So I would assume that the request was not made last year.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: What was that?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm sorry what?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Say that again?
CHAIR HOKAMA: It was not part of the, we did -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It wasn't requested.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Staff has checked and it was not part of the '16 Budget request.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: In the Budget request or the approved Budget?
MS. YOSHIMURA: I was looking at Exhibit "1" from Fiscal Year '16. The same document we're
looking at now.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
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MS. YOSHIMURA: And I don't see a reduction for a ladder truck.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Gotcha. Gotcha.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: What does that mean?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That means that -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That means it wasn't put in.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --it wasn't put in 'cause, and we never cut it 'cause, you know, so.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: They didn't ask for it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So okay. You've heard Staff give you comments on the request. Okay.
You're clear on the proposal before you, Members? Okay. Who is in favor of acquisition?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aye.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Aye.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --two, three, four. Okay. No?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: One.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: You're voting no?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Two. Okay. It doesn't make it. Next. Launiupoko 1426.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh yeah, that's no problem.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry. Before we move I have a question and I think maybe
my office has already spoken to Ms. Yoshimura about this. It's in regards to a
replacement for a 28-cubic-yard automatic refuse truck, 450K. And if I'm not mistaken
that is in this fund currently? But I wanted to proviso it out if possible to make sure
that this is what is bought with that dollar amount.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura?
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MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, Member Cochran, there was an additional 28-yard cubic
automated refuse truck added to the Bond and that was specifically for Lahaina or West
Maui.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. That was my add.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I added that for West Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It wasn't there originally.
CHAIR HOKAMA: It was not in the original -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --I added that in.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And really I thank you very much, Chair. So do you folks feel
there is no need then to literally write it out -CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --in a proviso?
CHAIR HOKAMA: And again, the way it we are structuring the bond CIP, we're creating an
appendix as an exhibit, appendix where the departments and Administration will need
to follow what they present to us and it will be in the worksheets that is attached to the
Budget ordinances. We are following, I'm providing you a recommendation as City and
County of Honolulu does it. Big Island attaches like a book. It is very detailed maps,
everything is very concise. I don't feel we need to be at that point now. But to satisfy
the Auditor and some concerns from Corp. Counsel I'm proposing that we adjust to do
it how Honolulu does it and we will make an attachment that is very clear; your
expectations and what the money is to be used only for. And if they choose otherwise
they return for an amendment.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And that will be also verified through the language in General Provisions
that the staff and I are currently reviewing.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Okay, very good. Well, and I appreciate wholeheartedly
that you've taken that in to consideration. So thank you very much, Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Anything else in this area? If not, with that again we're going to need
to adjust the number but we understand what you folks decided. Are there, is there
any further discussion on 1424? If not, do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Done. And we'll give you the final adjusted number, the street
sweeper. Okay. Next line is 1426. Mr. Couch, any happy news you could give your
Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I haven't. There's some things with the SMA and one other thing
that they're trying to clear up with the Department of Planning. So -CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --I think your original or your-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Plan of action.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --your comments about just letting the Mayor know that we're
okay with doing with whatever needs to be done, you know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So for Launiupoko, Members, I have...we've placed 2.273 million for
a strip, I'm going to recommend we're going to appropriate this. We are not going to
authorize it yet. In the Committee report and then I'm happy to follow-up with
appropriate correspondence to the Mayor and the Administration requesting, that's
what we will be doing, requesting them to enter into discussions with the ownership of
this site to see if we can come to mutual agreement on the terms of terminating the
agreement, mutually agreement. So both parties will agree whereby one, we don't need
to pay this additional money, the property retains ownership already by designation of
various documents. That strip will continue to be an open space which is what the
original purpose of consideration of purpose, purchase was for, open space. And that
is what we're going to try and achieve through this option. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I have a, what might be a unique situation, unique solution here.
Why don't we reduce that by 1.4 million to tell them that we're going to, we have some
issues with it and then put that towards the ladder?
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, as your Chair preferred not because if we are still required to
follow the agreement as -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --we understand law, I don't want you to come back and tell me now we
gotta cancel the ladder truck because we gotta put the money back -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: --in this fund.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It was worth a shot.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, no I understand.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Out-of-the-box thinking.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And I appreciate that option, Mr. Couch. But I think my option is the safe
for the body, you know, safe to protect the County's interest and yet still have an
opportunity to discuss with the land ownership. So that's my proposal, Members. Do
we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Done. Fourteen fifty-three, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think that was me.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is under the Wailuku-Kahului Government Facilities. This is borrowed
money, Bond, Kahului Fire Station. Mr. Guzman, any comments?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It was me yeah? I the one, I the one asked for this yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. V?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But I did check with the Department even though they really,
really would like this they feel they can hold off, Mr. Chair. So I'm going to say with
your consent I'll keep your proposal here.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for having the communication, Mr. V, we appreciate that.
Members, you've heard comments from Mr. Victorino. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. May I direct you to 1476. Mr. Victorino, Mr. Guzman,
comments?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This was money for our center right? If I remember, the
service center right?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This was the design money right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Design money.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: For the service center.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And but you've brought an interesting comment that I'd like
to maybe follow-up a little bit-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --on. And so you said that a lot of employees don't like the
idea of moving down there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I've had people ask me why wouldn't we do it in Wailuku.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Build in Wailuku? Well, I can tell you because the traffic
issues, I don't think it's a good idea. But that's my personal take. I won't go any further
than that. But the more longer, the longer we put off this, the challenge that I face is
how long is the lease at our present center and if, and with this center while the Maui
Mall being sold and bought and bought and sold I'm concerned, you know. So that's
the only reason why I would like to see this done sooner than later. But I could live with
it this year saying, okay, well put it off ctil next year. But we gotta really make a
commitment sooner -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --than later.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One of the things I wanted to have discussion and this might not be the
right time -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --for within this Committee, it might be something more appropriate in one
of the other standing committees. Might be yours, might be Ms. Cochran's. I don't
know which one. But I think as we discuss what we want to do with the County seat,
Wailuku, are we really going to follow through with our creation of a redevelopment
agency? It's called the MRA. Are we committed? Because if we are, then for me
government must lead the way in the redevelopment. We are the trigger; we are the
igniter of redevelopment for this community. Once we can show visual and financial
commitment I think property owners would take that commitment as a signal. And so
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unless we ignite it I don't think redevelopment is going to happen in Wailuku Town to
be honest. Looking at Kakaako under the State, Ray Suefuji is the Executive Director,
Mayor Yamashiro is in Redevelopment Agency for the Hilo Redevelopment Projects. They
were the igniter of the fire through the agencies and then public sector really started
participating.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, Mr. Chair, with that being said, I can hold off until next
year. I mean and I you know hopefully my successor...
CHAIR HOKAMA: And one thing I want to say, Mr. Victorino, 'cause you folks have supported
it, the municipal parking lot now currently -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --will have about $13 million to move forward to get either a, the
redevelopment going or as I've told them I'm willing to look at abolishing that if we're
not going to redevelop Wailuku
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. I agree with you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --then why create all the entities?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's either or.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That doesn't make sense.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. So I'll give this one up and, unless
Mr. Guzman has anything else he'd like to add.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: That's the...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Design.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh that's the design.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Yeah. No this is not design. I...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, there's already a design contract.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm incorrect. I'm incorrect, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, okay so...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: I apologize. Ms. Yoshimura?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah what's the...
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, there is a design contract for $1.6 million that's already been
executed. The request that they have in the Fiscal '17 Budget is for $200,000 for permit
plan review fee and for DCAB fees.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I was incorrect, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Well, you had said design, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah, yeah. That's what I thought it was too but I was incorrect. I
apologize for that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We gotta pay permit fees?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So I guess the only question I had is how long this design
phase is going to last? Because they just started it right, Ms. Yoshimura?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Do we have a status on the IFAS report or the CIP quarter?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, the contract was entered into in late December of 2015 and there
hasn't been any payments made by the, through the contract. So I'm not sure what the
status is on the design.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sounds like they never move on it, so.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: It can't be far along.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. It can't be very far along if that's the case, Chair. So
I mean unless Mr. Guzman has any, I say we can wait.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: That's fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I also put a revisit on there. My only
concern is that we, the lease is going to run out at the end of 2017 supposedly of the
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center that we are no longer using. And I was, I think I asked the Department for status
on are we paying now the rent, did we ever get a response to that? I'm assuming we're
not. But...
CHAIR HOKAMA: The current Kahului...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: At the current location that we can't -CHAIR HOKAMA: That we can't operate out of?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --occupy. Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. I thought, and I think I asked if the insurance was covering -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The insurance, that's correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --all the damages and repairs required from the landowner or the property
manager.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And I don't remember a response to my question on -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --that either.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I would hope that they are, but remember we're self-insured too.
But they, I don't know what they are.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, but normally when you enter a lease -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --there's a tenant-lessee -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --agreement right?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Who takes care of what. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I was texted information that the, in a meeting they
stated that they were likely going to be starting to focus on the service center project in
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late summer. They're focusing on the Wailuku Post Office at this point because it's the
same architectural firm that they may have to be phasing it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you for that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And, Mr. Chair -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, mister...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --that was just my concern is that at the end of 2017 if we don't
have a building where are we?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Then what?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I understand what you're saying.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I mean we're testing it right now because we're in the three
different satellite locations and that may have to happen. I don't know. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's a project that has the money, they can go. We already also have
construction plans -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --for municipal parking lot. I mean you guys been here long enough. You
know we already went that at one stage to construction plans. So that project is ready
to go if we really wanted to support that design, design scheme. Okay. The next line I
have is 1484. This is the Wailuku Town Surface and Satellite Parking 1.45. I think this
is a request from Planning if I recall, right, Staff? Through Ms. Wade, I think was
through Ms. Wade.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, Erin.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. And I believe they have sent you a response that when the Chair
asked, they sent it under as confidential because there is some properties they would
like to consider but I thought it was inappropriate that it be made public that since it is
still a working draft. And I didn't want people to panic that -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --they're looking at my friend's lot or they're looking at my mother's lot. I
didn't want to create anxiety and unfounded speculation on a concept. You know we're
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not ready to say this is the one we want, we need to acquire it for this project. So I
believe the Department has sent it and we have it under appropriate recordkeeping at
this time. Staff, so if Members wanted to review those confidential work products is it
available for them?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, the Administration did send the information but we did send it
back. They included, we had two questions on there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MS. YOSHIMURA: One they marked as confidential. We sent the document back asking them
to separate the two questions, separate the two responses, and then return the response
to us. And I don't believe we've gotten the confidential response back yet.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. White? And then I'll recognize, Mr. Victorino.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Chair, my recollection was that you had made a comment that you
wanted these elements to be wrapped into your other project. And that was why you
were deleting this.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That is correct too. I think we have enough money there 'cause I see this
as a component of that project.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Of that, correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And so...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So you have consensus as far as I'm concerned but -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --you can ask the others.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I just saw had it as a revisit. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Try wait, oh sorry. Try wait, try wait.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know; Mr. White speaks for me again. I can't wait. No
I agree. You did mention that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes sir, I did.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So that's what I was going say. I can wait and I can
have consensus on this, Mr. White. Thank you, sir.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, so consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, and again thank you, Members. I will refer you, Members, we just
got it April 28 from the Department of Management, signed by Mr. Ching. And regarding
question two which deals with this paper request, his response is the answer to this
question is confidential and can be provided in executive session meeting per provisions
under Section 92-5A of the Hawaii Revised Statutes. And so they have the response,
we can have access to it but again it is confidential and still as your Chair understands,
work product. And the law treats work product and this request for confidentiality as
something we need to respect. So that is how they responded. Okay. Next line I have
for revisit, Members, is 1496.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I believe that was my revisit and I'm okay to agree to leave it at the
300,000.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 300,000 is consensus. Thank you. Okay. And just so to be clear
the Wailuku Town one we just left 50,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Moving on, page, we just took care of that one, 1539, Page 50
Waipuilani Park Irrigation System.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no. No, no, Chair. You said, you went past 1505. Don't
we have to minus and put the...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We did.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: We did.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, but if that's where it's got to go right?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. That's what I wanted to make sure.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for the reminder.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's okay. No, we got consensus. I just want to make
sure. Okay. Go ahead.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Thank you. Mr. Couch, 1539 Waipuilani Park Irrigation I have a
revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, Mr. Chair, I, we talked with Mr. Buenconsejo
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --and I believe we had talked about taking only, reducing it by
100K so the Mayor's proposal would be 350, the red would be 100K and, or at least that
was my proposal. And the total amount would be 250K. And the biggest reason was is
that we are on a time, our own imposed time restriction. The County has said that if
you're able to hook up to R-1 water you have a year to do it and that year is almost out.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Members, you've heard the request from Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Could that...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, hold on, Mr. Victorino.

recognize you right after.

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, my, maybe I didn't understand Mr. Buenconsejo's response but
my notes state that the deletion of the 250 was okay with Parks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, okay. Well, we can reconfirm with him.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well, maybe Staff...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What page?
CHAIR HOKAMA: We'll ask Staff contact mister, the Director and see if we can...
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Or maybe they're, maybe they have it in their notes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Okay. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, that's what I remember also. So that's why I'm saying
`cause he, they were here. I remember seeing that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We'll contact the Department and try get some clarification. Okay.
Back to, then let's return to that. So we'll go to 1552, Mr. Couch, on South Maui Parks
System.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Fifteen which?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Fifteen fifty-two.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Fifty-two.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Fifty-three, yeah 'cause...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I have Mr. Victorino.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, that's the one I...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino, I apologize.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no, that's what I thought I had brought it up but then
you said him, so okay. Again, I thought it was necessary but I've heard, you know, from
some of those people down there that, you know, for right now it's okay. So unless Mr.
Couch has a burning problem I'm good with consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm good.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Done. Three oh three. Okay 1576, Page 51 the
Makawao-Pukalani Parks System. This is the Bond Fund. The Chair went through
again as I explained to all of you, I went through all, every district system's request, I
made adjustments, I gave them what I felt they could complete within a 12-month cycle.
Well, most of the, if you look at your systems in general it includes your top 10 projects;
or the top 10 priority of projects as presented by the Department is what the Chair has
tried to leave sufficient funds for unless it's like some of the projects at Eddie Tam Gym
- 64 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 29, 2016

which is real high tag projects. But I've tried to balance each Parks systems' projects
equally as best I could and that's how I arrived at my adjustments, Members. So the
first one, 1576 I'm going to ask Ms. Baisa for her comments or proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I think this is ultimately tied to 1580 so we kind of have to
talk about them together. I think everybody is aware that this is the top priority for
Upcountry in terms of this kind of thing to restore the money for the skate park. And
we also heard from the Parks Department and them too, this is their number one priority
project. And so I really would like to see this put back. And I think Member White has
also joining me in this because you know it's Makawao, Pukalani, Kula. It's all of
Upcountry. And so I'd like to ask him to help with this.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. The discussion that Ms. Baisa had with Parks
was that they could hold off for one year on the, I believe the 850 -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The pool decks.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --was going to be the pool deck and pool re-plastering. And they felt
that they could hold off on that. And so if we take the 850 from the
Makawao-Pukalani-Kula System, that same area has about $100,000 in parks
assessment monies and I'm willing to have an additional 250,000 added from the
Paia-Haiku system and I would leave it to the Department to choose which areas might
best be utilized for that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So it's the 850 -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Was 425.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Makawao-Pukalani System money, 100 from park assessments, and 250
from Paia-Haiku System.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is that the proposal, Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So that is 1.2 million.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, I commend the two districts for kumpang.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well it's -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's our district, so,.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: -- all in the same neighborhood.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I know and that's why I think it's a, you know this kumpang, this
works.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, you know, everybody's heard my complaint about Upcountry
doesn't include Makawao, excuse me. So Mr. White and I worked together. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So for line 1578, Members, this is going to become 0.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, guys.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. For line 1582 we are going to reinsert $1.2 million.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Under line 1605 we are going to reduce this by 250,000 so this number will
now be 100,000. And then Staff will add a line for park assessment under the
appropriate community plan area, a line for $100,000 for park assessment which equals
to 1.2 million for the Upcountry Skate Park Project.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any questions? Yes, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no, and that's great and I'm glad to see that
accomplished, now that people Upcountry can have their skate park. But -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --we have a $425,000 --66-
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --short someplace.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, it's got to come off of the, off of 7...or 1571 I believe.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Fifteen seventy-one? Oh the next page, the page before that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The page before.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: The page before.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay that was not said. Okay. Okay. Okay, thank you.
I just wanted to balance.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah no you -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No it's important.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --spoke up just as I was...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh sorry, Mr. White.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No that's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. You taught me to be balanced.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, wait now. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So now that line was...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Wait, yeah, so help me understand. Okay. Where do you want the
adjustments on the Parks System, Ms. Baisa and Mr. White? You want it out of General
Fund or reduction of the Bond Fund monies? 'Cause in this area we have two types of
financing for your system, okay? And I want you to be clear. We have cash for you in
one component and we have Bond or borrowed money in another component. So tell
me where you want the four hundred and -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Twenty-five.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --twenty thousand dollars to come from. The Bond monies, we scratch the
Bond or you want us to just reduce the cash?
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I would rather use the Bond Fund under the Haiku-Paia so that would
be on line 1610.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Oh wait a minute.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, not 1610.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sixteen oh four yeah?
CHAIR HOKAMA: It would be on 1576 if it's on the Bond Fund from the Upcountry Parks
System.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. I would, we had increased...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, so my worksheet is on this line, the Bond money, I've wiped it out to
0. I'm taking that 400...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Chair, that's only 425 difference.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, you know why...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah, you know why my...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Fifteen seventy-one is where they wanted to go back to on
Page 50.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Okay. My error. Okay. 'Cause I'm thinking we're working off...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Eight fifty.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, 425.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, that's cash.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I thought we were; I was assuming we were working off 425 after the
decrease.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So, mister...well, you guys gotta let me know.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. I...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Because now...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, I think what we do is we reduce line 1571-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --or 1573, whichever.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Reduce that to 350.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But that's cash. That's General Fund.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I know but he's already taken out the, he'd already taken out the Bond
money.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So 350 cash from here.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So there's only 425 left and we need 850.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So we zeroed out the Bond so there's no more Bond in that area.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's gone.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And I, and Chair, I have no problem how you balance it in the end.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, neither do I.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Yeah, as long as you get-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. We'll leave it to you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: -- 1.2 million -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I don't care how you do it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --for Upcountry Skate Park you will allow me the flexibility to balance -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --cash and -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Bond.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would appreciate that flexibility.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You have the balancing act. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. So if you could...
CHAIR HOKAMA: You will have, yeah, you will find your 1.2 and I will make the appropriate
shifts.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You'll make the decision.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So, Chair, just to be clear -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --line 1610 on the top of Page 52 is now adjusted to 400 rather than
650.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay 610.
CHAIR HOKAMA: What's your number, Mr. White? On 1610?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Instead of adjusting the cash -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --on Page 51 -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --I would like the 250 to come out of the 650 -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --at the top of 52.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Gotcha.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Got it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh you increased it over there. Oh, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Staff -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good catch. Good catch, Mr. White.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --are we all keeping up with Mr. White and Ms. Baisa? Yeah. Okay. We
got it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Ms. Yoshimura is just...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Consensus, 1.2?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, folks. The kids thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And their parents too.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Well, that makes them happy, very good. Moving
right along.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So let's see next then let's get to line 1620. Mr. V?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, you know, I was, you know, everybody else is sacrificing
so we can move along with that, consensus.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Hey, good job.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Guzman, any comments?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Easy everybody.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, it's okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Moving along.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much, gentlemen.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Next line is 1637. Mr. V, I believe you brought this and 1641. This is the
two Waikapu Community Center projects.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah because, you know, the biggest thing...but I was told,
did you tell me or somebody -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I did.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --told me that we're going to put...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I mentioned it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Somebody told me. Was it you?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That 1.5 was going to be put in and...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, and what the, what Parks had asked is rather than cut both
projects by 250 to instead take the remaining balance of 1 million and just put it towards
the Waikapu Community Center and they would wait until next year for the 500 for the
basketball courts.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And see for me it was just the exact opposite. I wanted the
basketball courts -CHAIR HOKAMA: He wanted the courts first.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --before. Because that's what the community has been
asking for, more on that. Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well, I'm sure, if you want to do that then...
CHAIR HOKAMA: You want to change the priority, Mr. V?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we will listen to the district member.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, because people have been asking that for a long time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, no, so tell us.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We're be happy to make the adjustments, Mr. V.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I know the baseball field sucks but I gotta do one thing
at a time. So, can we proviso that, that at least the basketball courts, whatever it takes
for the basketball courts to be repaired, to be replaced. I don't know how much it's
going to be. But I want it replaced.
CHAIR HOKAMA: They're asking for half a million for that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, they said 500 but I think maybe less, but. And the
difference can be used for the expansion of the Waikapu Community Center.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So are we restoring the 500 for the basketball and then holding off until
next year for the Wailuku Community Center or do they need design money?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, you just...
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know what, Mr. V, since you want the courts first why don't we reinstate
the 500,000 for your courts -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And put the 500,000 on the Waikapu Expansion.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and then why don't we leave 500,000 for Waikapu Community Expansion
to start planning and design.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I can handle that. Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We'll do it that way. Okay. Line 1644 Wailuku Pool Improvements.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You yanked this and I surely like to see this done
because...but enough.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Even I do, too, but you know, Mr. Victorino, you and I both know -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --we've supported that -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Moving right along.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --improvements.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'm not going to even discuss. Moving right along, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No offense to you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, no. I appreciate that.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And this was okay with Parks in my notes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I got it. Moving right along.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry. Can I interject something?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I don't know; did you have a note for me? 'Cause I have notes
for me, but.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh. I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I wasn't sure if you had notes for me.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, no.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, if you have...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I mean I think I'm just asking.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes please.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But I have notes and park assessment funds, down 1668.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We're not there yet.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, I know but everything else had consensus in my book.
Anyways
CHAIR HOKAMA: We're going to hit that soon.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:

wait until we get there. Sorry, Chair.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We're on 1668.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Did we have consensus on 1666?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's what I show.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That's what I'm showing.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Okay. 'Cause I didn't think anybody was going to,
Ms. Cochran wasn't going to complain to my add.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. No, Mr. Chair, we talked about the fact that it was an add
versus a reduce.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, and then -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And then...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --I think the 1669, wasn't that, did we shift some...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: This is the one.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's the one she wants.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. This is where I have notes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Please?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. So they're actually provisos because obviously the
money here is strictly restricted for West Maui but I have one, two, three items. So shall
I just list, say what they are?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. One, add a line item under Parks Assessment Fund for
"Little League Score Boards" at $10,000. So whether that's...
CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm assuming this is brand new and -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, oh yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --replacements yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So we can justify -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --assessments money.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: This is improvements right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And that's what they're used for?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And all of these have been vetted through the Department.
We have been working hand in hand in getting this together.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Next is add line item under Parks Assessment Fund for
"Canopy Cover for Bleachers-Lahaina Aquatic Center" 150,000 over the...Lahaina's
merciless sun and all; very hot. Third...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Shall I go on?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Third item, add line item under Parks Assessment Fund
"Batting Cage at Lahaina--what is that--Lahaina Recreational Center" 125,000. Is the,
I don't know, maybe Mr. Victorino knows a better number but I bounced it off
Mr. Buenconsejo and that was the figure he thought it could be or so that's where I got
my number. I have no clue what they actually cost. But he gave me this guesstimation
of 125.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So we're clear, okay we're going to take away the 600, we're going to
reinsert $285,000 in the column of which one proviso will state 10,000 for a Little
League score board replacement, we'll put the appropriate language, Ms. Cochran, so it
matches your fund, 150,000 Lahaina Aquatic Center canopy and I forgot the other one
you wanted to add for the Aquatic Center.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Batting cage, score boards...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Canopy, bleachers, canopy and bleachers?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, not the bleachers. They already exist.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It's just the canopy covering over the bleachers.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Canopy. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: To shade the area.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So that's 150 and 125.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: One twenty-five for batting cages.
CHAIR HOKAMA: For the batting cage.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is that correct?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Members, consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. But...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: There's the money.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Go ahead.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So wait. What, now I'm like, the total for my park, West Maui
Park Assessments is 600,000 only right now? Thousand dollars. Is there another
section for park assessment?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, you folks, you asked about the Lahaina Restoration Phase 2A.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, I know that's why I'm like where's the 500?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: She put it somewhere else.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So I don't know if we placed that in another area.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, this is parks...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, we listed it as a Grant.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, we listed it as a Grant.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: For the Lahaina Restoration Foundation Harbor Front Project. That's the
one you are referring to?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, that is the one.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Okay. We're going to add that on Page 31 as item number 4 as a Grant to
the Lahaina Restoration Foundation.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Alright. I was like, oh, these numbers aren't adding
up in my head. How am I going to now promise that one or -CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I believe -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --you know help with that one.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --the Committee gave you the support last night.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, very much so and I appreciate that. And I appreciate
this. So thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: If you can go back to Page 51, I forgot to provide a, ask for the
Committee's support for a proviso for providing $30,000 of sand for the Tom Morrow
Arena as a proviso under the cash.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We'll put that under General Fund, Mr. White.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Did you folks get that provisos?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, I didn't, sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thirty thousand dollars for sand, acquisition of sand material for Tom
Morrow Equestrian Center.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And sorry, Chair. No. No. Chair, and this is under...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry Page 51.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Out of park...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Paia-Haiku.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: General Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And my comments to this is, and I'm not to trying to over
speak the area representative and it's not a huge, I mean we're balancing millions and
this is 40,000 so it sounds small but the more...I have people been reaching out to me
from the horse community, what have you, they all concur and we heard Mr. Pat Borge
here that it's putting, it's not going to fix the problem in this area. The bottom line is
the area that it's located in. It's the location, the wet. And so changing out sand, redoing
the footing, whatever it takes, what they're saying is going to fix it, technically these
expert cowboys and what have you are saying no. And pretty much don't waste the
money. And that's where I stand on that and why I don't want to put it there. Currently,
they are utilizing it for other types of practices and they seem to be quite successful in
that aspect. But in order to try and address that one user group which are the ropers
and what have you they still say this is not going to fix it. What they really want is a
whole other area to create a new sort of arena. But that's in the future.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And that's a long, long -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --way off.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No. But so, but, Chair, this isn't going to help them anyways.
And the longer term idea there already is discussion going with upstairs and what have
you. So that can happen and currently they have places they go anyways obviously. So
they're okay. But truly that money, they'd rather save it if can for future to this new
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selected area for all disciplines including the roping and what have you. But they truly
believe this is not going to change the issue that they have as in the un-safety factor of
this; for the type of practice they do, not for other disciplines, for the practice they do.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much for your comment. Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Hi, thank you. Thank you, Chair. I had this item in my
Committee and I did do the inspection as along with Member Cochran, and yeah, there
are issues with the footing but they do still need the sand and they are also looking at
developing a trail for trail rides on the backside of their, of the property. So this money
can be used not only to at least supplement the sands that they, that are depleting but
also to improve a new portion of the arena which is a trail ride area where they can do
some different types of disciplines. So I think it's worth it you know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: It may not fix the entire problem -CHAIR HOKAMA: Right, right.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --but it's a step forward.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Guzman.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: You know, my wife and I have spent a lot of time in arenas and adding
sand adds a whole lot of safety. And if we got a problem with it being wet, that's Haiku.
You know there are going to be times when it's not the greatest conditions. But
nevertheless, we are improving what is County property. And I understand
Ms. Cochran's concerns, we've all heard them. But nevertheless, the issue is going to
be helped by this and if we don't do it it's not likely to get done. So I would appreciate
everybody's support on it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. White. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, real simple. I have family and friends that live up
there that use that arena that are cowboys and they said at least this will temporarily
help them. I've been there. I've lived up there. And I can tell you, yeah, I agree with
Mr. White, it rains, no question. At times it rains much more than we want. But I still
think fixing it, also the horse trail I heard that, you know, Rose told me about that, I
can support this, Mr. Chair. And I think maybe now gotta get to points of voting on
issues because we can't keep one person saying no, the rest have to wait. I'm just
throwing it out at you, Mr. Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Thank you for your comments and suggestion, Mr. V.
-81-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 29, 2016

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair? Sorry, quickly in closing...
CHAIR HOKAMA: One second yeah, Ms. Cochran. I want to give Ms. Baisa her opportunity -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and then I'm happy to re-recognize you. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. I would like to say that I did live on
Kokomo Road for a couple years when my children were in diapers. It was a nightmare,
it rained every day. I used to iron the cloth diapers. So I'm familiar with the weather in
this area and it will be wet. I don't care what we do. But I understand what, where Ms.
Cochran is coming from and maybe we need a short-term solution and a long-term one.
And this sand will, whatever we're going to do now will help like building the trails, but
maybe we need a longer term situation. But I hear both sides. You know it's very
interesting when you go out in the community or you have a community hearing you
always have two sides to everything, so.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. No, I...and thank you for that comment. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And sorry to be beleaguer [sic] or
belagor [sic] this, whatever, but I, and I can't forget the ask also about the initial 250,000
that went to this entity. And having the actual physical build out of this arena and not
seeing where the 250 went and having people come up and come forward to say they
did all the donations, they cut the kiawe, what have you; and I'm not trying to, you
know, I... and we all heard Mr. Sorge but I had somebody clearly out of the blue from
the other side of the island in my area, the equestrian community there, who brought
up the same point not knowing who Mr. Borge is but they also knew that. So it's adding
up for me and technically that answer has never, that question was never answered.
And I would like to see, I would like to know what the answer is. 'Cause I haven't heard
it. So that's another point to this whole picture is that that initial 250,000 that was
given to this area technically seem, seemingly didn't go into this arena. That's the other
comment. And so I'm ready to vote.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, if you want to follow-up, it's...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: You know, enough already. Let's just -CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no. Not now.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --take a vote on it, Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: We're not going to follow-up on getting information today, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: My thing is you want to follow-up the subject, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And I would say you might want to consider either asking for a meeting in
Mr. Guzman's standing Committee and take it up under the standing Committee's
component. If it becomes a financial thing, then I would say you can bring it back to
this Committee under Finance for review regarding accountability. But that's what I
would recommend for you to consider. But for today what the Chair needs to know
about this request of, what was that, Mr. White, 40,000, 30,000?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thirty thousand.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thirty thousand.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thirty thousand.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. What the Chair needs to know regarding your request for 30,000, do
you see this as a grant or do you see this as being it's done by the County?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I see this as being...well, I think Public Works could probably do...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah because, you know, once we know your intention we'll decide where
to place it in the document.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I'm open. If you feel that the Public Works can do it instead of it being
a grant I'm okay with that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We was hoping you would give us the direction and we would just place it
in the appropriate part of the Budget.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Just make it a grant out of General Funds.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Put the cash as a grant.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Use the cash. Grant.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: And then proviso, with the proviso. Yes, Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: So then we will move this to Parks Administration and place it as a grant
to the Tom Morrow Equestrian Center, or for the Tom Morrow Equestrian Center for
$30,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: For sand and...
MS. YOSHIMURA: For sand and trail or just, could we just say Tom Morrow Equestrian Center
improvements?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah well, we want to make sure that the majority of it is spent on the
sand, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, why don't you help give us the language you want.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I'll work with you on the language.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So, Members, that is what is before you. Okay. Is there consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We'll move forward. Thank you for all your comments.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, I thought we were going to do a vote.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No and again...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Are we voting?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Yes, or no, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Fine. How many support?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Moves forward. Okay. Next is, let me take you to line...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Seventeen eighty-four.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We did good work the other night. Thank you, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You're at 1784, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I got 1768.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Where?
CHAIR HOKAMA: We're on Page 56. We're under Highway Fund, the Rockfall and
Embankment Assessments, Hana District. The Chair deleted this and I put all the
money into specific projects in Mr. Carroll's District. So you will see the bridge repair,
highway repairs; I decided to support his specific district requests that the departments
have put forward. So I've explained it to Mr. Carroll how I approached his district
projects and that's why he has all those projects listed. Mr. Carroll, your comments,
sir.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Just the same thing I said last time. This is to look at the
different places. And again a lot of places when we had the earthquake were damaged
and they determined that it was alright then. But time has passed and you know what
happens when you get cracks out in nature, in rocks and stuff, conditions change. And
we have pali on both sides all the way from when you're going to Kipahulu from Wailua
all the way to past Kaupo. So there's really a large area that needs to be checked before
something bad happens. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Carroll. Do you have a, you want to put a proposal at this
time regarding this?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: A proposal other than -CHAIR HOKAMA: This is Highway...
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: --the $350,000?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. This is the Highway Fund monies.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: When I, when we talked to Public Works they thought that's
probably about what it would take. It's a difficult area to do the assessment. It's not
easy over there.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I understand, Mr. Carroll. You are now well aware...
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Some places they actually have to use a helicopter.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: You know how expensive that is.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. No, I understand that, Mr. Carroll. I'm just saying that this is being
proposed by the Administration through the Highway Fund. Today, you got a glimpse
of what is really in the Highway Fund. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I realize it's expensive and I don't, I try to just focus on safety
and the things that are necessary. But after talking with David and the community over
there and the concerns about some of the areas I do believe that it is necessary, the
350,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You mention that you put this money into specific pots?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Into his projects. I have supported his specific projects that the departments
have asked for. So when we went through the list you will see Kalepa Revetment Seawall
Repairs, Koukouai Bridge Rehabilitation, Piilani Highway Road Improvements at
Nuanualoa; I've supported that. You will see I've put Piilani Highway Road
Improvements and moved it from Lapsed Bond. So that's where I put most of his money
to those...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Could that still be used for this purpose?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Which one?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Those monies that you earmarked for those particular
projects?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Those will be from the Highway Fund, the last three. I mean the Piilani
Road is Highway Funds. And then we moved Piilani Road Improvements at, to the
Highway Fund. So we've added the projects here for Mr. Carroll's District.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Again, this is for areas of concern that they are worried about.
But it's not the areas that we've already identified. This is, I'll give you an example;
Nuanualoa on one side where we're spending all that money on the top of the pali, the
other side to ascertain the damage over there they had to use a helicopter last time.
They finally determined that even though there was damage at that time it seemed it
would, they didn't have to do it. But again, once you have blue rock crack, over a period
of time, it changes and it really needs to be checked. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. The, my recollection is that Mr. Goode said that this
item can't be deferred. He felt it was of high importance. So whether we -CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for that reminder.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --can find the money somewhere else I'll leave it to you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Members, you've heard Mr. Carroll's requests. What is your decision?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Put 'em back.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Restore.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Restore.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Pardon me?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Restore.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. Yes, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And, Mr. Chair, I'd like to enter a proviso on the previous page on line
1744. Just a proviso for a speed calming on Kaluanui Road. I think most of us have
gotten quite a number of e-mails on that. So...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: You heard the request for a proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: How much?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Other comments?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Is there amount or just...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No amount. We're just ...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Isn't there a process that needs to go through Public Works,
80 percent of the residents on that particular road need to sign on and what have you?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, or you can proviso it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, I mean whether it's allowed or not. I mean maybe it has
to be vetted through Public Works Commission and all that?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm not too sure about the Public Works Commission's Rule. But,
Mr. Ueoka?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Or at least there is a form I know 'cause that's where I send
my constituents to get such a...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, there is a form to -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --for residents to sign within X amount of proximity -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And there's a difference between a-CHAIR HOKAMA: --to the project area. Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --speed bump and a speed table. I don't know which it is.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Chair, of course it's totally your guys' decision. But just to move forward if you
were to add on the proviso and they were unable to gain steam on that it just would
remain unspent.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. UEOKA: But, I don't...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, my staff said this is the process. You put it in the Budget as a
proviso for speed tables.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And, Mr. Chair, I got a text from Public Works, it says, yes, it
can be done that way with a proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we've done it before. But I think it's already in the project description.
That's what we have from, with Staff. Staff and I have some project descriptions from
the Department.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Excuse me but it's...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's in there.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Staff just showed me that it's already been added, so.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No need. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I don't feel bad.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: That's the purpose of Staff, right?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. . . .(inaudible). . . move faster.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Help make you look silly whenever the...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We'll take care of that, we'll take care of that. Okay. I think we are
now in Page 57. I have a note to get back to 1784.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I believe Mr. Goode was up here and
he was saying that he could swap out the design for land acquisition because in the
current timeline he had the design this year and then land acquisition next year. And
so he's willing to swap that out. The land acquisition is only 100,000. So my request
is to change that minus 800 to minus 700 and put the 0 to 100K.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And that's for land acquisition?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Very good. That makes a lot of sense to me, Mr. Couch. Okay. Members,
we'll 100,000 forward. Any objections?
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 100,000 moving forward.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And that is Bond money. Okay. Line 1788, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. We talked about this before and
Mr. Carroll had some questions on it. So this is the resurfacing Kaiwahine. This is one
of those things that has been, it's been put on the person who got the 201H for the
Kaiwahine Villages. They passed their five-year mark so the residents have been waiting
five years for it. They have another two-year extension and only one two-year extension.
So I just don't see that project going forward and while we're waiting the residents of
Kaiwahine Street are suffering from having to mow their street. And I know Mr. White
does that quite a bit in his district as well.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So you want to proviso Kaiwahine, is that what you want to
do?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, 350.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Three fifty. Okay. Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: You know I have a hard time relieving someone of a responsibility
because my understanding is that the project may go forward.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And so I'm not comfortable with the proposal unless we can find out
whether it's absolutely not going forward.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, my thought is that if the project does go forward
they're still required. So my thought was that they can reimburse the County for the
work that we did. I mean it's still a requirement of their 201H.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Can we do that?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So if they go forward with it and we've already done it they should
be able to reimburse?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Can we do that?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Can we do that, Corp. Counsel?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Corp. Counsel?
MR. UEOKA: I'm sorry, Chair. I was doing something else.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Spacing.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Daydreaming.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka, you need the question repeated?
MR. UEOKA: Yes, please.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, if the County did the work and it's still a condition of the
201H for that project and the project actually does go forward, they should be able to
reimburse the County because we've already done the work.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: I don't...I'm not sure. I don't think it would work that way though. They're
required to pave the road. They're not required to reimburse the County for work
performed.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
MR. UEOKA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Well, I just hate to see the residents have to wait another
two years for that. But -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --that's my request.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, and I understand how Mr. Couch feels because
there's areas in my District that had the same problem and not going get done because
we only get promises, promises, promises. You get that West Maui, you get East Maui,
you get Central, and South, everyplace. And these people, if you travel that road you
can, that road is bad. As bad as most roads I've driven on. And that's been over 20
years since the last time any work was done. So I hate to do this but I support Mr.
Couch. You know, I know, you know. But no, in this case the people of Kaiwahine
should not wait two more years, Mr. Chair. I think we should allow him to proviso that.
When we get to that point if they do it, fine. If somebody else takes over, then we will
do it after them at that point in time. So I don't want to wait another two years. I don't
think it's fair. But that's my take and I can support you, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Yes, Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Just a thought. Sorry to delay your meeting, Chair. But perhaps Mr. Couch
could reach out to the developer if we do do work he's, the requirement's still there
`cause I believe the 201H requirement was that he pave the road.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. UEOKA: Maybe prior to work you can go and try and discuss with him and the County
can enter into some sort of agreement where if he does build he will pay. But currently
the way the 201H is worded there's no requirement there. But he's still required to
pave. So maybe we can work something else out like that. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Ueoka. You got it, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. I'd be happy to do that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And I believe I was the only no vote on this
entire project and it wasn't because of the lack...I don't support affordable. It was I
knew it wasn't going to get built out. They came back, they got this extension, still not
happy, water was an issue; a lot of stuff. Yeah, the infrastructure. I was happy we put
the condition. You're going to do this road. Now look where we sit? We're going to pave
it. But in the end whether this project goes or not it's still a County road. So with or
without the project in the picture we the County would've, would have to improve for
this community needs. But we're hoping through this 201H process that the developer
would kick in the funds. That's not happening. And now it's to the point where it needs
to be done. So I really don't want to do it. But anyways.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I agree with her.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Just my comments. Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And I share Ms. Cochran's frustrations.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Mr. Ueoka, did the County enter some kind of agreement with the Feds
on, to get Federal funding? And is that agreement going to impact what we can and
cannot do with this project? I'm just finding out whether or not we have any Federal
parameters, requirements, restrictions.
MR. UEOKA: Sorry, Chair, are you referring to the Kaiwahine 201H?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Yeah. Yeah.
MR. UEOKA: Oh.
CHAIR HOKAMA: 'Cause I thought they had some Federal money on the road, for the road?
Wasn't that, what was the page? What's the page for the project?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Fifty-seven.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Look at 851, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The what?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Eight five one.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Eight five one.
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: The line number 851?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, on your project worksheet.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, the CIP.
CHAIR HOKAMA: It shows $5.440 million from the Feds.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What page again, Chair? I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Eight five one.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Eight five one.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Eight five one. We're starting on this stuff. Oh I gotta open
my IFAS.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One point three six million in General Bond for a new construction, 500,000
General Bond for other, 5.44 for new construction Feds.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, so your question is, is it going to, if we throw on a...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Impact the Federal dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right. The Federal dollars will pay for these roads.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, I'm just asking is there an impact if he says -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes, understood.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --oh yeah potentially, yeah or no, there is not, I mean that's what I want us
to be aware of.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. Yeah, I apologize. Yeah, I believe it probably would have
some type of effect because they probably filled out an application with the Federal
government stating they would do roads X, Y, and Z so you can't just change roads X,
Y, and Z I would believe. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And that's my concern, Mr. Couch.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, understood.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Whether it impacts us getting the Federal monies -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --is my concern
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, good catch, Mr. Chair. Although...oh, no 'cause I did, I didn't
add the 350, I proviso'd it right?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right. Yeah. Yeah. So...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So if I added the 350 provisoing that that goes to that, then it
should be okay? If agreed upon.
MR. UEOKA: It's your money.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. Yeah it, as long as it's not from that pot of Federal money.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
MR. UEOKA: Yeah, I think it would be fine. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Alright.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You want time? I'll give you an hour or so to work on it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, let me think about that one.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Because that has Kulanihakoi Street on it and there's the issue...
CHAIR HOKAMA: I understand. That's why I'd rather you think this through, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. Let me think about that. Thanks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Because we're going to make a decision. So please, you know if you
need you know. Okay. With that why don't we take a break, Members.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Very good.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I know every, we're pushing and I understand. So why don't you take a
ten-minute break. . . .(gavel). .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

4:56 p.m.
5:10 p.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . . Okay, Members, we have a few more to go under CIP.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: How did we leave 1789? Were we just gonna say forget it or...
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I wanted to know whether you still was, interest in some language or
whatnot, and that's why I thought during the break you would talk to Mr. Ueoka -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --see if there was some...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The only way I could do language is if I add another 350K. If we
have it, I'd like to put it in. If not, you know what, depends on where we are.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would just say at this point I prefer not -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --until we finish -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --on this pass.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So saying that, this is what the Chair will offer you. And you can help guide
the decision. We can power through tonight and then settle on how you want to, the
parameters of the revenues you would like to base it on and then I would excuse you
and ask you for the authority to make all the funds balance. Present to you your
decisions in a balanced form. I wanted Sunday but the Staff...you want to offer them
Monday morning?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But you already made a 9 o'clock meeting yeah?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, no but this would be for the normal 10 o'clock meeting -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --on Monday that we would present you your finalized version with
adjustments and the funds balanced and I will tell you where I made the adjustments
that you authorized me to do. Or after we do this portion I was, you know, take a look,
I'm not really want to spend too much time on the Grant Rev side because it's very
straightforward.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: What you are seeing under the rev side on Grants is a red underscoring. It
is exactly what you have adopted through the CDBG resolution. We're inserting the
language straight from the resolution as presented by Mr. Pontanilla and adopted by
the Council. That's all we're doing, just adding it in to get those CDBG Grant Funds
recognized. There's a few minor housekeeping things, but that's about it. So after we
finish this, one way to approach it is Staff and I will need about three hours to do the
number runs and some adjustments. Then you can come back and we can pound
through the night.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Or we power through now, you give me the flexibility and authority to put
together the, your version and I can decide whether you want to come back Sunday or
Monday morning and then the Staff and I will spend the rest of the weekend following
your directives.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm fine with, when you say powering through do we stop for
dinner and then go?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: They need three hours.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, if you want to power through my thing yeah, which means we're going
to finish up and then part of that is you're allowing myself and the Staff -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Three hours.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --the authorization to do the thing. Or you can have another short break,
finish up the CIP portion, and then you gotta come back three hours later. Okay? So
it depends how you want to work.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm just saying that you guys can stay with us after a three-hour break
`cause we need time to run the numbers.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Or we power through everything that as I've shared that we need to
do right now. After you take a break, power through. We're going to excuse you folks,
and then we are going to finish up the document as you authorized us to do so.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right. But my, and this is just my preference would be to take
our little break right now. But we have these revisits on the General Fund.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, yeah, yeah. We're going to need to have direction on those...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We've gotta go back.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So when you say power through are you talking including these?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Gotcha. So I'd rather take a break, power through these, get it
everything done tonight. Come back Sunday with...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Or Monday.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Monday.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Or Monday. I'm fine with Sunday. But some people are you
know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, again I know. Some people have family -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So that's my...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and church time, I -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So that's my choice.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --respect all of those things. Okay. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm with Mr. Couch. I'm willing to, you know, work as late as we
have to tonight and if it means coming back on Sunday or Monday I'm okay. But if the
group wants Monday that's fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. White?
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I'm open.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I would, I'd be open. But mostly Monday 'cause I like to give
my colleagues from the outlying districts like -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --Ms. Stacy a chance to go home and at least
Saturday/Sunday and then come back Monday.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I'm...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I know you...you know.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I know this is my work. So but I will not be here Saturday.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. I think we know that.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: But if I need to come back Sunday if it's whatever or I come
back Monday anyway. So however you look at it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sunday, you coming back Sunday?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I would tell you what is easier for the Chair and the Staff.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What is that?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I will tell you what I feel is best for myself and the Staff.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Let's hear it, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: As your Chair and as your Staff, we prefer that we power through, finish,
and then you give us the flexibility to make the adjustments so that we can make sure
we have the time to run the numbers accurately; re-verifying especially those Special
Fund balances because there's -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --entities like mister, gee, I'm looking at Roy, Mr. Katsuda that is needing
answers from us that impact their grant -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: --and projects.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So we want to make sure that whatever we're going to show you we
can substantiate as a balance that you can appropriate. And that is what we're driving
at. So that is your Chair's and Staffs preference; we power through, give us the
directions then give us the flexibility to finish it up and present it to you no later than
Monday morning, 10 a.m. That is our preference.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Whatever is your preference.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We'll go with yours.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We'll go with you guys. You gotta do the work.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, so -CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --I'm good with that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So we going power through?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: With a dinner break.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And but yeah, I'm going to give you a short break so we can power through.
Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Power through.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And then you guys can go and we'll be here the rest of...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes ma'am?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Do we want a dinner break now or all we all still kind of full and
maybe later?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, that's why I'm just asking 'cause I think once we start this next phase
of powering through -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --I figure we're going to get the momentum and -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --we're just going to go until we finish.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That sounds fine with me.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, so that's why I'm offering you, if you want to, need another break now
because once we start I don't want to stop until we're done.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: When's the dinner break?
CHAIR HOKAMA: There is no dinner break once we power through.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, Mr. Chair, just a thought.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's why I'm telling you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Why don't we do, Mr. Chair, why don't we do this? Can we
just finish the rest of the CIP?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm sorry, I thought I had the floor.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right now? Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Let's finish that first. Right?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And then take a break.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And then take a break.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And then take a break.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Delay the break.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that way it gives you guys some time to play with the
numbers.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That not going...no that not going help us.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Not going help you guys, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The Staff gotta eat too.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: They gotta eat too. So okay. I'd like to finish the CIP and at
least that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I agree.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So we are going to do as best we can, take a short, and then power through,
Members.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Alright.
CHAIR HOKAMA: May I direct you to line -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Fifty-eight.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --1819 -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Eighteen nineteen, Page 58
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Hiolani, Ms. Baisa. This is on Page 58, Members, 1819. Hiolani Street
Drainage Improvements and I know you and -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, we can-- 102 -
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CHAIR HOKAMA: --Mr. Goode...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --take that out.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Moving right along. I love that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. The next line I have, Members, is on line-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Page 61.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Page -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --19 -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sixty-one.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Sixty-one.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --61.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Nineteen fourteen.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Nineteen fourteen. Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Hey, Bingo. Yes, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, I, you know we're moving and we're going to move.
I did call the Department -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and I talked to Ms. Andaya-Dagdag or Dagdag-Andaya.
Okay. Let's get it right. Anyhow, she said they finish with the design.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Everything's ready to go and I said well, tell me what the
minimum number, you say a million, what can we, you know, my statement what can
we live with and what can we live without. She said 650,000 they can do it. They feel
they can, but they need to replace this bridge. It is a dangerous situation. So I don't
know where I going find 650,000 but that's what I'm asking to put back there. And I
will give up Kanaloa paving. Good bye. Thank you. I give that one up. So that would
be...well...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So this, we will...okay so line 1920 it's 0, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Then I would say on 1916, and this is Bond Fund, Members, so we're going
to borrow the money and then Highways going to repay it. Six hundred fifty thousand?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Six hundred fifty thousand.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Is there consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I love this thing. Moving right along. Gotta find money, but.
And for right now, Mr. Chair, on 1926?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I can live and although I know this is really a bad situation
but I can live for this year and my successor can go figure it out for next year. Thank
you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Hey, I love that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Hey, you know. I've worked hard all these years and nobody
helped me. So whoever my successor, good luck to them.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Line 1939.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Nineteen thirty-nine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's the one, Kamehameha Avenue.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh yeah, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: According to Mr. Goode when he was on the floor -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --this was ready for STIP and it has some Federal money
attached to it. So I would request that this be placed back in. The design is I guess it's,
I believe it's done or it's on its way within this month, the end of this month.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right, right. So this is a Federal, Fed, yeah, it has a Federal match right?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, there's 960,000 Federal funds attached to this.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So we need to fund it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So let's see this is under -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Highway Fund.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Highway Fund. Okay, Members, you've heard Mr. Guzman's request.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, just a question, is that the one that they're looking at
potentially a roundabout if it...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah. Mr. Couch...
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, even better.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, it's not.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: We'll have to put a light.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's not there.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Within the roundabout.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sir, can you tell Couch keep his comments to himself right
now or I'm gonna move.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. Come on. I'm glad you folks feeling energetic, but we focus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, 'cause you gave us incentive.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Page 62.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sixty-two, 1964 if I'm not wrong.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Nineteen sixty-four, Bus Stop Shelters.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think that was Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Good year to be born in.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, this was me and this I'm going to cancel for the time
being. It's having a lot of hardship and roadblocks in the way. So I talked to
Department. Department talked to landowners. It's not moving.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So I'm not tying up any money right now.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so...
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You've got consensus.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, I love you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Five hundred thousand.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Moving right along.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's it?
CHAIR HOKAMA: And...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's it for CIP.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh that is it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's it. Down goes Frasier.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Alright. We just power through and get out of here.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Hold on.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Wait, wait, wait.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We're not going balance with that. Yeah, so you, I don't want to go through
that. Okay. The Staff asked me if I wanted to go through Special Purpose Revs. I prefer
not since we cannot depend on the numbers yet.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So why go through a frustrated process right? 'Cause we going have to come
back 'cause I not ready yet.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So we're going to be working with Mr. Ueoka and Ms. Sato and once we get
that we'll present those numbers we can defend.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay?
- 107 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 29, 2016

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Should we bring back dinner for them? No?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We're gonna do the break now 'cause when you come back we're just
gonna power through -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: How long?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and make decisions on all those things that's still outstanding.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: How long? What time?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, what you guys want?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Six o'clock.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Six thirty.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Six thirty.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Six thirty.?
CHAIR HOKAMA: What do you guys want?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Six thirty.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Six.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Six.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Six?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Six thirty, please.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Six thirty.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Six fifteen.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Six thirty.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Six thirty.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You guys okay, Staff? Okay. Six thirty. We'll be in recess
. .(gavel). . .
RECESS:

5:23 p.m.
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RECONVENE:

6:37 p.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . . Okay, Members, we shall return to order. This is PT time,
power time.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Power time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One thing I have directed Mr. Ueoka to do, Members, under the Office of
County Clerk, Mr. Ueoka is going to check law, statutes, and see whether or not the
standard that a deputy may not make any more than 95 percent of the head of the
department's salary, if that would apply to this position. So upon his review and advice,
when appropriate the Chair may make an adjustment at which I'll report back to you
stating the adjustment.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. If he says sorry, this is the, what it says -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and you can only do 95 max, then I would report back to the Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We understand.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: If that...Mr. Chair? Sorry.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: If that isn't applicable to that position...
CHAIR HOKAMA: I will still report that to you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, but the numbers are. . .the number I had last time were
inverted so. . .yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: What do you mean inverted?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, I had. . :cause I was doing it. . .it's I had 56 for the Clerk,
it should be 66 and I had 11,000 for the Deputy Clerk, it should be 10.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, and after I make all my comp papers...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: You got that, Michelle, 'cause I had 16,000 for the Deputy Clerk.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That was the total.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The total was 16,660.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: One thousand six hundred...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, that was...yeah, 160,000.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Remember?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Remember that?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, I remember that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So we will verify what we are allowed to do by law.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right. Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And that is very fair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. And then...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But either way it's consensus for that -CHAIR HOKAMA: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --final amount. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And so the Chair will just say I will report back whatever it is.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Got it. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: So let us move to, which line...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. I was wondering if I could right here, let's
see under 89, oh wait, 88 it's where I believe was Ms. Crivello added in monies for an
audit for DOT, is that correct? This is the section that that occurred, right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So I wanted...
CHAIR HOKAMA: For the consideration of a Council audit.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Council audit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. For a Council audit.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Council?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. We are going to do the audit. Not the County Auditor or anything.
The Council will perform the audit -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --is what Ms. Crivello is asking for. A Council performance audit of
Transportation.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. So, Chair, 'cause I was looking to do another audit for
Ka Hale A Ke Ola. So I'm not sure if that would be a Council audit or County...
CHAIR HOKAMA: It's up to you. The County, if it's to the Auditor we only can send a
communication requesting his consideration to consider that as part of his upcoming
audit plan. He's not required to take our recommendations or requests. He can deny
it. So if you really want us to do this I would recommend you place it under the Council's
authority to do audits and make the proposal so that the Members can make a decision.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I just want to -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --also make note that I think during Director Ridao's last -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --year we did an...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We did.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We had one.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We did an audit.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: The Housing Department did an audit at our request. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Oh, thank you for that comment and reminder. Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So can...well, I guess perhaps it could be under a different
scope?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would say, you know, you might want to just review what Ms. Ridao did.
Because we have professional services and it's going to be a program pot you can later
request through Mr. White for the Council to authorize an audit if you feel it's still
pertinent.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Alright, I'll take a look at the past.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: But we have the monies in Professional Services.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Yeah, there's no reason for a proviso because any
Member can put in a request, can insert a resolution to calling, to call for an audit. So
that would come to Council and there would be a vote, and it would move forward or
fail.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We're on Page 4.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. I was just taking the lead of what had already
happened. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Victorino, did you have something you wanted to add? I'm sorry,
I was focused on this side.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no, no. I was trying to get...yeah, no, no, I was trying to
get, Mr. Guzman asked me what page that's all I was saying.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, okay. Okay. Anything else at this time? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I want to be very clear on what we did here because I think I
messed it up. We okayed the 127,059?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okayed the 98,043?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okayed the 67,518?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okayed the 22,898?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And deleted the 33,296?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Roger.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. I just want to make sure I'm correct. I was not sure. Thank
you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is that what you guys got, Staff? Okay. So we are all syncopatico [sic].
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Very good.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Very good.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Yoshimura, that was it, yeah, on this page?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: One oh six.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One oh six?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
-113-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 29, 2016

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Earlier you had discussion about adding a component to the CAFR under
the County [sic] of the Auditor for the Special Purpose Revenue Funds.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, that's right. I wanted to, I mentioned that when we were reviewing the
Highway Beautification, Abandoned Vehicle Bill earlier this morning, Members, under
the Fiscal Year '16 Budget amendments that that is one area that our independent
auditor doesn't normally look at. So there's, my thought was to add the money and
expand the scope so that the independent auditor will review those funds in future
audits to be performed on behalf of the Council as required by the Charter. So that is
what I am recommending for a proviso in that area. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And I would agree with that except for I think you just mentioned
that we can't direct the Auditor what to do.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, but yeah, this is a proviso for him to consider because it impacts us
regarding the funds.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: To consider but not -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --tell him to do. Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Because he helps construct the audit parameters for the independent
auditor.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So we ask him to consider this in his scope of what the independent is going
to report on, and he has to review these funds.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We have consensus, Members?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Please put that proviso in requesting the County Auditor.
Okay. We are moving on. The next page I have for us to return is 1...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: One oh six.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One oh six.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I thought we gave that back?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, we didn't come up with consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We just did that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We did that. We agreed.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. We just...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We had consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, no 107. I gotta come back to 107.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Why?
CHAIR HOKAMA: We had consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I had consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You had consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Which one you wanted to go back?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I have an RV on that one.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So...no, I have a restore. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I had restore.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I can't tell if that's a consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I cannot read my own writing.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, we made the call on that.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Sorry, on line 107-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah?
MS. YOSHIMURA: -- Ms. Crivello was going to see if she could find funds to accommodate the
.75 E/P for Civil Defense.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But I thought we said yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I hapai.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You have a pie?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I hapai, Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Hapai.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Hey, wait a minute.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, I don't wanna know these things.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. If you going speak Hawaiian, speak Hawaiian, not half Hawaiian.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, you know what? Never mind.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Never mind.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And I appreciate that effort, Mr. Couch, because in this State we have two
official languages by Constitution; that's English and Hawaiian. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes, based on Mr. Couch's offer, I would like to see the return
of the part-time positions for the Civil Defense appropriation.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We had consensus. I have a note consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done. Okay. Next line please, Ms. Yoshimura.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, line 132 -CHAIR HOKAMA: One three two.
MS. YOSHIMURA: --Ms. Cochran.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, this is the part where you wanted to revisit upon
the...our meeting this morning -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, yes, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --and the subject matter. So you were like hold off. We're
going to have this meeting tomorrow.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah. So you understand the situation with the program -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --the funding? So -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So -CHAIR HOKAMA: --what would you guys like?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --highway, so this would be, so if there is an upgrade and the
Highway Beautification Fund it would help to assist in payment for this?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. So what would you like to do?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Where are we?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Line 132.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, no I wanted to restore the 50.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Restore the 50.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, and this is General Fund, sorry, sorry, sorry. Okay.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Excuse me, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: The $50,000 is for a one-time appropriation for computer upgrades.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And following, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And the initial discussion in regards to the burglary, break-in,
whatever at their establishment they had responded and they explain, and I've been to
the site several, many times, so they expounded it was the outer storage room areas.
Not the main building, office building where this would be housed which does have
security and what have you. So I am confident that it, I mean they're going to take care
of that other issues going on. So we heard and we see what kind of wonderful work they
do for this County and the community. So I'm in favor of restoring.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And is Mr. Couch or Mr. Victorino carrying the water for you folks?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus. There's room in my rates.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And there's more room in mine than his. But that's, who's
counting that? Okay. Moving right along. Alright.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Remember, everything adds up -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Members. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You heard Ms. Cochran's request, proposal. Any further comments? Do
you have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thanks, Don.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You guys at about 2.2 million that you restored back to the Budget.
Next page please?
MS. YOSHIMURA: It's line number 174.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One seven four, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: One seven four.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is, who was this...
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: This is, this was me and you. You said this was from the Sewer
Fund.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes it is, Mr. Couch. It comes from, the funding comes from the sewer,
Special Funding.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right. And I believe Staff, miss...okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh okay. So, Mr. Couch, your proposal please?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: My proposal is to restore the expansion positions for a
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operations Manager and the Painter, and reduce...restore
the equipment because that's, the equipment that is only for that position; those two
positions.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: What portion of the 45 is that?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Ms. Yoshimura probably has that information. She's looking it
up.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: The equipment is not related to the expansion positions.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Then I'm fine with that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So consensus on deletion of equipment 45,340?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Regarding 174 you heard Mr. Couch's proposal to give them the two
E/Ps. Any other comments from the Members?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I can support the Plant Manager. But the Painter I
still have questions because I've watched and listened and I did not see the real need
for that. But I can support the Manager.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We'll take it in -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: --components. We'll take the Plant Operations position first. Any other
comments on Plant Operation Manager? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: You know when I look at what happened there they may do with the
existing staff and each of them stepped up and took some additional responsibility. And
I think that's what needs to happen from time to time. We take a new look at things.
You know when we went through the recession through attrition we reduced the number
of supervisors we had pretty significantly and we've, you know, we've not grown it back
because everyone got used to the added responsibilities. So my feeling is I'm okay
leaving the Plant Operations Manager out. But I think we've, I think the evidence
supporting the need for a Painter is pretty clear. So I would support that one E/P. But
you know again, Chair, I'm with you. I get very concerned with the ease with which we
seem to add and I'm afraid that we're going to be feeling badly when we see what the
annual costs, the real annual costs are with fringe, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Anyone else? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I agree with you, the adding of folks
especially with fringe and whatnot. But there are times that it might be necessary and
I want to recall, remind the Members of the reaction of the Division Chief when I asked
which position would he choose and he really, he was put on the spot and later I talked
to them both, the Director and the Division Chief and they said they really have to have
both. You know they've let the others go. But these two they said that they were very,
very concerned if they don't get both of those. So I'm just asking. And you guys saw
the look on the Division Chief's face when I asked him to make the choice. You know it
was worse than the mother of the kids that Solomon had to choose, remember? Yeah.
The look on his face was...
CHAIR HOKAMA: It's not in his pay grade to make those calls.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I understand that. So that's my...unless you guys want to do
the painter as, you know, add Professional Services to have him go hire painters, that's
fine too.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, we're just under Plant Operations position at this time so there's
no confusion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Anyone else has, wants to make a comment?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. The proposal is as Mr. Couch has requested to restore the E/P for a
Water, Wastewater Treatment Plant Ops Manager. Is there consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And, Mr. Chair, the dollar amount on there is 36,584 I believe.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for that. We'll verify it on the Details -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Mr. Couch. Okay. We are now to the Painter I position. Mr. Couch is
proposing to add this additional E/P. Any other comments?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, the dollar amount on that initially, you're right, is 37,
I'm sorry 34,792. If the Members are okay with putting 50,000 in Professional Services
and they can hire a couple painters to get the jobs done sooner, I am supportive of that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Is this one of those situations where there's nobody else that
can paint down there?
CHAIR HOKAMA: They have one. I believe they have one position.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: One yeah, 'cause I mean I'm thinking of the Fire Department.
I got that one when reviewing the film, you know. Nobody can paint. But that's okay I
didn't go there. You know so I just don't want to be adding more E/Ps. I kind of agree
with Mr. White that one the Plant Manager and maybe they can just figure out
something they can put some people together and help him quick. I don't know. But
I'm not going to put any more money towards painting 'cause I think, I supported you
last time, Mr. Couch, and I got burned. So I not going support you this time. Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. I would like to see as, you know, if there's a
need to for painting or painter or whatever that we put some resource to it. I tell you
why. I think it's really sad to see these things just fall apart because they're not
maintained and they get all rusty and ugly. I see it in the Water Department. It's
terrible. So we gotta figure out how to maintain this stuff. And if the workers cannot
paint then I agree with Mr. Couch, let's get some money and get somebody to do it. But
if we don't maintain we going spend millions of dollars more trying to build new.
Maintenance is important. I think that's where we fail.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments. Ms. Crivello?
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I agree with upkeep and maintenance. But how do I want to
say it, how do we, are we so specialized with our positions that, you know, we cannot
say you're in this district, you're in this area that's your wastewater treatment area that
includes all of that or you have to have a certain specialty? I just ask that question and
I should've asked that earlier and I don't expect an answer.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, we appreciate your concern, Ms. Crivello. I would say that
departments can request through consultation with the unions for adjustment of job
description and job scopes. That has been done, Finance has done it regarding how
they wanted to approach the kiosk program where the clerk would do multiple tasks
with DMV and some other components. So they would readjust the job description and
then do a reclassification to see that the pay is according to the responsibilities of the
revised description. So it has been done in the past. It's not that it cannot be done. So
that's something. But what I would recommend to you this evening so we can move on
is take that proposal, and I'll use that number 'cause it makes sense to me; 50,000
throw it in Wastewater Admin Sewer Fund with the proviso that these monies be used
for professional services in the painting program. We'll have the Department report
back on the efforts of catching up on their maintenance list. Then we can make an
assessment whether or not to maintain professional services or to provide a E/P count
to the Department.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. But it'll give us, it'll give you time for an assessment of how -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Good.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --this is going to perform.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Done.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus. Moving along.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Next page.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I'm sorry?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Two eighty-one yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Two seventeen?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, line 217.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Two seventeen. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, I believe that was for my...yeah?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The 25,000 for the West Maui Recycling Program and, you
know, hearing the news this morning...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You got that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What? Is that in?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The Sustainability Chief.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What am I...is that right?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, you got your 25K.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The 25 is in there? Oh, okay well, then I don't have anything
to talk about.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sustainability Chief. It's the reduction to the Sustainability
Chief.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Ms. Cochran, I believe this is where you wanted to add your proviso for the
$25,000 for the West Maui Recycling Program.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Or recycling events.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. But...okay. Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That's a proviso right? Is that, that's a proviso?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, that's yeah. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right, no, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus. No problem.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Alright. Cool.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. What was, did you have an amount, or did you just want...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Twenty-five.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You guys got that, Staff?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It's the same from last year.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 25,000 West Maui Recycling Events. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Moving on.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Next.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, this is where Staff wanted to revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Which line?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Line number 243.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Two forty-three.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Two forty-three. Thank you for that reminder. Remember Mr. Villa came
by, Members -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and I think this is regarding placards or some kind of DCAB thing. So
yeah, this is the one, I had it confused with the one you wanted for Civil Defense so
sorry. Okay. Who asked for this one? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Actually, I did the 242 is what I have
down here.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And that's the CIP Coordinator transfer.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: While I do understand and still do want the Office of Ag and we
do need Agricultural Inspectors, you heard Mr. Taylor's thoughts on what happens when
we move these positions and these positions don't necessarily mean that the person that
they want to go to these places will go.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, and you know what? I need to give you a correction.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: RIF or Reduction in Force and the bumping through seniority only happens
when you reduce the force. We are not reducing the workforce. We are just shifting
E/Ps from one department to another. So there is no reduction.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So Corporation Counsel will say that the RIF would not be implement 'cause
there is no reduction in numbers. So what he told you earlier about the RIF is not going
to happen.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, I understand that but what he also said is we're looking to
say we want to move a specific person to the Water Department. He can't, nobody can
guarantee that and the likelihood is that because of the way the positions...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct, but there's still a way to do it. We still can keep them on the 9th
floor and we just make a proviso on their salaries that they only can work on Water
Department CIP projects.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Exactly, and I'm fine with that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, good. I'm happy to hear that. 'Cause that is what this has morphed
into.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Excuse me, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
MS. YOSHIMURA: This is a vacant position currently.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But this is not the one with the two engineers currently, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right, right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is the vacant position.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But it's the whole CIP thing.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah. Right, right. Yeah. It'll impact the whole thing. Right, you're
correct. But this is the vacancy. This is the one that in talking to Mr. Teruya, that if
we assign it, he'll make it start working and assign it to his Agricultural section and
make use of it to address the concerns brought up in our previous BF-70 comments.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And understood. I still want to, you know, I put a proposal out
for, an Office of Agriculture so if we have that, then this position would then probably
need to go to that in my opinion. So at this point I'm fine with the transfer. But maybe
I guess we should discuss it in Mr. Guzman's Committee on how to set, or maybe even
Mr. Victorino's Committee on how to set up an Office of Agriculture. I would think in
Mr. Guzman's Committee and then flesh out the details of this outline.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We'll let the Chair decide according to the responsibilities of committees by
our rules.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Decide which is the appropriate committee for referral. I'm okay with that,
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So do we take out for Agricultural Inspector in this transfer or,
because is there a position description for an Agricultural Inspector at this time?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Then I would just say why don't, you know he knows our intention.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: He understands what we want so I will just say at this time why don't we
just put Agricultural Specialist and then he can work with Personnel and his Director
on how to scope the description to address our concerns.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So why don't we just say for Agricultural Specialist at this time, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, everybody's gotten their consensus, the problem I have
is...
CHAIR HOKAMA: No well, but I'm happy to hear your thoughts.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, no, no, the challenge I have is -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --we already have an Agricultural Specialist. Now you're
making it two Agricultural Specialists, is that what you're trying to say?
CHAIR HOKAMA: This one will be working in the Department of Finance and the Real Property
Taxation.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I understand that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But, you know, we already have one. Now I don't want people
getting confused.
CHAIR HOKAMA: If you have another term that's fine with me. I'm not, you know, I'm just
saying that I want the flexibility left to the Department.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: An Agricultural Appraiser.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, he doesn't want one appraiser. Okay. He wants somebody that can do
inspections. I mean that's our assessor, right?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Assessor? No, you don't want that? Okay. I'm just thinking.
- 127 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 29, 2016

CHAIR HOKAMA: No, assessor, no.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You asked me to think, I think.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, no, no. He doesn't want an assessor either 'cause we want someone
who can review and see if there are comped up; those property owners, those that say
they're operating are complying and fulfilling what they said they were planning to do.
And so it's like an inspector in a sense.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I don't like that but fine. You guys are full of it. But okay.
Go ahead. I'll go.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We're going.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus with Specialist.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: You guys figure it out.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. We'll figure it out with Mr. Ueoka.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Can I, may I ask for clarification, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Is this the vacant position -CHAIR HOKAMA: The vacant position, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --from the 9th floor?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct. No one is in it currently. It is a vacant position.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: This is in the CIP, okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Okay. Did we agree on the .7?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, we did last time.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: We did. We had consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. No, I just wanted to make sure, Staff, we're all together, Staff. Okay,
very good.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Okay. It's a...sorry, Mr. Chair, just for clarification then -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
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MS. YOSHIMURA: --it's a deletion of the .7?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No. No, no, no.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, no, no, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Restore. I have here restore consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Restore because it had Hawaii, they have State funds, yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, we had consensus restore.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. That's why we -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Seven and the .3.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --we're making the clarification now.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I have restore...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That's what I thought.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we just wanted to be, make sure what you folks want.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, I got restore.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Nice try though.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Hey, I'm always going to take the negative.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Of course.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Next line please.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Line 280, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I have Mr. White as well, but -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: What's that? Where are we?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --we had our discussion in Executive Session, Members. At this
point...
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Page 10, 281, 280.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Page number, line 281.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: At this point, Mr. Chair, I'm going to ask that we leave it alone
at this point. But I may come back later if there's funds, you know if need.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, once you know we tighten it up and we give you the adjusted -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --numbers over the weekend you guys can take a look at this and make
your recommendations -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --or I'll make recommendation to the Committee. Is that alright?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We'll leave it as is for now, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Line 311, Chair White and Mr. Guzman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 311. Okay. Mr. White, Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: He cannot remember.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No, I remember.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Go ahead.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman, if you want to go first?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, Chair, this one was tough because I do understand the
necessity to have that Accreditation Manager because of the timing. But then after this
morning and having all those issues that were not resolved I am on the fence on this
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one, just to outright say it. So unless any other Members have any of their input I'm
kind of neutral at this point.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. I know it was an informative morning with various
departments. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I'll just reiterate that the staffing in this
administrative program has increased from 14 to 20 individuals. In the last four years
that has increased the cost from 1,038,000 with that includes salaries and fringes,
1,038,000 up to 1,732,000. As I said earlier and others have stated, the Accreditation
Manager position was given to them several years ago and it was switched to another
responsibility. So I can't support any of the adds.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Anyone else, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And, you know, I feel very similar to Mr. Guzman. I mean this
morning really, really opened my eyes up and I feel not betrayed, that's not the word,
but just disappointed, you know, and somewhat sad, somewhat angry and all of the
above with what we heard; plain and simple. And so to ask for any bodies right now
after hearing that I am, it doesn't sit well with me right now. Unfortunately, I hate to
say what I'm saying. But, you know, the reality and truth that came out this morning
is what it is. So I go with what this body wants at this time. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh, I'm sorry. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Go ahead, go ahead, go ahead.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino, why don't you go, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Go, go, go.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Alright, just basically, you know, I believe that these things
are needed. These positions are needed. The problem is what we heard this morning,
even I was very disappointed and, you know, it takes a lot for me to get disappointed
with the departments but I was. So I'm too on the fence, very lukewarm as far as
additions until they can show me some consistency and some real positive; you keep
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giving 'em positions and they change them to something else. I have a hard time with
that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So I'm on the fence. I'll see what everybody else wants to do
on this one.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. This is what I will recommend to you, Members -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --at this time. Why don't we, at this point in time leave the cuts there.
Monday morning, remember we are returning to complete the discussion and decision
making on Fire's Budget amendment for Fiscal Year '16. We're going to make a call on
their $1.9 million Budget request for premium pay on Monday.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And I'm going to say I'm going to take that as a big indicator how then,
because after that we're going to deal with this again and then the Chair will get some
sense of direction from the Members, you the Members. Is that alright 'cause -COUNCILMEMBERS: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --I want to be able to -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Good idea.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --tighten up and get the numbers ready for you. So let's go in that position.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, that's fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Done.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: And Chair, I just would like to -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --thank you for that reasonable recommendation. I mean, we
haven't heard the full side of the Fire Department. You know we should give them the
benefit of the doubt at this point until they...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Right. So they'll be returning Monday -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --with their comments and their proposals on how they -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --would like to adjust their requirements.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I feel better about that. Thank you. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. And thank you for that decision, or that offer. And,
you know, for me it's not so much betrayal. It's just the sense that we can't always
expect folks with, without significant financial backgrounds to be comfortable with
numbers. So, you know, I appreciate all the fire work that they do. Our job is to do
what we do; is to look at the numbers. And at some point I hope they'll, you know,
they'll catch up with the numbers and I hope to hear some good solid explanations on
Monday as to where they may able to cut so that we don't have to provide them what I
would kind of consider a bit of a blank check on Monday so; or whenever we make a
decision on the Budget amendment.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Okay. Members, we're going to move on.
Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Three forty-three, Ocean Safety Program.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Three forty-three. Okay. Members, what, who asked for this
revisit?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Everybody.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Alright. Members?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'll start. Oh, sorry.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I just want to comment and just say that the outcome that
the public has requested from us through the Charter is to have this transfer. Yeah.
And I am with the understanding that the Director and the Chief have come up with the
necessary paperwork, whatever, to accept transfer. So somehow or other if we can work
it so that they can complete this transition and start our lifeguards because I think it's
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unfair for us to keep them hanging too. Yes, they are part of the Parks and Recreation
and will be transitioning to the Fire. But, you know, we've got to give them the stability
so that they're waiting for or hoping for or what have you. But I think we gotta make a
decision on how we're going to support the transfer.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. You know as we've done in other
departments even though after today's earlier meeting it's, it may not work. But as
we've done on other departments let's, can we consider deleting the funding for the
positions but leaving at least the OSO II and III positions there unfunded? And because
the Chief was pretty adamant that he needed those, not so much, I mean not so much
as a requirement, as more of a, of an enhancement to the services that are being done
at the, by the Ocean Safety Officers. So if at some time that they finally say okay we
definitely need it, then we can throw the funding in. This would be a good compromise
and that's what we're here to do is try and figure out good compromises. So -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --that's a possibility.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Thank you for that consideration, Mr. Couch. Mr. V?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'm all for compromises. But does this again put them
coming back to us needing funding for whatever it may be like they did this morning
and finding out this position was filled because they used the money to fill this position?
Because we're not going to put the funding in but we're going to leave the positions in
there. Are we baiting them again? Are we just giving them another opportunity to come
back for a Budget amendment because now they're short? I know what Mr. Couch is
saying. I know what he's saying.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, good question.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But are we just doing the same...in fact we're putting them
in that position. We're asking them to go ahead and do something because here's the
position but no funding. I really think that's not the right way. I mean we're creating
our own monster and if I'm wrong, Mr. Chair, you scold me. But that's what I see. That
compromise puts them in that position of, okay they gave us a position. I don't have
money. Let's take it from here and then I gotta, I'm short, so I come running back in
for a Budget amendment. Then we're going to take from the homeless, then we're going
to take from other funding, other departments; not used, fine. But that's not the point.
So that's my concern. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good point, Mr. Victorino. That is much appreciated. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. And I think Mr. Victorino's spot on. You know but I
would go a step further. I just don't feel that we should be increasing the staffing. You
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know we started this journey and we said, and at least I recall all us saying we're okay
doing this as long as it doesn't come with a big increase cost. We've lost the ability to
move people from pools to beaches and I understand that that stopped a year or so ago.
But if that stopped a year or so ago then we've got the coverage. And I, you know, I take
my hat off to the Chief for wanting to be, you know, as manned as he possibly can. But
as I stated the other day before they open and before and after they leave there is no
coverage -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --period. So, I'm not the slightest bit supportive of expanding our cost
on top of what amounts to in Bargaining Unit 14's agreement an increased cost, this is
not increase in pay, but an increased cost to the County of $18,600 per lifeguard. Now
that's something that we may end up having to do. But the bottom line is on top of that
increase we're then adding, and I believe that was about a little over a million dollars.
When this was in...well, I'm mixing it up; base pay and pay with fringes, but anyway my
point is we've got a very, very significant increase in cost with the two things of the
added positions and the added, you know, cost of the payroll and fringes. So I don't
support this at all. And I... so anyway I think we should stick with the coverage that we
have. I absolutely agree with the Chief of Operations that came down and said we need
the equipment. So I would support making them whole with the equipment and that
may mean, you know, putting back some of the reductions that you've made in the
equipment. But it's like with the fire fighters. I want them to have the equipment. I
want them to have all the tools that they need to do the job well and do it right, and do
it safely. But at this time I, you know I, when I see that our employment costs have
grown by $65 million in 4 years I just can't get comfortable with us sitting here just
adding more and more and more. We don't have any expansion in our tax base so we
have to ask people for added, you know, we're asking them for added taxes every year.
And there's a point at which that's not going to be sustainable and I don't think it's too
far off. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. White. Anyone else? Okay. Members, for now I would say
consensus up or down on the 345 as currently presented.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: On your proposal?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Up. Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No.
- 135 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 29, 2016

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: On his proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: His proposal.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Oh, yes. Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What again are we voting? I want to be clear.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Can you repeat, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Line 345, Members, my proposal as, it is in red.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No new positions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That is what I am proposing and I'm asking you to, if you have consensus
or not on that.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Done. Next line, Ms. Yoshimura?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: How about 349?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Three forty-nine, equipment, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'd like put maybe, what is that 200,000 back in. That's
what he was looking for. Am I correct?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No, it's -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Michael?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --he deleted -- 136 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 29, 2016

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I don't know what the, I don't know what it was.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --406.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 'Cause he, I know he asked but I forgot. Ms. Yoshimura, did
he give a specific number how much he needed more? I'm sorry. I reviewed the film
but I cannot remember.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, we'll look for that information and if you'd like to skip over that
for a minute.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We can come back to that, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know what, I prefer we just give, we give them a number and then we
will report to you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I like the 200K, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Two hundred thousand. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Two hundred thousand.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Two hundred thousand.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So change the negative to 206,500.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair, on...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Guzman?
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, thank you. On 347 the transfer, the Clerk III I was
notified by the Department of -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --Parks and Rec -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --that they would plead to keep that position in their
Department.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. Okay. Members, you heard Mr. Guzman's comment.
Anything else? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, just a question to you as to the reason for moving them
over. Is that part of the staff for the OSOs? Is that?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That was part of how I was evaluating the program. I didn't think they
needed, you know, they already had the Battalion Chief and I didn't feel that they needed
one Ops Assistant.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And that's why I thought -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's kind of what I thought but...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --the request regarding the clerical was sufficient so I was thinking of
yanking the one that was doing the work in Parks and shift it to Fire.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So that is the person that's doing the work in Parks -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: In Parks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, but -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --for the OSOs?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --you know, Mr. Buenconsejo is telling me that.. .
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Hey.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Let's give him a big hand. Welcome back. By the way she's...
CHAIR HOKAMA: No

again, no show up.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: She's doing a great job but...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, we want Marci.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Better looking.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We want to keep Marci.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, definitely better looking. And comes with slippers on top
of that. Oh my God. Welcome back, Sandy.
MR. BAZ: Aloha, everybody.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for joining us, Mr. Baz. I want you to know Ms. Sato was
outstanding -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Outstanding.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --in her representation.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You can't, that doesn't mean you can go home.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, so we...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: You look a lot more tired than she does.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We kind of missed you but...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Not really.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Not really.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Not that much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: She did, no, she did a very good job representing your office.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Hey, Sandy, you feel the love, yeah?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: You know what then, Members?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: I believe the reason we moved the Clerk III from the Parks Department was
that in the Aquatics Program there was a Chief of Aquatics, a Secretary, a Clerk, Pool
Guards, and the Ocean Safety Officers. When we moved the Ocean Safety Officers we
thought it would be okay to move one of the Clerks to do the clerical support. And two
years ago when the proposal came from the Administration, this position was identified
to move along with the Water Safety, Ocean Safety Officers.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That was part of the earlier request was to shift this Clerk's position to Fire.
So, and I know, you know -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: -- now we have a different Director. That was another Director at that point
in time -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Mr. Guzman. So we have a new Director now with a little bit different
approach like Mr. Stant, the new Director for EM has a different approach from
Mr. Ginoza.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So I understand that. Okay. What I prefer 'cause I want to lock up these
numbers. Why don't we just remove 347 for now.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you. Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Remove this...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Restore? Remove?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, we're going to keep that position in Parks.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: For now. So you're not saving anything. We're just not making the transfer,
okay?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So the position and everything still exists in another department.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We're moving on. We're done with that program. Next,
Ms. Yoshimura?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, did we make a decision on the premium pay for Ocean Safety?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, we were just leaving it alone.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Or actually, right. We needed to do this whole section.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Oh I'm sorry. Premium pay, Members, any consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Operations.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Operations.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that catch, Mr. Couch. Next line, Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Line 361.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Three six one. This is the one that I've asked for us to consider to move
from Management to the Housing and Human Concerns -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: That's the vacant position.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and this is the person I had intended to work and put together all of the
nonprofits and look at how we're spending our current County revenues and support
resources.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: We're moving that one into the Housing Program and down below we are
also adding a Homeless Specialist. Is that, do you see that as a complementary position
or I'm just wondering if we need to do all three or whether. ..I don't have a problem with
the move.
CHAIR HOKAMA: My thing was...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I'm just wondering if we do this one can we eliminate one of the ones
that we added yesterday.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Those are LTAs.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: That makes sense.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm open 'cause my thing is I wanted somebody to tell us what the hell
they're doing with our monies we've been giving all these years.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I was the, I think, Ms. Crivello and I
were the ones that were asking to revisit at least. I think it should stay in the
Department of Management because there could be two different departments that have
to deal with housing assessments because there's Planning, and there may be Public
Works, and there's certainly DHHC. So when you start going between departments you
get some issues. So that's why they have the Department of Management. If you, again
we can do the same thing as we did with the CIP saying this person shall work with
housing assessment or be as a housing assessment specialist and therefore work with
the folks in Human Concerns Program. So we can put the proviso in there. But I think
because it could affect, could touch other departments it needs to be up higher.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You make a good point, Mr. Couch. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I'm not sure that that's the right comparison because this is a vacant
position. So all we're doing in this case is really transferring an E/P and providing them
the funds with which to do so. We're not having to worry about whether that person is
going to be able to get that job or not.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, there's no incumbent currently. Yes, no incumbent.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: It would be different if it was a filled position.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Hold on. Ms. Crivello, did you have, wanted to make a comment?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I agree where Mr. Couch is coming from because I hate for us
to be moving into another department and they're not prepared for the position and how
do we proviso once they get in there? But if they stay in Management at least we can
proviso it and make sure we get our reports that's necessary of what we expect from this
specialist. And I think this is where you've heard, we've heard testimony for the so
called Housing Czar, you know, that I think, is that what you were looking at, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No? Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Not even close.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Maybe I need more clarification what your expectations are
for that specialist.
CHAIR HOKAMA: My expectations is for this individual to; one, make a current assessment of
the homeless situation as it is now; make an...then in retrospect of that, figure out what
did we spend our S15-plus million all these years we've been giving them homeless
monies and whether or not that was a smart move; come up with a plan and tell us.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And from next year I would recommend instead of you giving it to this entity
or this entity, put a pot, I would ask for you to make a competitive RFP under this
parameters -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and see what is your response. The way you folks are doing it is just a
Band-Aid approach and all you're doing is not eliminating homeless, you're just
accommodating and continuing homelessness.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. I follow you. That's the conversation we had about
planning; coming up with a plan. Okay. Sounds good.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Is this a civil service position or is this
one of the positions that are, that really aren't any E/Ps up in that Department?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I was open. And again I was open more to an LTA because then whatever
is part of the assessment we can then consider for permanent civil service positions if
it's warranted. Like I said earlier, my thing is just growing government to, is not going
to solve issues in general.
- 143 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 29, 2016

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Understood. But I thought there were, there's a just kind of a
pot of money up at the Mayor's Office and the Management Office -CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --that they can put as many...
CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm not supporting just throwing them pots of money.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, I understand that. But I thought -MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --there are no positions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: This position is in the Department of Management so it does have one E/P
and it's a civil service position.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It is a civil service? Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, it has an ID number. I apologize, MD-0034. It is an identified position.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That is vacant.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, just for the Committee's understanding, the Mayor's Office are
appointees. The Department of Management is not.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: None of them?
MR. BAZ: They are civil service. Just the Director, the Deputy, and the Secretary, like other
departments.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, that's correct. All others are civil service in Management. Okay.
Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: My last, I understand that, what you're trying to do and that we
may need somebody to do that. I still think it's, would cross between departments. And
also it seems like that that Department is being pretty much wiped out, the Managing
Director's. There's a large amount going away from that Department. So, thank you,
Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Thank you for that. No, you know what, I would say my request to
you is leave it here. I will do a, let me double check and review how we've approached
the two positions for Water Engineers and report back to you. And I'll... `cause you made
that suggestion in an earlier discussion -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --on this subject, Mr. Couch. So I am happy to review that if you'll allow
me that flexibility -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and report back to you with the Chair's, I mean with your revised Budget.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We're going to circle that and I will report back to the Committee on
this regarding line 361.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Ms. Yoshimura, next line?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Four two seven, Feed My Sheep.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Four two seven?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Four two seven.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Four two seven, Feed My Sheep. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, I'm the one made the issue -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and I'm willing to give the 10,000 that Mr. White requested.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So what is that number?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Seventy-five thousand. Restoring to 75,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Members, Feed My Sheep 75,000. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done.
- 145 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 29, 2016

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We even now.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Next line?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Next line is 464, J. Walter Cameron Center, Ms. Baisa.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, Mr. Chair, I communicated with Mr. Gaxiola who happens
to be away. He went to get his daughter out of Brigham Young University.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Nice.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: She graduated and so they're moving her back to Hawaii. And so
he's not here. Otherwise you know he'd be sitting back there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. Did he give you some suggestions?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So anyway, what I did find out with him was I wanted to know
what this money was for and I found out that what we have done of course is grant them
CDBG money as well as they may get some State money, they're doing big renovations
at Cameron Center. And in order to do that they have to move the people or the program
into an empty vacant space and that costs them a lot of money 'cause they have to move
them and they have to do all of the movers and get the tech people to do all the
communication, wiring, and all that stuff. So if they have this money they can move
them and they won't have to move them twice while the current space is renovated. But
without it they keep moving people around and every time they do it it's like $20,000
every time they move somebody. So my suggestion is I think $180,000 may be very
generous. Maybe half of that would help them.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So 90,000?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. Okay. Wait, hold on. This is under General Funds.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You heard Ms. Baisa's request to you, Members, under line 464.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I can live with that. Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Her request is 90,000. You have consensus, Members?
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COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It may mean they have to plan a little better but they'll manage.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Next line, Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Line 578, Substance Abuse Programs.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Five what?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Seven eight.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh, Substance Abuse.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, was that me?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Was that you, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I don't know if it...I...wait. Yeah no, I'm...pass, I'm good.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think that was me, not you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: If it is me. Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. V? Mr. V?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This is the Substance Abuse Program we were going to check
with Ka Hale.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Remember the 97,000 was an increase and I had proposed,
you know, since, you know, if we could reduce it in half to like 50,000 -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --I'd be willing to live with that. You know it's not everything
they want but at least that's something that'll help them and the other programs. So
that was my proposal. But and I did check with Ka Hale, I did talk to Ms. Yamashita
and she said, you know, anything is better than nothing. She'd like the whole thing but
she was willing to accept to 50,000 and then she'll have to see what the State and others.
So that is my proposal, 50,000. So that would take it up to 543, no 53,323.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Say what?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: If I put the 50,000 back in. The 493 it would now become
543,323 right?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I mean my math is not great but...
CHAIR HOKAMA: You got that?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: He got it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Consensus, Members?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Done.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Next line is 654, Youth Programs.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Six five four.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Which one, which one?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I had a revisit on 583. I don't know who it was.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, so do I.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I had 100,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We have consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, 100,000 'cause you took the 2,000 out.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Okay, next.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What was the number again, Ms. Yoshimura?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Six.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Six five four.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Six five...okay, 65...Youth Programs. Here maybe this is the
one.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Page 21, Youth
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This is the one, Mr. Chair, remember I was asking what
programs fell under this auspice because it's like we were told this is like a pool of
money.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You remember? Okay. So, with Mr. Baz here, although
Ms. Sato had the answer, I'm going to turn it over to you. If you don't mind, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I prefer Ms. Sato myself.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I do too. But...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: I'm sorry, Mr. Victorino, do you...what was the question?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And you're not even tired. I mean, you know, oh my
God.
MR. BAZ: I'm pretty tired.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Anyhow, the program, Youth Programs right? We were told
is a pot of money that different youth programs could draw from. But we wanted to
know specifically what this program did.
MR. BAZ: I will get that to you in about 30 seconds.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Chair, you want to go somewhere else and then wait
until he gets it?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Next line.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Next line.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Or we can wait. Next one?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. Next line.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Next line is 694, Management Program.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh wow.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, that's...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Six nine four is you, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's a while.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's the one Couch was going. Okay. Go ahead, Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, we already made certain decisions on certain ones, so.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We did?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I had nothing scratched off. So go ahead, tell me what I did.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, we just did MD-0034. But I don't see any other ones that
we did. Mr. Chair, that was I believe my revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And I think I have SC here but I don't know, Ms. Crivello, do you
have any...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I...but we've already moved the vacant.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We just did the one, the 696. We just moved that one.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Then...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. That was moved, right?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I still think the CIP Coordinators -- 150 -
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Have to stay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --need to stay up there because of what, part of what Mr. Taylor
said that they are not guaranteed to go where we want them to go. So, you know, maybe
the two with the Water Supply we can do the provisos. We still had testimony by several
of, for instance Mr. Goode and I'm not sure if Housing and Human Concerns was able
to come down and talk about it. But they're doing, they need CIP Coordinators. Mr.
Goode needs it for the Molokai Baseyard because his CIP Coordinators is for the stuff
under the ground. They need specialists for aboveground stuff.
CHAIR HOKAMA: What did they think they were doing when they were in Water? Stuff under
the ground.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But Mr. Goode needs somebody that does aboveground stuff.
That's the problem. And the other one was I think you're moving one to Parks and
Recreation. Just from my experience with some of the stuff in the CIP that's in Parks
and Recreation, but that's the old guys. I don't know if any of the later projects, I have
some issues with, but I think there are enough program...projects that are needed to be
looked over that if they don't, if we move these to a different position... different
department, then the projects that need them are going to hire outside services and at
a greater expense than what it will cost just to have them inside. Yes, they made a, they
made some issues here on the floor for the projects we like. But there's a lot of other
projects out there. It's my understanding that there's 38 projects out there that were
actually good projects that we didn't get to see. But the directors came up here and told
us that helped them out quite a bit. So I would like to retain those up at the MD level.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: If I may? Well, I'm looking that you know we're being generous
when trying to fulfill the construction and project for the Molokai Baseyard and I think
that's about 5 million. I'm not sure. So I would like to credit Mr. Goode and the engineer
that he, that's working with him. So how do we assure that our investment of 5 million
will not fall back again? And because this particular engineer, with the Director, has
the wheels moving already. What, how will we respond to that? Or how should we
respond to that?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would make sure that whoever I hire under the AIA contract is professional,
licensed, experienced, and if that person doesn't perform; being the County or owner's
representative I would terminate his butt and turn him into the licensing board.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, but the, we have that position in the position and working
with this project, this particular project at this time. And what I heard Mr. Goode say
is that he needs that so that it can... and have complete oversight. So that, my question
is, is that not what we should take into consideration; the existing civil engineer that's
working on this particular project?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: In my experience I say it helps. But it's not necessary.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I think Mr. Couch missed your, missed the point of
your comment that the...well, Mr. Goode wanted to make sure that his, he was able to
access engineers that were used to doing vertical things. The folks that are doing the
vertical things used to be doing things underground.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, I see.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And they learned. And I don't have any problem with Mr. Goode coming
in and defending the Administration. I think I would be doing the same thing if I were
him. But I would just point out that the Department of Public Works has built lots and
lots of baseyards. They're all over the place. This is not a new thing for them. They
would, you know, they would need to...I'm just talking about the Molokai Baseyard, not
the buildings. So, you know, I am as I mentioned yesterday and the day before, I'm very
focused on making sure that we address the Upcountry water meter waiting list. And if
we can't move people and positions to the Water Department, I would prefer that we
provide a proviso that would state something along the lines of, provided two E/P and
X amount of dollars be used for Water projects specifically for the Upcountry water meter
waiting list; or to resolve the Upcountry water meter waiting list. Because I think that
is, if there is any CIP project that should've been addressed on this island over the last
20 years, that's it. And I think it's one of the most unfair and unjust things that -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Here, here.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --our folks Upcountry have had to put up with. And there's no waiting
lists for water departments anywhere else in the State. Upcountry is the only one. So
at what point are we going to put the resources to it? Now I've had calls complaining
that the Department has said well, we didn't, Council didn't approve the E/Ps. Well,
they've not requested E/Ps for that purpose. Last, I went back and looked, last year
they asked for a Plan Examiner for doing building permit work. That's not the
Upcountry water meter waiting list. So I'm okay with leaving the two Water Engineers
there. But I'd like to have at least one of them focused on Water projects and have
another assistant along with them. So that's my position and I just think it's high time
that we start focusing on a real open sore Upcountry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino, then Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'll yield to Ms. Baisa 'cause she's trying to catch your
attention there. I yield to her, then I'll say my piece.
- 152 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 29, 2016

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Therefore, you relinquish the floor. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. Here, here, Mr. Chair. Wonderful
sentiments and I support them. It is really, really important that we do this. And we
monitor it closely because we're giving them an opportunity to get this done. And I want
to see the results. I won't be on this Council. But I will be living and complaining loud.
I don't have to be nice anymore. I don't have to be nice anymore. I won't be on the
Council so I can come here and say whatever I want. So I would like to give them the
opportunity and let's see what happens. We've got to deal with this list. I came here
ten years ago to try to help with that and I'm leaving, and I'm, you know, we've made
some changes and some good things have happened. But we need to move it up. And
this is an opportunity. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I'll ditto what Ms. Baisa; when we walked in ten years
ago that was one of our promises that we'd get that water meter list and we have. But
not exponentially the way we'd like to. It's moving very slowly. And Mr. Taylor's here
telling us I'm short of engineers, I'm short of engineers. Well here, some of the most
experienced engineers and knowledgeable in water engineering also.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So there's no ifs, buts, ors about it. And I think we can.
We'd like a commitment from the Administration. And I would support what you're
trying to do, Mr. Chair, in this respect. I would like to see this focused on water. You
know and trying to get this completed 'cause I won't be here either. But I live right up
the hill and I can come down with Ms. Baisa and make big noise now. I not shame no
more. Please, if you would. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I do concur with my colleagues that are
from Upcountry as well as my neighbor here from Wailuku. But yeah, the focus needs
to be on the water Upcountry. But I have a different perspective. I've had an item in
my Committee that's been lingering for 22 years. And the Moku'ula Project and recently
the last three weeks I've met with the Countywide CIP Coordinator who has been
working on it and for the first time in over a year I got good answers and you can see in
the paper there was progress going on. And she's, this person seems to be able to meet
with the people on the ground, basically the parties involved and was able to facilitate a
more palatable or amicable solution or working towards getting things done. And so I
was also able to receive a list, an itemization of what it would cost to finish Phase I of
the project. So if we are going to focus that person's scope to Upcountry I would at least
ask that part of that person's duties be able to continue with the project on hand in
Moku'ula just as we, I mean I finally got things moving and I wouldn't want to lose that
perspective on the ground level until things get more stable.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, just to be clear, I would agree that, partially with what Mr. Guzman
was saying. And I think we want to leave the Department the flexibility to choose. I'm
seeing two E/Ps. And if it's one of the engineers and one of the others I think I'm okay
with that. I don't know about Ms. Baisa. But that would give the Department at least
the flexibility to focus on some other projects. But I think we have talent upstairs that
could be focused on solving, you know, solving an issue. And so I think it's, we need to
leave the Department some flexibility on how they make the assignments. But I'd like
to hear from Ms. Baisa or Mr. Victorino 'cause they're more knowledgeable on this than
I am.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch, your turn.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I think I'm agreeing with Mr. White. The
decision, the discussion right now is to leave them in the Department but proviso a
certain amount of salary to work on the Upcountry water system.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And we're going to have to work on the wordings so that the -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --Department really understands what our intent is.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But also have some flexibility to be able to work on -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Other things.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --other projects that they've been doing a good job at.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. I'm fine with that, Mr. Chair. I have no problem with that.
That would work.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I think Mr. Baz had something he wanted to say.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Baz?
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know what, Members, this is what we're going to do.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Go ahead.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I believe the Staff and I have a very good sense of where you want to go.
Our sense will be that you want to retain it in the current -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Department.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: For now.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We will help draft language as we best understand your intention regarding
three things that the Chair recognizes; one, the primary issue of the Upcountry water
list; two, specific projects such as Moku'ula; and third, some flexibility to do some
potentially other type of projects that...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Molokai Baseyard.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Again, you know, I'm going to try and find the wording so it can encompass
Ms. Crivello's project and assist Mr. Guzman's project; address the big issue of meters
in Upcountry. So yeah, that is our understanding and that is how we will move forward
on this area and report back to you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, mister...is that okay, Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. I was just quickly browsing through this
survey and I compiled the top three would be highways, water, audits from this general
community of our Budget. I didn't look through every single thing here, but what I did
compile, and so, you know, these have been real kind of sensitive things in regards to
these E/Ps what have you. For me what's uncomfortable is that I'm looking at these as
just numbers and a, you know, a position. I don't associate it with a name or a face.
But it makes me feel really uncomfortable when people are saying this is so and so and
that so and so. And I, that's not how I've been looking at any of these. The only time I
know a name to these words on this paper is when I hear other Members mention who
they are or what they do. I know what a CIP Coordinator is. I know what a Water work
or engineer is. I don't know who they are. That part doesn't matter to me. But the
position, the job, the responsibility of such a person in this County is what matters to
me. So I feel really uncomfortable when names are dropped or things like that. So
that's just my whole take. Yeah water, and in regards to the person on Moku'ula, since
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I know now who it is, spoke to her and she told me that she'll be off the job in December.
Why, I don't know. But perhaps moving on to other things.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And that's the purview of this prerogative of this Management
to do. To switch their CIP Coordinators around to do whatever they're called to do. So,
and that's fine. That's not my kuleana either. But that's just my whole thing with this,
Chair. I support the focusing on water. And obviously the community. So I will just
see where this body wants to go. But I just wanted to share my real uncomfortable-ness
when I start hearing, 'cause again I never looked at this, any of these types of proposals
that way. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your thoughts.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just a clarification, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You're talking about line 697, 98, 99, and 700, is that correct?
Of how you're going to do your words and magic?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, from 97 -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: To 700?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --to 700 as I share with you my understanding with your discussion of this,
the Membership of this Committee. Retain it in the Department. Provide you with a
recommended language regarding the three areas I said I mentioned that I felt was your
priorities; the Upcountry water, Moku'ula, and...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Only until December, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Yeah, and we'll find words, and also the ability to handle projects
such as Molokai's project.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And again, that will be submitted to you as Members for review and decision.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. Mr. Chair, that's seems very good compromise.
CHAIR HOKAMA: It'll be up to you to review and decide.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's a very good compromise.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
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MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma'am?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Line 697 -CHAIR HOKAMA: Six nine seven, yes?
MS. YOSHIMURA: --is the position that we placed on line 242 in the Department of Finance
for the Agricultural Specialist.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Leave, yeah I'd leave that alone.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So I'll move from 698 on, Members -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and then give you the proposal for you to review and decide on with the
proviso, recommended provisos. Okay. Next line, Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Line 701 is an expansion position.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Seven zero one.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We can't find engineers for other departments but they want
to expand. So kind of like ironic. I mean no offense.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Concession. Concession.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I get it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Whoa, shucks, I'm like whoa, these guys can find another
engineer and we can't fill certain departments with engineers. I mean I'm all for
expansion if it makes sense. But let's fill up what we need first. I take that from
Mr. White.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sir, are you with us? Oh, okay just asking.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
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COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done.
MS. YOSHIMURA: And 702 and 703.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Seven oh two, Members, 703?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Done. Next line?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And I had a moment with Director Goode,
actually my office did. But line 714, this is the Grant to West Maui Veterans Club and
we all know -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: -- this is in reference to pretty much Mr. Paul Laub and his
people to malama Hanakaoo Cemetery there which totally in favor and so is Director
Goode. But, Chair, you heard my concerns in regards to comments via Public Works is
in regards as to their maintenance, the way they maintain the area -CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --in a sense. So asked Director Goode if it's okay to put such
wording and he really appreciated this. So I'd like to propose this now.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Please do.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And basically it says, grant to West Maui Veterans Club to
maintain Hanakaoo Cemetery provided that DPW, Department of Public Works,
approves the entity's maintenance plan. So this, right, this helps the Department -CHAIR HOKAMA: Everybody.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --of Public Works be involved to say, hey how are you going to
take care of it; awesome, we like it, eh this part; so and Director Goode said he really
likes that and perhaps this could be, you know, a role model for others and -CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --to pick up the ball here.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --that proposal. Members, you've heard Ms. Cochran's request.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just for clarification.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: They're still, the grant, et cetera, is still in -CHAIR HOKAMA: Management.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --Management?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Management, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Thank you.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, returning to line 654 Youth Programs.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Six...oh yeah, 654.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh yeah.
MR. BAZ: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh yeah, we gotta go back to that.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, they gave money to teddy bear corner, 16,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: To what?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Teddy bear.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Keiki Makamae, 45,000. Teens On Call 51,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Go ahead, mister...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Worthy projects.
MR. BAZ: So, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you. Yes, as you read here the grants were dispersed to various organizations
based on applications. It is a targeted funds area where RFP is placed and so those
funds are then provided to those areas. One was Molokai, one was Hana, and then the
other was Paia for Teens On Call. So various activities and this is what the Youth
Programs for. And they're typically, if you look historically they'll have been either the
same or similar programs. I know Teens On Call has been funded out of that for quite
a while.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, Chair? Wait hang on, that was, I made that request so I
want to try to...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, actually I did.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So what line is that...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Wait, let me get the page please, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Page 21, 654.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Yes, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And so, Mr. Baz, if I am correct is this open to
any youth organization, you know, of course with the 501(c) and, you know, is it open
for any of these youth organizations? 'Cause Ms. Cochran has brought that up a few
times that it seems like we've closed it out to certain groups.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, so...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I know certain groups apply every year. But go ahead.
MR. BAZ: So yeah, Mr. Chair, this year the Department of Housing and Human Concerns did
it a little differently. They did an open application process for all of these different funds
and all, in fact all their funds, line items, or whatever, you had to apply for that. They
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provided all their applications to, on a CD to the Committee if you want to peruse
through all of the applications. But, so that would've included these targeted funds like
the Youth Programs.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. BAZ: So they did receive those applications already and have plans to spend that money.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. Chair, I'm satisfied. I'd like to keep it in there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Anyone else, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm sorry. What was his, suggestion?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus on what?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: One oh nine two five zero. But...
CHAIR HOKAMA: One oh nine two five zero.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, I...no. I want to go back to 112,620.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: One one two six two zero. What was 3 percent of this? Or
the one more percent?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, it would've gone up to 32-something.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'll do the 3 percent.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I'm okay with...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Three percent that's, because just to be fair.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's what I was looking for, 3 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And what is that?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: How much is it?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: How much was it? Mr. White, you're on the line, you're on
the...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I wasn't on my calculator. I just gave it to you on the top of my head.
CHAIR HOKAMA: At this time just give us the percent.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Three percent, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Three percent. Done.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thirty-two thirteen.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thirty-two thirteen. Thank you, Mr. White. I don't know,
somebody.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I'm here to serve you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You're more than wonderful. Boy, you give somebody
$10,000 they're your friend forever.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I'm a cheap date.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Next line.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Next line is -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. This is the last...
MS. YOSHIMURA: --line 738.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I cannot handle already.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Seven thirty-eight.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Seven thirty-eight. Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We're taking a break.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Staff needs a break. Please return at 8:20. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

8:08 p.m.
8:23 p.m.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . . Okay. Members, We're close, we're getting close. There is
darkness at the end of the tunnel. . . .(chuckled). . . Okay, Members, I believe we are
now in the Office of the Mayor. Ms. Yoshimura, can you give us a line number please?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Line 738.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Seven three eight. Okay. My last note is we were at 77,985. I think that
was Mr. Guzman's number, 77,985.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, that's what we...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The negative.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, and that was part of his proposal. We didn't make a decision.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But that was part of his proposal was to change that number on 73 to
77,985. Okay. And that's where we are.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I can't agree with that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And that's where we are. Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. I guess the first question I would
have is why the reduction, why the cut in 738?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I made cuts because as I looked at it I made cuts in everybody's budget. If
you look I've even made slashes in our Council Services' Budget. I made adjustments
on what I thought was fair amounts for specifically like our two components; Mayor's
Office, Council Services where for various reasons we don't put E/P counts. And there's
advantages, disadvantages. One of it like for us is because we do patronage. Employees
only work the term of the Members. And so it comes under a little different type of
approach for employment. Just like the Mayor's Office, it's patronage. You work for the
term of the Mayor.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Chair, can you use your mic?
CHAIR HOKAMA: So for me, hearing the comments from the general community about the
growth in both of our offices regarding total amounts; and this year you will see it even
in the survey responses, people are concerned about our office and the Mayor's Office
of number of people employed. I felt it was time to make an adjustment. And so I
approached both offices and made what I thought was fair cuts. And then I make it a
proposal to you to consider and adjust according to what you folks feel is the right thing
to do. But, I can tell you as I approached the Mayor's Office, yes I made some cuts. If
you look at our budget on the 7th floor, you will see I made some big cuts. I spared
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nobody the knife. Everybody got treated the same way. Departments, Districts, Mayor's
Office, MD, Council Service, the only one that pretty much escaped the knife was County
Clerk because of his new increased responsibilities in the second year of the cycle for
election purposes. We know that. Every other year he's going to need bumps for election
requirements under State law. And that is basically the only guy that pretty much
escaped what I would call the knife. But that's how I approached the Budget, Mr.
Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you, Chair. That, and that's fair. And that's your
prerogative as Chair as well. And so at this point I would like to request that 120,616
be restored. Although I do have issues with the so-called County Communications
Director I do believe this position here, this 120,612 position is important to the Mayor's
Office. So out of respect for the position of the Mayor I will request that this be restored.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your proposal. Any other comments by the Members?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Done. Next, Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Line 739 and 740.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I believe that was mine and my comments were the same for I
believe the Council Services Office as well. As we're painfully aware that the, there are
bargaining units that get increases, significant increases every year, these folks as well
as our folks I think didn't get too much of an increase last year and we're asking them
to delete the increases again this year. I think it's time that we allow that office some
flexibility to give increases to the people who deserve it. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
- 164 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 29, 2016

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I believe this came up last year and I know what the answer
is but I'm going to try it one more time; I would like to make sure that these, if we're
going to increase salaries that it goes to the support staff, not higher management. You
know and that's what I'd like to make sure that they, but I don't think we can. But I
just thought I'd bring it up because the intent is to give all of those who are the support
staff, the EAs that are support staff a raise; not somebody who's in the higher
management level. And I just want to make sure the money goes in that direction, not
in the other direction that I've just referred to. So, but I think we were told we couldn't,
we cannot tell the departments how to implement the raise. But I want the intent to be
put out there. So I've said it, if we can't put a proviso then we'll just move on. But at
least they understand what our intent was as far as these raises are concerned.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. The, my calculation on the increase is 2.7 percent
and that's, I think that's significantly over inflation. I would be more comfortable with
a total of about 2 percent if the Committee is agreeable to that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: What's the number?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What's the number on that?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I don't know what the number is. But I can get it for you in a second.
Well, actually I moved to another page already.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Baisa? Okay. Yeah, Members, if we can speak a little louder and clearly
into the microphone it would help everyone, the public and...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I'm sorry, I was suggesting a 2 percent increase instead of the
recommended 2.7-something increase.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. The Chair is open to your proposal, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. Let's take a vote on that one.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, Mr. Chair, I'm asking to restore line 739.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The full amount.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You've heard Mr. Couch's request.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, I'd just like to point out -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --that that's a more significant increase than we've provided for our own
staff by almost double the percentage.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, thank you. My thing is, Members, if you want to, if people want those
8 percent increase or whatnot, apply for those jobs. You know what you're accepting
when you work for agencies like us. Okay. Take responsibility for decisions. You want
certain compensation, certain raises, then apply for those positions. Okay. Two
percent?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I guess I'm getting a different picture reading all the responses
in the survey. People want top government cut. They want it downsized. They don't
want Mayor's. They want, on and on these comments go and one of the top ones is
audit; like I said highways and water. And so, you know, they're watching. I
wholeheartedly support you. But again I'm one vote, your one vote, there's nine of us.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And that's why it'll be a Committee decision, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That's right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I'd just like to point out that, you know, in private sector there are
a lot of years where you're only able to provide increases when you have had a, had
somebody leave and you harvest their salary to spread it amongst the others. So, you
know, this, the largesse that we, that I see in the County is I think it's safe to say
extremely unusual in the private sector. So I'm, I can support your recommendation if
no one is willing to go along with the 2 percent.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Of course I'd like the 2.7 but I am a reasonable person. I'll be
happy to settle for 2. Half a loaf is better than none.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, that's three quarter, so.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Or whatever it is, less is fine. Something, something.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair, I -CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --would support your recommendation as well as Mr. White's;
either one I'm good with.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: VII support Mr. White's. . .2 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You guys have any other comments? If not...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Two percent?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Two percent.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And that's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Mr. Guzman said he supports your negative 35, and so did I.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR HOKAMA: So you know what, we just...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, yeah, that's fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So just give me a signal who supports 2 percent? One, two, three, four, five.
Okay. We got at least five. That's good enough. It goes forward. I don't take doing
formal motions or anything, it's just to get us through, close the books tonight. Your
motions and official decision will be scheduled for Monday. Okay. Next? Salary adjust,
it's 740? Salary Adjustments.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done. Next line, Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Line 760.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Nine...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Seven sixty, yeah, Don?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Line?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Line?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Seven six zero.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Line 760, it's for Economic Development Program Salary Adjustments.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Salary Adjustments 35,625, Members.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Two percent.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Two percent's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Two percent.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Whatever.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done. Okay. Staff, we gotta recalculate.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: They going come back and tell us the amount.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: On 766, I know that we have the 7...we have a proviso there for
75,000 -CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --for the Hawaii Farmers Union United.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I would like to add another proviso for 12,000 that's separated
by a line for the Farmers United for the...gosh, what is...oh yeah, a local food production
grant. This is the food hub which I had the opportunity to go to Oregon about a month
and a half ago. And it's a project that I've been working on with Ms. Cochran as well.
And this is just basically the 12,000 is going to be leveraged for a Federal grant of
133,333 to do this study. And so we're well on, we're well beyond the starting point. So
if we could just have that 12,000 that is separate from the 75 so that we can use the
12,000 to leverage.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Members, you've heard Mr. Guzman's proposal of a $12,000 proviso
consideration.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Leveraging.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, he is.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That's right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes he is. Did you folks get that, Staff?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah. And the proviso needs to be for leveraging for the...yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Leveraging of Federal funds.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, and again...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 'Cause if they don't get it, she said if they don't it they won't -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: -- use it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: They won't use it.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: We understand them.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, so again, I will draft the language and we will show it to you folks for
approval.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we'll draft the language.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And here...and it was brought to my attention from
Mr. Guzman also that last year we had proviso'd 15,000 for Maui School Garden
Network. And I believe it came out of here. Is there a line? And it stated provided that
15,000 shall be for the Maui School Garden Network?
MS. YOSHIMURA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So I'm looking to reinsert that proviso here.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Read the proviso -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And we supported that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --for us so that all Members know what the language is please?
MS. YOSHIMURA: In the current '16 Budget it reads, provided that $15,000 shall be for the
Maui School Garden Network to install school gardens.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran, is that...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's what you want?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, I would...
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's the current language.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, give Mr. Guzman 12, we already put 75, now the
15; this Fund now has gone from 275 for promotion purposes, or 200,000 down to under
100,000. We keep dwindling, earmarking money and then all of a sudden when we do
have promotions like the Ag Fest and all these other ones we're not going to have much
money to help them.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: They already have a line item.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So I'm concerned that we keep taking, putting provisos; and
I think we got ourselves in trouble in the past we put too many provisos, and now we're
going to do that again. I mean, I support leveraging. I support gardening. But you
know how much more can we give and then leave OED with very little money to work
with when it comes to Agricultural Promotion? If we're not promoting, we're not growing.
That's another issue. And you teach everybody what you want to teach them. You can
make 'em good farmers. But if there's not some kind of promotion most businesses do
not thrive and that's been our arm right here. That's been a big part of it. So I just put
that out there on the table. We keep dwindling at it, it's under a 100,000 from 275, it's
gone under 100,000 for Agricultural Promotions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that comment. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I would like to support what Mr. Victorino has said. You know
I've been warned by people that do this to be careful about too many set asides. It really
takes away a lot of our flexibility if we, you know, put everything in a pot, I mean in a
line. It's a pot, so is it a pot? Or is it a line?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Whatever is in currently is what you as a Committee has chosen to
put in. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know we have, we also have revenue and both Mr. Couch
and I put out numbers. Some of those numbers would take care some of these issues
without provisoing it, making sure that fund, so if you want to add 15 or add 12 I've got
no problem because I think we still have some flexibility. So, that's my take on that.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Anyone else? You've heard the proviso by Ms. Cochran -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: --any other comments? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, as much as you can tell it pains me to agree with
Mr. Victorino. I agree with adding 12...15,000 and then the proviso.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, we already made a decision on the amount. We're not going back to the
amount right now. You can talk about the provisos but I'm not going to reopen numbers
again. If not, we're going to open all the other pots, no. Live with the decisions we made
and then after we get the reconsolidation balance proposal for you to review on Monday,
you guys want to make adjustments again then that's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair? Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I've got another idea. Why don't we look at the Maui County
Farm Bureau? What did we give them last year, Ms. Yoshimura?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Three twenty?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Maui County Farm Bureau in Fiscal '16 had $319,793.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Three twenty. And was there any provisos under that
category?
MS. YOSHIMURA: No, there wasn't any.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: There you go.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, Mr. Chair, I'd like to propose putting a proviso under that
category 15,000 going to the...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you very much -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --Mr. Victorino.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I get 'em. Got me all nervous there but I get 'ern.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Done. Next line?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Nine eleven -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Nine eleven?
MS. YOSHIMURA: --Environmental Protection.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Nine eleven. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I would like to restore to the Environmental Protection the
full amount of 1,400,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Agreed.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And the reason is, as you saw, we've received enough
information from MISC that to fulfill their obligations, not only with, well mostly with
the fire ant and the other issues, you know, coqui we have that separate and that's fine.
But we are very concerned and you've heard that a number of times too that the fire ant
is really more devastating to this community. Coqui is a nuisance, I agree, and a
nuisance you don't want. I know what it did to the Big Island. I lived through that. I
watched it grow from a few frogs up in upper Waiakea to where it is, almost the entire
island, the east end of the island. So, but this one we need the money because we need
really an expedited effort to get rid of the red, the fire ants before it gets out of control.
So I would like to reinstate the $1.4 million in that line. And I have places I can find it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You've heard Mr. Victorino's proposal, Members. Any other
comments?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We're going to vote. I'm not going to agree.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Who wants to support restoring 400,000?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Four hundred thousand? Yeah, oh yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Four hundred thousand.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Raise your hand.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Keep your hands up.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One, two, three, four, five, six. Okay. We'll restore it. Next line please?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: She had first...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Are you on this line or are you on the next?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, I'm still on this line.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Mr. Chair, 2 years ago we had a proviso for the Hoaloha
-Aina South Maui Volunteers for 65,000 on this, from this fund. Last year they said
they didn't need as much since they went down to I believe 35,000. And this year they've
been able to be very frugal with that 35,000 and they would like to go down to 10,000
for this year. Same proviso as the last three years. Same line, 911.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Proviso, out of it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Nine eleven?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Do you have the language, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes, sir, I do. And it's the same as last year's but it's provided
that $10,000 shall be for the Hoaloha sAina South Maui Volunteers.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You've heard the request. Any other comments?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Done.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh. Yeah. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, come on the two of you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, under the same line we gave, it was Maui Nui Marine
Resource, they had the Marine Reef Recovery Plan and so now that that has been done
they need to implement the plan. And so looking to reinstate a proviso provided that
75,000 shall be for Maui Nui Marine Resource for Maui Coral Reef Recovery Plan
implementation, Phase II. They had a Phase I, now they're into, getting, heading into
their Phase II of the plan.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other comments?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any objections?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: They've had 70,000 last year and the year before.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, yeah, I recall the numbers.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Done.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, excuse me -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --you said they had 70,000 last year and the year before?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I want to keep it the same, 70,000.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You've heard...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: We just had consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We just...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I know.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, we just voted.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. I not, you guys...I go 70 but that's okay, fine.
Because again, we're dwindling the fund again.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It stands at 75?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. From now on we're just going to take what the Chair says after I hear
your comments and decision. Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's it. Let's move forward.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Nine two three.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Nine two three, thank you. You guys want to delete this?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I don't have a problem. You guys said everything else. So I don't have a
problem with taking this away from my proposal.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, I support the funding at this level -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --since we've increased the 400.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Done. Anything else, Ms. Yoshimura? Okay. You're done.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wow.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, we're done with that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, we're not...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Done with that section.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Last night Member Guzman added a proviso for a grant for the restoration
of Moku'ula and Mokuhinia. And he placed it under this area, under Parks and
Recreation. Now that the Committee has taken a look at restoring the CIP team back
in the Managing Director's Office I believe this is a project that Mr. Guzman would want
under the CIP team.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Actually...yeah...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Not necessarily though.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Not necessarily? Well, the CIP Coordinator that has been
currently working on this project, the parties have been accustomed to. So it's
imperative at least in my plan of action is to have someone there to help get over the
transitional state which is basically creating a grant that would be RFP'd. I do, I did
draft out a revolving fund for the concession that will be heard at the next Council
meeting. And the concession monies would be going into the revolving fund and there
would be a grant available for an RFP group to come in and utilize the funds. Basically,
it needs to be in a position where like for instance the Lahaina Restoration, they think
outside the box.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: They generate revenues from other sources. What we have
currently is a entity that is purely dependent on a concession. And in order to get them
to the next stage or whoever to the next stage it has to be via grant where they're applying
for it just like Lahaina Restoration where they're applying for grants and they're using
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other sources. The money's going to be there, it's just that there's going to be more
accountability to it. And more effort being made to generate the monies.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Mr. Guzman, have you had an opportunity to have a discussion with
Corporation Counsel and Mr. Baz of regarding this setup of how you want to do this
financial mechanism and if it's a doable thing? Either I don't know if Corporation
Counsel has any comments, suggestions, advice, or if Mr. Baz would have some
recommendations on how the money should be flowing? And so what I'm going to say
is I think the three of you need to speak after we complete this portion and then I am
open to you contacting me this weekend to let me know what is the results of your
conversation, Mr. Guzman, and then we can then make, work on the worksheets to help
implement your idea and then present it to this Committee on Monday.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you. I do have like I said we submitted for agendizing a
revolving fund which will be heard at the next Council meeting.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I support the direction this is going. I think it's, the reality is that
a portion of Moku'ula is under the parking lot. So the parking lot concession is going
away. So I'm not sure that the revolving fund is something that's long term because it's
not going to have a parking lot that's going to be providing income. So I think it's
appropriate for us to move in this direction. I believe the amount that Mr. Guzman has
put in this will allow for us to continue some of the archaeological work and some of the
other work that needs to be done. So I'm not sure exactly how that's going to happen
at this point. But I think as long as we have the monies there we can begin moving
away from the dependence on the concession revenue.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And again I'd just like to have Mr. Ueoka and Mr. Baz be able to give some
comment because more likely in the end they are going to be helping administrate a
program once we get it established. So maybe the discussion among you three to how
this is actually going to work would be helpful for this Committee. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I would also like to add that according to
the memo regarding the opinion on whether we could use Park Assessment Fund for
this project, it appears that it, we can, it's just that we would have to find the nexus and
put that on record.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Like we did previously to the Library situation.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I think we did. We did.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. We did? Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We did it for the project at the harbor.
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh, at the harbor.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman is talking about Moku'ula.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We okayed it, are you looking for the nexus?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: 'Cause I have it hear as okayed. It was item number five on line,
around line 953.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, I think the funding was still kind of in limbo. It's going to be
either Park Assessments or even looking at the Open Space Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But you were...oh, so you were looking for nexus?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
MS. YOSHIMURA: So we're looking for where the funding is coming from and if this is the
right area that it's going to -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
MS. YOSHIMURA: --remain.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And that's why I would really like -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --the three of them to have a discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. 'Cause I have it down there from Park Assessment. But
maybe I.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That's for my project.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That was one of the considerations of how to fund.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is how I recall the conversation.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That was one of the options of how to fund but we did not decide that was
going to be the source. So again, you know, I look for some guidance after Mr. Guzman,
Mr. Ueoka, and Mr. Baz have a chance to have a chat. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And I really appreciate the efforts of
Mr. Guzman. And I had a real brief preliminary look at his proposal in regards to moving
this project forward and I see it in a very positive light. Yeah, the issue is about funding,
what have you, but I don't truly think it is an issue with there is the concession, if we
can reel that in on, you know, the transparency of how it's allocated and being utilized.
And then I'm okay. I mean Park Assessment, Open Space, I know West Maui has a bit
and this is an extremely worthy project, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, how...
CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm not discounting that at all.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, no, and I'm not trying to say you're not thinking that. I'm
just really trying to emphasize that right now. And whatever happens throughout the
weekend via the three people you're talking about I look forward to the outcome and
have them know that I support and would love to work alongside to make sure that it
does roll out, you know, in a positive manner. 'Cause this is a long time coming. And
so I think like I said preliminarily I saw Mr. Guzman's proposal and it looks, it's
awesome, and I think, it's going to take some doing but I think it's totally doable. So
with that I expect positive results. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that. Yeah, I am one who's been there from the beginning. I
would love to see a constructed project.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We all would.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, amen.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. Thank you, yeah, Mr. Chair. Thank you, I remember
work, getting, signing the, getting ready, the lease ready for the parking lot for Mr. -CHAIR HOKAMA: Akana.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --Akana, yes and as Ms. Cochran says it's been a long time
coming. It's been in Mr. Guzman's Committee for that many years and then some. So
I'm glad to see this finally getting going.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, thank you. Ms. Yoshimura, any other lines we need to review at this
time?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: We're all good on language for the Lahaina Restoration
Foundation-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --point here? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, we had consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I just wanted to make sure -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, we had consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --the wording and all that's correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And then we're going to, after Mr. Guzman lets us know -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --the results of discussions we'll then fine tune the language proposal for
your review and approval.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Very good. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Nine six four is the next one.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Nine six four.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Can she speak up a little bit?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Nine six four.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I still have a revisit on 957.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Nine six four.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, we had a consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: ...restore 84?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It was 958 but then that got, that got taken care of with the
Management Office.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, 964, let's see.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We added 84K back.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I thought this was...didn't we just...what?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I have...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Where is the Fire's side?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh wait.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I thought we made a...
MS. YOSHIMURA: Yes, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I have a DC on that line.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: This is the position that we took action on, the Committee took action on
in the Fire Department under -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right. Right.
MS. YOSHIMURA: --the Ocean Safety.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right. Ocean Safety, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: What's in that, which line number?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Nine six four in Parks Department.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I think Mr. White was asking about -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. White asked about 957.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --957, chief, sir.
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MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, on line 957 I have $84,000 restored.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, so the, mine, yeah the subtraction is reduced by 32,000 now instead.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Next line, Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Line 965 which is Reduce Operations. This is, oh, this is the one Member
Guzman had his proposal taking into consideration Parks CIP Programs.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You're welcome. And that was, I put down 49,313.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No. That was line 966 for the South Maui truck.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay. I know it was something there. Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Members, 965.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: He left.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: He left.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, the only no...
CHAIR HOKAMA: We gotta go, guys. So we gotta make the calls.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, the only no I have is plus 250K and that's all I got so I
don't know what happened.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, I got that too.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. I think that's what he wanted to restore but I, we can't
guess so I don't know. Moving on or...
CHAIR HOKAMA: We're going to move on 'cause I don't have time.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Alright.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Let's go. Let's go.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And then Monday you guys can have your review and then that's
when you make your decisions, okay?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. Move on.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, Chair, that is, that's along with 964? I don't have any
marks on 964.
MS. YOSHIMURA: On 964 there was...
CHAIR HOKAMA: What did we make the call under Ocean Safety?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That was the one they're moving...
MS. YOSHIMURA: On 964 that was the clerk -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Isn't that the one they moved from Parks?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MS. YOSHIMURA: --that you moved from Parks to -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But we left him in Parks.
MS. YOSHIMURA: --Fire right?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Didn't we just leave that in Parks?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: No. We moved it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We moved it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: 'Cause that was part of, again part of the understanding was that was from
the original, earlier submittal from the Department of Parks. They had recommended
that the clerk move with the Safety Officers.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But I thought Mr. Buenconsejo had...oh, I missed that one.
I missed that one.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. And so again we're just making the call so we can wrap up and then
Monday -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --you will have the opportunity to make those final adjustments.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Monday you can come back and make your final changes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Moving forward.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair, I thought this was the position that the Director wanted
to keep in the Department.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, that's what I...
MS. YOSHIMURA: Sorry, Mr. Chair, I stand corrected.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. YOSHIMURA: That is the position that you are going to keep in Parks.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I was trying to say that and they're telling me I'm wrong.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And the next line, what about the next line? He don't know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. No, we got it corrected, Mr. Victorino. Thank you. Okay. Next line?
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MS. YOSHIMURA: Nine six six, Equipment.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Nine six six, Equipment.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Reduce equipment.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
MS. YOSHIMURA: You had consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Moving right along.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Next line?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Line number -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. YOSHIMURA: --1086.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's Page 35.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Or 1087.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's the Molokai Veterans -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, that's the one...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --I mean the Veterans.
MS. YOSHIMURA: So -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We...
MS. YOSHIMURA: --we're going to consensus on that?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, consensus.
MS. YOSHIMURA: And -- 186 -
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
MS. YOSHIMURA: --I believe this is the area that Ms. Cochran wanted to visit on the slope
mower.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Let's see, line 1083 and wanted to add slope mower, this is
West Maui Slope Mower, 100,000 from the Highway and 100,000 from General and the
Highway will be adjusted.
CHAIR HOKAMA: What line you were looking at, miss...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Well, I get, it needs to go in this area, am I right -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Ten eighty-three she's looking at?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --Ms. Yoshimura? Under 1083 line, Special Maintenance
Program.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. This is General Fund then.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: General Fund.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right, so just 100,000 out of here for the General, is that
right?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Currently, there's $100,000 of General Fund budgeted for the slope mower.
The Director requested that the funds be $200,000 and so Ms. Cochran was going to
find $100,000 in General Fund to add to it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So your proposal is to add 100,000?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes. Yes. But also proviso that right? Put language -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: For the mower?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --to make sure that it's for the West Maui slope mower.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You've heard Ms. Cochran's request for -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --100,000 West Maui -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Members.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --General Fund. Okay. Next?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair, I completely apologize. I had to call my wife because my
boys were stuck at gymnastics so I missed portions of the Parks Department which I
wasn't sure whether they were added in or not. May I verify at this point?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: On the, on 957 the Department was requesting that 84,000 -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --be restored.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We did that.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. And 965 that would be 250,000 -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --be restored.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That was a consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: And then...
CHAIR HOKAMA:. . .(inaudible). . .
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No we did not.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: We didn't do that.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: You did not? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The other one we did. We did not...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. So at this point I'm going to request that for 965 250,000
be restored. This is for the Qualified Rehabilitation Maintenance Operations. This is
for them to hire additional maintenance. This is through the, I believe one of the, see
implementation in the maintenance strategy. I don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: You know what I'm talking about, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And that's the one I'm not gonna support. Again, it is for anticipated parks

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --in the future.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's the one. Yeah, that's where you had that problem.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That is my burn, anticipated parks. We got parks that we own now we gotta
take care. Why would we put money for parks -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, not now.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --anticipated in the future?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We got our own problems with our existing parks.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Can we do a quick vote on that one so we can
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --move on?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Who wants to restore 250 for this one, raise your hand?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. Let's move on.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Let us move forward.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Lone ranger.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. Nine sixty-six was the 80,000 restored for the 4000-D
Mower?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I support that.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I'll support that because that's...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What? I'm sorry?
CHAIR HOKAMA: The 4000-D mower, Members. You know I called it the Tesla mower because
it was $8,000. It is for districts.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: It is not just for a district. It is to be used for multiple districts. And it's a
multiple mower. It...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Which line number?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Where is that? Where is that?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Nine six six.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Nine six.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Nine six six.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So you're adding 80,000 back in?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. 111, I...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Plus 80.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: With the...
CHAIR HOKAMA: I did my own due diligence and talked to my own -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --grounds equipment people and they told me what it was.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I'm done.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We still...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: One more word okay.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Just for clarification -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MS. YOSHIMURA: --so on line 966 -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MS. YOSHIMURA: --it's a total of-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: One hundred...
MS. YOSHIMURA: --$130,000 -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. YOSHIMURA: --to be added back?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, for that Tesla mower.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The Tesla mower and the truck.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And the truck.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: For South Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, the super mower.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. Very good.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Next line?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You're next.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We got consensus, consensus, consensus, consensus. We put that back,
add back, add, add, add, add, add, add. . .subtract, add, add...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I believe it's line 1118 is what I have as my marker. And it was
going to be something where we're going to discuss after today's discussion on Highway
Fund.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: This was the Bikeway Fund.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And I know Mr. Goode wanted some funds in there so that if
there's a situation with the North Shore Bikeway that they're putting out to bid here
soon and then the Lipoa extension that he wanted to have some leeway without having
to come back to us. I'm fine either way. If we leave it out that's fine and he'll just have
to come back if there's a contract, I mean change order, whatever that causes the
contract to go over.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's what he was going to use that for.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz, what is your level of confidence in getting enough revenues for this
fund?
MR. BAZ: I apologize, Mr. Chair, I was conferring with my staff.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is 1117, Mr. Baz, Page 36. It's at the bottom. This is contributions to
Bikeway Fund. Again, this is under the Highway Administration Program Highway
Fund. So we're talking about special monies -- 192 -
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MR. BAZ: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --in the Department of Public Works.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, this fund is the supplemental transfer from Highway Fund to
Bikeway for whatever projects are funded. So whatever projects ended up needing to be
funded this year that's, so we proposed, you know, a certain amount of projects, I think
it was $600,000 and so the fund was $287,918 short from that. So we had to transfer
monies from the Highway Fund to the Bikeway Fund to cover those additional
expenditures. So yeah, so whatever the end product is of what you're funding in, out of
Bikeway Fund is what then the net transfer would be in reference to. And yeah this is...
CHAIR HOKAMA: So you feel the Highway Fund will be able to generate sufficient that this is
a doable restoration? I hate to put -MR. BAZ: Well, it's a matter of...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --the burden on you, Mr. Baz. But you understand the Revs -MR. BAZ: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --you know, very well within the County inventory. So I respect your opinion
if you tell me. you know. you might want to be cautious at this time knowing the
demands of Highway Fund for Abandoned Vehicles, Malama Maui Nui, all this and that.
MR. BAZ: I'll give you...
CHAIR HOKAMA: We understand.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, I'll give you kind of a generic answer. With all funds it's about
prioritization. You know, all funds are limited. So if...and the Highway Funds especially
are limited and there's a significant amount of pressure put on the Highway Fund from,
you know, transportation, from roads; I mean it's something that's constantly in need
of funding. And funding is very limited in that. Our ability to generate revenue for that
is limited. So it's something that we have to balance out. If it's a priority of this Council
to provide, you know, bikeways, then that's a priority. Again, it just has to balance out
from something else.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah. I hear you. And you answered it without answering. Let me
tell you, I get your answer. So, hearing Mr. Baz's comments, Members, I would say let's
leave it where it is.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Let the Chair and the Staff now start the reconciliation and bring the Budget
into balance for all of you so that Monday you will see the impact upon General Fund,
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Bonds, Lapsed Bonds, Special Funds, Rates and Fees, Adjustments, and then if you feel
to make additional last adjustments prior to final decision the Chair is open to that.
But at least you will know the status of the funds.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Eleven thirty-five.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Road, Bridge and Drainage Maintenance - Highway Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, is that me?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, I think this is where she wanted to -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, I think I got it all taken care of.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --for the mower yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right, Ms. Yoshimura? Oh, my equipment.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, I think this is where she wanted to add the sweeper, the vacuum.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I think we got that.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I thought we...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait. We did sweepers.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Yeah, but it was taken care of in the equipment bond.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
MS. YOSHIMURA: So...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, my...we got to... `cause this is the fund that actually pays the bond.
Okay. The bond is just the borrowing. Now we need the funds to pay back the bond.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And so this is where Staff is saying that you might want to -- 194 -
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. So it comes from the Highway Fund.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --recommend because it's a street cleaner for highway purposes. So that's
the nexus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait, I got one street sweeper because...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, from the trailers.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The toilet trailers.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, but that's still...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Under bond.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But that was still by bond right?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So now we're telling, we're saying is this where you want to pay back the
bond from, the Highway Fund? You gotta pay back the bond.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, I know. Is it...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Now you're confusing me.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Do you pay it off right away?
MS. YOSHIMURA: The debt service would be calculated on 1126 and that's something that
Staff would figure out over the weekend.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So you want, this is where you want the proviso right?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So I...
MS. YOSHIMURA: No. I think Ms. Cochran was looking for two sweeper trucks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sweepers.
MS. YOSHIMURA: We put one in the bond.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no, no.
MS. YOSHIMURA: And I guess the other one would -CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, okay.
MS. YOSHIMURA: --be most appropriately here, placed here.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I thought we agreed to one?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no. We agreed to one. The other one was supposed to
come to Wailuku but I said I gave that up.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --she wanted one, not two.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Only one.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: If she going take two, then I want that one back. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No. We only agreed on one.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, that's what we did.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And you chose to wait another year, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's correct. So that's just in case you going give her two.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: You know what, one is better than none.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Ms. Cochran, you have one sweeper truck in the Equipment Bond for West
Maui.
CHAIR HOKAMA: West Maui, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right, yeah. I'm all for Central having one somewhere,
somehow if there's a way. If there's a will.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We're not reopening what we already closed.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. I already agreed upon, I'm fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We're done.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Alright, we'll just stop and never mind, never mind for this
year.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: If I need I'll call up Lahaina and borrow theirs.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Got it.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. YOSHIMURA: The next page, 1156.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Bus Replacement.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, this is the one we wanted to help with a bus. This is
what, two buses or just one, Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: I believe it was for 5 -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Five buses?
MS. YOSHIMURA: --25-passenger buses and 1 school bus. And the reduction was based on
using the estimated cost of a 25-passenger bus based on the CDBG resolution that you
passed a couple of months ago at $141,000 I believe.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So you're reducing one bus?
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MS. YOSHIMURA: So, we took 141 times 5.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We adjusted it by the price we got for the CDBG buses.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, I see.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So that's how we -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --based the expense.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So the final total is that amount and then so you take 156 out.
That's fine. Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. We're okay with that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Next line, Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: The next line is 1157.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, that...
MS. YOSHIMURA: So MEO Transportation.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: What's the justification? What are you taking out?
MS. YOSHIMURA: This is a reduction of $300,462. I believe this was the increase that they
requested for the 5 percent that was built into their contract.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I think that we should reinstate it. You know, they, it's in their
contract. I know they need it. I'm understanding that bus drivers haven't had raises
and are scheduled to have some. And so if we can find this money I'd really like to put
it back. You know we're having, I know MEO's having a really hard time attracting and
retaining drivers. And, you know, without drivers nothing works. And that's why we
get complaints because when they're short staffed and they have to stretch you can only
do so much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You heard Ms. Baisa's proposal.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know and I agree with Ms. Baisa but since we've been
on this 2 or 3 or 4, or 21/2, and, Ms. Baisa, would you be acceptable to take 150,231 and
that way they get 21/2 percent this year and let's see what we can do for them next year?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'd like to ask; I know the ladies are here from MEO. I don't know
what they're planning to give the staff.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay 'cause._
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What size of a raise they're going to give.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, that's, I'd like to see, yeah, if they could be called
up, Mr. Chair, and real quickly?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. That's fine, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair.
MS. McNEFF: Lyn McNeff, CEO of Maui Economic Opportunity. Seeing the other parts of our
agency got 3 percent we would like to be even across the board. You know it makes
disparity when you give someone 2, someone 3, someone 1. So we would request 3
percent so that we could at least give, they haven't had raises in quite a while and as
she said we are short drivers.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, I can support 3 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You've heard the adjusted request from Ms. Baisa. Questions,
comments? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I think that's fair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done.
MS. McNEFF: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And then...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: While we have her here.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The Transportation Center.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We have...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ask your question, please.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: If you don't mind, the next line is the Transit Center. And there
was a million dollars taken out. Can you tell us how that's going to affect you?
MS. McNEFF: Well, what I'll do is if I don't get the $3 million from the State, then we won't
need the 500,000 'cause you can't do much with 500,000 on a maintenance facility. So
we'd be willing to do it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So that means that, you know, you do the budget for the upcoming
year I would imagine. And I know that you're paying some exorbitant amount of money
every month.
MS. McNEFF: Yes, we are. Over 12,000.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Is that in your budget? I mean if you can't build a center, then
you gotta keep paying rent. Can you handle that? 'Cause, you know, we don't want
you guys to go bankrupt. We're going to have a real big problem.
MS. McNEFF: Well, it is going to be hard. And this maintenance facility would alleviate that
rent and I would give you the 150,000 a year out of my base budget if I could get my
maintenance facility because it would allow me not to have to pay that and it goes up
every year. It goes up 1-2 percent every year. So and we may not even have it. I know
we're not going to have it December 2017 so we're going to have to be somewhere.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And you haven't heard from the State what they're doing yet?
MS. McNEFF: No, I have not.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I understand it's, we've been playing with them too. Not good news
we got.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I would, you know, I would be in favor of putting this back
with a proviso that the State's 3 million comes in. If the State's 3 million doesn't come
in, you can't do anything anyhow.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Is that correct, Ms. McNeff?
MS. McNEFF: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So that would be the way I'd like to approach this.
MS. McNEFF: I couldn't do anything with it, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: With the Transit Center.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Makes sense.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. That's what I would like to recommend, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would say that might be a very good strategy. Then the ball is in, the
burden is on their shoulders.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Exactly.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And not our shoulders. So -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I can...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --I am very open to that proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I like that idea.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I can agree with that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other comment?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's a great idea.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
-201 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 29, 2016

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I just had a question for Ms. McNeff. You said 500,000 or a
million or a million five?
MS. McNEFF: A million five we'd need it to make the building what we have right now.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: If they take out a million they got 500,000.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: That's the total request so it's restoring...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We're putting back the million.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You're putting back the million?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
MS. McNEFF: So that I can get a complete building.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But with the proviso that the 3 million from the State -MS. McNEFF: I understand that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --must be received. If you don't get that, sorry.
MS. McNEFF: I understand that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Mr. Chair? We do that with others.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And we can explain to the constituents that it was, we tried.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Members, you've heard the adjusted proposal. Any other comments?
Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
MS. McNEFF: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Done. Next?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Eleven seventy-two, 1173. I think this is where Ms. Crivello wanted to put
her, the audit. But we put it in the Council Services' budget. So I don't know if there's
any further changes -- 202 -
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
MS. YOSHIMURA: --to this area.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Not for me.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Next line?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Line 1260.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right at the end.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Let's see.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Hang with me, we'll get it done.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Twelve sixty? That's...
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's the Water.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, that's the stuff we did at MD's office. So -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, so again -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --we're, it's done.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --your Chair has his directions from you and I'm going to have to work on
that and present that back to you. So yeah, that's, we addressed that so yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I have an RV next to 1170 on down. And when we talked about
that we said we would kind of leave it that way until we knew where we were. But I'm
kind of worried because of this Paratransit line which is 1172. And I know that's the
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one that MEO does. And you remember this morning we had a testifier. She sat over
there. What was her name?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That was Ms. Davis.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aunty Penny
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aunty Penny. And I'm assuming Aunty Penny came here on the
Paratransit. And I know Ms. Crivello and I get a lot of calls about Paratransit.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Can you talk into your microphone?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, please so we don't have...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, we get a lot of calls about Paratransit. You know there not
being enough people or enough time or enough, you heard all that the testifier had to
say this morning. So I'm wondering if we make this cut in Paratransit, and I'm sorry
but I don't know much about the public transit thing 'cause, you know, I'm not involved
with that. Is this going to make this situation worse that we have with these Paratransit
passengers? Because, you know, they want more hours, they want more service, and I
know the contract is very tight. So it's very difficult and I know we can't do everything
for everybody. But I'd certainly like us to at least talk about it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I was just going to ask somebody who's not here a question. But that's
okay. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I can appreciate what Ms. Baisa is asking. I've never heard
something before because we don't have money going out to the consumer, telling the
consumer we can't do this 'cause we don't have monies. What is this removing? Is it,
what are these monies assigned for?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right. I don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Can we ask?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: When we say Paratransit do we mean we need drivers; do we
need new buses?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What was the money asked for?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura? We have our worksheets?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, it's for a 5 percent increase to the contract.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: That's right. I believe Roberts sent in testimony that they wanted 5 percent
increase for their employees.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: But this is...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
MS. YOSHIMURA: This contract is with MEO.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This one is with MEO?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just the Paratransit. The rest is Roberts right? Maui Bus is
Roberts?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. So the Paratransit is the MEO piece. Could we ask the
ladies please, if nobody minds?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We'll bring them back, one of them back.
MS. McNEFF: Lyn McNeff, Maui Economic Opportunity, CEO. Yes, it is for the Paratransit.
Those drivers have not, this will be their fourth year starting July 1, and they have not
had any increase. We have had no increase in this contract. So that's what it was for,
for the drivers.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Would 3 percent help?
MS. McNEFF: Three percent would be great 'cause then it would be, you know, across the
board. The same thing as I said about the others.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I can go with the 3 percent instead of 5 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Ms. McNeff.
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MS. McNEFF: Thank you
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other comments, Members? You okay?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, we're fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus? Done. Okay. Thank you. Anything else, Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: That's it for the . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, at what point would it be appropriate to make a motion with
respect to the Open Space Fund? Are we going to do that today or...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we're going to take a recess first and then I'll -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Pardon?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --respond to all of you at the same time. How long you want? Five-minute
recess. . . .(gavel).
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

9:26 p.m.
9:39 p.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . . Okay, Members, couple of things, good and bad news. So first
thing let me direct you to page, line 2538.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Twenty-five thirty-eight.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is Page 81.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Eighty-one oh, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Highway Beautification and Disposal of Abandoned or Derelict Vehicles.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You see the Mayor's proposal 3,817,676. What we have from Staff is, I know
you already know what Committee did earlier this morning on the current year's Budget.
So, Members, they plan to bring in 744,134. So when you look under the column of
Fiscal Year '17 Expenses HBF or Highway Beautification Fund, you see that they have
totals of 744,134 which means if this is going to work you're going to need to consider
moving the following things. Transferring another $312,118 from Highways to the
Beautification Fund. Then from Solid Waste you're gonna have to transfer another
$726,705 into the fund, okay. We gotta pump in over a million dollars, okay. So that
is part of the impact of what we are going to deal with based on decisions we are making.
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Second, please look at line 2576. Twenty-five seventy-six is your Open Space Fund, and
currently as I understand it, and then again this is not an official number and the Staff
and I gonna keep working with Mr. Baz and Ms. Sato, but my understanding as of 4:30
there is only $8,196,000, okay, and that we are going to reverify.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Wait, wait.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So that is one of the factors I need for you to look at.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Does that include or not include this year's contributions?
CHAIR HOKAMA: My understanding is this does not include the incoming fiscal year numbers.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's a little better news.
COUNCILMEMBERS: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Not by much but not that little.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Then please look at 2593.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Twenty-five ninety-three.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I would. . .the current number that I'm looking at, including the
incoming 2017 proposed revenue, will bring this fund to a total to six million eight
hundred forty-six...you heard me right 6,846,565.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: What happened to...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Where did the 25,000 go?
CHAIR HOKAMA: It don't exist.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, is that just because of all the draw-downs we did from
the provisos for the last number of years?
CHAIR HOKAMA: And I don't know. I mean again, you know, I mean like what happened in
Highway Fund double bookings, I have no clue on the exact. . .what exactly happened.
All I know is what we have left to deal with and this is your number you get to work
with, okay. Currently, this is what we know.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Does Budget Office have an idea of what happened?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: They're not Finance, they're Budget, but, you know, if you wanna ask
Mr. Baz. I wouldn't want to at this point speculate, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so again I'm just saying this is what I'm gonna. . .we are gonna work
with at this point in time until we can get a different number that can be verified and
defended, but this is your impact. So therefore with all of the adds in the last hour, we
are now even beyond Mr. Victorino's at projected revenues, okay. So now we're looking
at over 9 percent increase higher than the Mayor regarding taxes. So, you need to come
back at 2:00 p.m. on Sunday 'cause we are gonna have to go into either more than likely
a cut mode 'cause your Chair ain't gonna recommend 9-plus percent increases in taxes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, the, neither Mr. Victorino's nor Mr. Couch's exceeded the Mayor's.
My recollection was the Mayor's was about 275 and they were at about 272.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I think he followed the Mayor's one except for one component. Mr. Victorino,
if I remember you adjusted Commercial Residential, but I think you followed the Mayor's
rates on basically all others?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, actually I, other than the two.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, and you upped two categories.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Two I went back to the original. Two back to the original rate
and all the rest I adjusted three down and a few up, but none of them to the original
rate. If we had, if I did that, just back to the original rate, there's the paper, it
would've. . .and I also wanna put this in your mind, Mr. Chair, we have $3 million we're
putting in the Emergency Fund, I mean in the Self-Insurance. We all know what we
discussed. You know I'm. . .and I think Mr. Couch and I both think about the same
thing. We may use some of that, a small reduction. Maybe dropping it to 2 mil. I'm
not sure at that this point. It would be depending what we see overall, but as far as my
rates, the only changes I made I reduced the Commercial Residential where Mr. Couch
went back to the same one. I just reduced it and all the rest I brought down by
percentages about 2. . .well, 11/2-2 percent from what the Mayor was putting at. So if
we were to put that and go back to what the Mayor was asking, remember when the
Mayor put his out it was 275,000. . mean 275 million, excuse me, and mine was
272 million, Mr. Couch was pretty close. In fact, Mr. Couch was 272 million but one
and mine was. . .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Two seventy-two six or something.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, yeah, yeah. So we have some room, Mr. Chair, but I
understand what you're saying, if we have to meet on Sunday and make some cuts. I
don't wanna meet Sunday afternoon, but you know the old saying "when you call me,
I'm at your beckoning."
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, my thing is unless something drastic changes for us tomorrow for Staff
and I, you will be back at 2:00 p.m. on Sunday.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Good. Understood.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sorry, Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I don't have a problem of Sunday. I just gotta be there
Saturday.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You said good news and bad news. So far we heard nothing but
bad news. What's the good news?
COUNCILMEMBERS: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Any good news?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That was your good news you gotta come back Sunday.
COUNCILMEMBERS: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I hate to see what you get for Christmas presents.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I tell you everything changed in the last one hour.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Last what?
CHAIR HOKAMA: One hour, okay. We were okay until we start adding back $1 million here
then everything is off. So now we are way off. Okay. But, hey, that's your choice, you
made those decisions and now we are going to have to work it. So we'll see you. . .we
are gonna go into recess until 2:00 p.m. Sunday. If we don't need to meet, we will
contact you and we'll notify everyone that we'll cancel the meeting.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Don't you need somebody to adjourn the meeting or can you...
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, recess.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I understand that -CHAIR HOKAMA: We recess.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --but if he recesses the meeting 2:00 on Sunday he has to do
something at 2:00 on Sunday.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I think we. . .we'll follow whatever posting requirements is by law.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, if we gotta come in, I'll come in, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You have all the numbers.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: He just needs time.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I...
CHAIR HOKAMA: And we understand about Ms. Crivello's travel requirements.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So let her know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Yeah. Anything else they need to know for tonight? Yeah. May 1st,
2 o'clock, Chambers, to continue this meeting.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And then of course we have Monday's recessed meeting and
10 o'clock regular meeting, okay. So thank you, Members. That is the status and get
some rest, rest up, enjoy your Saturday as...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: First of all, I'd like to thank you and the Staff because I know
you're not leaving and you're gonna be here all day tomorrow. So thank you very, very
much for what you folks have done. Secondly, I hope people out there understand if
there's cuts that need to be made that we're just challenged in what we have to work
with, so. But hopefully when we get all of this said and done, somehow we can balance
with what we have.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that's all we're looking for, and I thank you for your
efforts and your guidance.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Members, for your assistance on this Committee. Again, get the
rest, enjoy your weekend as best you can. If you need us, you know where we'll be. If
you have a question or need a clarification, we'll be right here. Okay, with that we are
in recess. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:

9:50 p.m.
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